
Report 2013/14



Legislation Enacted

National Treasury Annual Report 2013/14 iii

National Treasury, Private Bag X115, 
Pretoria, 0001, South Africa

Tel: +27 12 315 5526, 
Fax: +27 12 315 5126

Editorial, coordination, design and layout: 
National Treasury Communications

ISBN: 978-0-621-41937-5, RP184/2014 

This report is also available on www.treasury.gov.za

Report 2013/14



Mr P Gordhan, Minister of Finance. I have the honour of submitting the Annual Report 
of the National Treasury for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014.

Lungisa Fuzile
Director-General

Report 2013/14



National Treasury Annual Report 2013/14

Organogram

vi



Mission Statement........................................... 1

Organogram....................................................... 2

Legislative Mandate........................................ 4

Legislation Enacted......................................... 6

The Ministry........................................................ 7

Public Entities Reporting 
to the Minister.................................................10

Minister’s Statement on Policy 
and Commitment...........................................23

Deputy Minister’s Overview.......................26

Accounting Officer’s Overview..................29

Programme 1:
Administration...................................................32

Programme 2:
Economic Policy, Tax, Financial

Regulation and Research.................................39

Programme 3:
Public Finance and 

Budget Management.......................................46

Programme 4:
Asset and Liability Management....................74

Programme 5:
Financial Accounting and Reporting.................88

Programme 6:
International Financial Relations...............  108

Programme 7:
Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions 

to Funds and other Benefits.........................  119

Programme 8:
Technical and Management Support 

and Development Finance..........................  124

Annual Financial Statements.................  134

Annual Financial Statements
of the Project Development 
Facility (PDF).................................................  250

Annual Financial Statements
of the Technical Assistance 
Unit (TAU)......................................................  284

Human Resources Management..........  307

Annexures.....................................................  333



Mission Statement     |     Organogram



National Treasury Annual Report 2013/14 1

Mission 
Statement

Mission Statement     |     Organogram

VISION

The National Treasury is the custodian of the nation’s financial 

resources. We hold ourselves accountable to the nation to discharge 

our responsibilities professionally and with humility, with the aim of 

promoting growth and prosperity for all. 

We aspire to excellence in the quality of our analysis and advice and 

in the execution of our financial management responsibilities. We 

aim to realise the full potential of South Africa’s economy and people 

and to mobilise the resources of the state, business enterprises and 

the wider community in a partnership of trust and mutual respect.

MISSION AND OBJECTIVES

The National Treasury aims to promote economic development, 

good governance, social progress and rising living standards 

through accountable, economic, efficient, equitable and sustainable 

management of South Africa’s public finances.

We endeavour to advance economic growth, broad-based 

empowerment, progressive realisation of human rights and the 

elimination of poverty. We are responsible for preparing a sound 

and sustainable national budget and an equitable division of 

resources among the three spheres of government. We strive to 

raise fiscal resources equitably and efficiently and to manage the 

government’s financial assets and liabilities soundly. We promote 

transparency and effective financial management.

VALUES

As custodian of the nation’s financial resources, 

the National Treasury acknowledges the 

authority of Parliament through whom we are 

accountable to the nation. We value teamwork, 

sound planning and enthusiasm and strive 

continually to improve the quality, accuracy and 

reliability of our service delivery. 

Our people are our most valued assets. We seek 

to be an employer of choice, we invest in the 

education and training of our staff, we cultivate a 

learning and consultative environment, we make 

use of the best available technological support 

and we aim to mobilise the full potential of our 

people. 

In our dealings with the public and with our 

colleagues, we act transparently and with 

integrity, showing respect and demonstrating 

fairness and objectivity. In achieving these 

things, we will honour the faith that the South 

African public has placed in us.

We endeavour to advance economic growth, 
broadbased empowerment, progressive realisation 
of human rights and the elimination of poverty.
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Legislative Mandate

The National Treasury’s mandate is to promote the national 

government’s fiscal policy, coordinate macroeconomic policy, 

intergovernmental financial and fiscal relations, manage the 

preparation of the budget and ensure that revenue and expenditure, 

assets and liabilities, public entities and constitutional institutions 

are managed in a transparent and effective manner.

Parliamentary Services

As the political principal of the department, the Minister of Finance regards collaboration with Parliament as vital. Consequently, 

National Treasury continued interactions with parliamentary committees during the period under review, including the Standing  

Committee on Finance, the Standing Committee on Appropriations, the Select Committee on Finance and Select Committee 

on Appropriations.  Other committees include the Standing Committee on Public Accounts and all other relevant portfolio 

committees in Parliament.

The Parliamentary Service Office (PSO) is at the core of maintaining this relationship. The office is also a vehicle through which 

financial policies and pieces of legislation are presented to Parliament for consideration and approval.

During the period under review, the PSO coordinated work processes between policy makers and public representatives. 

Information continued to flow between the Ministry through Cabinet to Parliament and vice versa. Other clients of this office 

include but are not limited to:

•	 Members of Parliament

•	 Parliamentary committees

•	 Parliamentary administrative staff

•	 Civil society institutions

•	 Members of the public.  

The PSO also maintains collegial and cooperative relationships on behalf of the Ministry with political structures as well as offices 

of the Presiding Officers, the Secretary to Parliament and the Leader of Government Business.            
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Legislation Enacted

1.     Division of Revenue Act, (Act No. 2 of 2013)

	 •	 Bill enacted: Division of Revenue Bill [B 2 – 2013]

	 •	 English text signed by President. Assented to 7 June 2013

	 •	 Published in Government Gazette No. 36555, 10 June 2013
      

2.     Appropriation Act, (Act No. 9 of 2013)

	 •	 Bill enacted: Appropriation Bill [B 1 – 2013] 

	 •	 English text signed by the President. Assented to 7 July 2013

	 •	 Published in Government Gazette No. 36692, date 22 July 2013
      

3.    Banks Amendment Act (Act No. 22 of 2013)

	 •	 Bill enacted: Banks Amendment Bill [B 43 – 2012] 

	 •	 English text signed by the President. 

		A  ssented to 9 December 2013

	 •	 Published in Government Gazette No. 37144, 

		  dated 10 December 2013
      

4.	 Rates and Monetary Amounts and Amendment of 

Revenue Laws Act, (Act No. 23 of 2013)

	 •	 Bill enacted: Rates and Monetary Amounts and Amendment of 

Revenue Laws Bill [B12 - 2013]

	 •	 English text signed by the President. 

		A  ssented to 28 November 2013

	 •	 Published in Government Gazette No. 37104, 

		  dated 2 December 2013

5.    Employment Tax Incentive Act (Act No. 26 of 2013)

	 •	 Bill enacted: Employment Tax Incentive Bill [B 46 – 2013] 

	 •	 English text signed by the President. 

		A  ssented to 17 December 2013

	 •	 Published in Government Gazette No. 37185, 

		  dated 18 December 2013
      

6.	 Adjustments Appropriation Act, (Act No. 27 of 2013)

	 •	 Bill enacted: Adjustments Appropriation Bill [B37 - 2013]

	 •	 English text signed by the President. 

		A  ssented to 9 December 2013

	 •	 Published in Government Gazette No. 37147, 

		  dated 10 December 2013
      

7.	 Division of Revenue Amendment Act, (Act No. 29 of 2013)

	 •	 Bill enacted: Division of Revenue Amendment Bill [B 38 - 2013]

	 •	 English text signed by the President. 

		A  ssented to 28 November 2013

	 •	 Published in Government Gazette No. 37105, 

		  dated 2 December 2013
      

8. 	 Taxation Laws Amendment Act, (Act No. 31 of 2013)

	 •	 Bill enacted: Taxation Laws Amendment Bill [B 39 – 2013]

	 •	 English text signed by the President. 

		A  ssented to 11 December 2013

	 •	 Published in Government Gazette No. 37158, 

		  dated 12 December 2013
      

9. 	 Merchant Shipping (International Oil Pollution 
Compensation Fund) Administration Act 

	 (Act  No. 35 of 2013)

	 •	 Bill enacted: Merchant Shipping (International Oil Pollution 

Compensation Fund) Administration Bill [B19 – 2013]                 

	 •	 English text signed by the President. 

		A  ssented to 14 December 2013

	 •	 Published in Government Gazette No. 37174, 

		  dated 18 December 2013
      

10.	 Merchant Shipping (International Oil Pollution 
Compensation Fund) Contributions Act 

	 (Act No. 36 of 2013)

	 •	 Bill enacted: Merchant Shipping (International Oil Pollution 

Compensation Fund) Contributions Bill [B41 – 2013]                 

	 •	 English text signed by the President. 

		A  ssented to 21 December 2013

	 •	 Published in Government Gazette No. 37219, 

		  dated 8 January 2014
      

11. Tax Administration Laws Amendment Act (Act No. 39 of 2013)

	 •	 Bill enacted: Tax Administration Laws Amendment Bill 

		  [B 39 – 2013]

	 •	 English text signed by the President. 

		A  ssented to 14 January 2014

	 •	 Published in Government Gazette No. 37236, 

		  dated 16 January 2014
      

12.	 Financial Services Laws General Amendment Act 

	 (Act No. 45 of 2013)

	 •	 Bill enacted: Financial Services Laws General Amendment Bill 

		  [B 29 – 2012]

	 •	 English text signed by the President. 

		A  ssented to 14 January 2014

	 •	 Published in Government Gazette No. 37237, 

		  dated 16 January 2014
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The Ministry

The Minister of Finance is the political head of the specialised 

public sector organisations in the areas of finance, financial 

regulation, economics and accounting. Under the 

leadership of Minister Pravin Gordhan and Deputy Minister 

Nhlanhla Nene, the Ministry provided guidance during the 

reporting period that ensured high levels of consistent 

service delivery.

South Africa has the most well-developed and transparent 

budget process when measured against 94 countries, including 

developed economies. Notwithstanding this, the National 

Treasury continues to improve the quality of the information 

presented in the Budget. This assists entities responsible for 

overseeing the management and spending of public funds to 

achieve better accountability.

South Africa entered the global crisis with a range of challenges 

including inadequate infrastructure, poverty, inequality, 

structural unemployment and a slow pace of transformation. 

Tackling these requires a new momentum so we can build on 

the successes of the past. The accelerated implementation of 

the National Development Plan is a priority and will enable the 

country to realise its development objectives.

The world is yet to recover fully from the effects of the global 

financial crisis and South Africa is no different. Even though 

our economy has underperformed, we have maintained a 

sound fiscal position. However, the fiscal space that supported 

the economy has narrowed and this implies the need to take 

difficult decisions and learn to do more with less.

Pravin Gordhan
Minister of Finance

Nhlanhla Nene
Deputy Minister of Finance
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International visits undertaken by the Minister of Finance, 			 
Pravin Gordhan, during the 2013/14 financial year:

Date Country Reason

1 April - 31 December 2013

18 - 19  April 2013 Washington DC, USA G20 Finance Ministers Meetings 

19 - 21 April 2013 Washington DC, USA IMF/WB Spring Meetings

29 April - 4 May 2013 London ,UK Times CEO Africa Summit & Oxford University Africa Society

28 - 29 May  2013 Paris, France OECD MCM Meetings

30 - 31 May 2013 Marrakesh, Morocco AFDB Annual meetings

19 - 20 July 2013 Moscow, Russia G20 Finance Ministers meetings

14 - 15 August 2013 Lilongwe, Malawi SADC Council of Ministers

05 - 06 September 2013 St Petersburg G20 Leaders’ Summit

15 - 17 September 2013 London, UK UK Working Visit with DP

06 October 2013 London, UK RMB London Working Visit

07 October 2013 London, UK Innova BRICS

09 - 11 October 2013 Washington DC, USA G20 Finance Ministers Meeting 

11 - 13 October 2013 Washington DC, USA IMF/WB Annual Meetings

1 January - 31 March 2014

22-25 January 2014 Davos Switzerland World Economic Forum (WEF)

28-31 March 2014 Abuja, Nigeria
Joint Annual AU Conference of Ministers of Economy and Finance & ECA Conference 

of African Ministers of Finance in Abuja, Nigeria

International visits undertaken by the Deputy Minister of Finance, 		
Nhlanhla Nene, during the 2013/14 financial year:

Date Country Reason

1 April - 31 December 2013

10 - 12 April 2013 Gaborone, Botswana 
29th Southern African Customs Union Council of Ministers and fourth Summit of 
Heads of State and Government

21 - 24 April  2013 Massachusetts, Boston, USA Harvard-African Development Bank Ministerial Forum on Health Finance

16 - 17 May 2013 Maputo, Mozambique Southern African Development Community meetings

30 May - 05 June 2013 Yokohama, Japan
Working state visit and the fifth Tokyo International Conference on African 
Development (Ticad-V) Summit

27 - 28 June 2013 Windhoek, Namibia The 30th Southern African Customs Union Council of Ministers meeting

20 - 22 August 2013 Khartoum, Sudan The International Monetary Fund / World Bank African Caucus meeting

09 - 10 October 2013 Washington, DC, USA
The South Africa Tomorrow Conference hosted by UBS in collaboration with the 
Johannesburg Stock Exchange

10 - 13 October  2013 Washington, DC, USA International Monetary Fund / World Bank annual meetings

16 - 21 November 2013 Mumbai, India The African National Congress Progressive Business Forum South African trade delegation

03 - 05 December 2013 Brussels, Belgium
The African, Caribbean and Pacific National Authorising Officers meeting to discuss 
the 11th European Development Fund of The European Commission

1 January - 31 March 2014

22 - 23 February 2014 Sydney, Australia G20 finance ministers and central bank governors’ meeting

23 - 28 March 2014 Seoul, Korea
The African National Congress Progressive Business Forum South African trade 
delegation
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Public Entities reporting 
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Public entities reporting 
to the minister

Fifteen entities report to the Minister of Finance through 

governance arrangements that give them autonomy but 

also enable them to align their strategies with government 

policy. Six of these entities - the South African Revenue Service 

(SARS), the Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC), the Accounting 

Standards Board (ASB), the Co-operative Banks Development 

Agency (CBDA), the Financial and Fiscal Commission (FFC) and 

the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA) - receive 

transfers from the National Treasury. 

The remaining eight generate their own revenue - the 

Financial Services Board (FSB), the Financial Advisory and 

The mandate of the SARS in terms of the South African 

Revenue Service Act (1997) is to collect all revenue due to the 

state, and to support government in meeting its key growth 

and developmental objectives by facilitating legitimate trade, 

monitoring South African ports of entry and eliminating 

illegal trade and tax evasion. The organisation is responsible 

for ensuring maximum compliance with tax and customs 

legislation and providing a customs service that maximises 

revenue collection, protects South Africa’s borders and facilitates 

trade.  The organisation’s goals include:

•	 increased customs compliance

•	 increased tax compliance

•	 deployment of officers to reach all current and potential taxpayers

•	 improving the ease and fairness with which it conducts its 

business

•	 improving the cost effectiveness and efficiency of its operations

•	 implementing outreach and education and other 

compliance activities

•	 developing and procuring mobile registration kits to 

facilitate the registration of new taxpayers.

SARS collected R899.9 billion, which is R0.9 billion above the 

revised MTBPS estimate of R899 billion, in the 2013/14 financial 

year. Tax revenues grew and exceeded the previous year’s 

revenue collections of R814.1 billion by R85.7 billion. The main 

contributors to revenue collection were: 

•	 Personal Income Tax (PIT ). Total collections were 

R310.9 billion, which were R778 million (0.3 per cent) 

above the revised estimate in the 2013/14 budget of 

R309.7 billion. This was R34.2 billion higher than the 

R276.7 billion outcome of the previous financial year.

•	 Corporate Income Tax (CIT). Total collections were 

R179.9 billion. This was R1.2 billion (0.7 per cent) above 

the revised estimate in the 2013/14 budget of R178.7 

billion, which was in turn R19 billion higher than the 

R160.9 billion outcome of the previous financial year. 

•	 Value Added Tax (VAT). Total collections were R237.8 billion. 

This was R1.5 billion (0.7 per cent) lower than the revised 

estimate in the 2013/14 budget of R239.3 billion, which was 

in turn R22.8 billion higher than the R215 billion outcome of 

the previous financial year. 

SOUTH AFRICAN REVENUE SERVICE (sars) 	
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

Intermediary Services Ombud (FAIS Ombud), the Office of the 

Pension Fund Adjudicator (OPFA), the Government Pensions 

Administration Agency (GPAA), Government Employees 

Pension Fund (GEPF) the Development Bank of Southern 

Africa (DBSA), the Public Investment Corporation (PIC), the 

Land Bank and the South African Special Risk Insurance 

Association (SASRIA). 

Each entity develops and reports on its own strategic plan. The 

commentary below on the performance of the fifteen entities 

describes the broad approach of each and how its work relates 

to the National Treasury’s strategic goals.
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The FIC was established by the Financial Intelligence Centre 

Act (2001) and began operations in 2003. The act mandates 

the Centre to identify the proceeds of unlawful activities, 

combat money laundering activities, combat the financing 

of terrorist and related activities, exchange information with 

law enforcement and other local and international agencies, 

supervise and enforce compliance with the act, and facilitate 

effective supervision and enforcement by supervisory bodies. 

To deliver on this mandate and protect the integrity of South 

Africa’s financial system, the act works in conjunction with 

other legislation, which includes the Prevention of Organised 

Crime Act (1998), the Protection of Constitutional Democracy 

Against Terrorist and Related Activities Act (2004) and the 

South African Police Service Act (1995).

The FIC’s achievements in the reporting year included: 

•	 A 34 per cent increase in financial intelligence products 

generated, from 1 741 in 2011/12 to 2 328 in 2012/13, for 

use by law enforcement, investigative and intelligence 

agencies and other stakeholders in the criminal justice 

system, domestically and abroad. 

•	 292 compliance inspection reports issued and 72 joint 

inspections conducted with supervisory bodies in 

sectors including trust companies, gambling institutions, 

Krugerrand dealers, motor vehicle dealers and estate agents.

•	 40 compliance awareness sessions held and 12 notices 

issued to boost registration of financial service providers, 

estate agents and attorneys.

•	 An increase in the number of institutions registered in 

accordance with the FIC Act from 14 054 in 2011/12 to 21 

866; this broadened the compliance base by 55.6 per cent.

•	 Provision of technical advice to Namibia’s Financial 

Intelligence Unit.

•	 Leading the South African delegation’s participation in the 

review of global standards on anti-money laundering and 

counter-terrorism financing, and in engagements with the 

Financial Action Task Force (FATF), an inter-governmental 

organisation with more than 30 members worldwide.

Over the medium term, the spending focus will be on 

strengthening its cooperation with partner agencies 

nationally and internationally, and improving the level of 

compliance with the Financial Intelligence Centre Act (2001). 

This includes working with and leading the Eastern and 

Southern Africa Anti-money Laundering Group. The Centre 

will also continue working with local partner agencies such 

as SARS on the border and ports projects for controlling the 

movements of goods and people across the country; and the 

South African Police Service to prevent crimes such as the 

distribution of narcotics, the production and smuggling of 

counterfeit goods, the illegal movement of natural resources, 

the trafficking of people, and fraud and commercial 

crimes, including money laundering. This will lead to more 

accountability by reporting institutions registered in terms of 

the Financial Intelligence Centre Act (2001), from 22 959 in 

2013/14 to more than 25 000 in 2016/17.

FINANCIAL INTELLIGENCE CENTRE (FIC)		
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA
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The ASB’s legislative mandate is to develop standards of generally 

recognized accounting practice for all spheres of government 

in terms of section 216(1) (a) of the Constitution and the Public 

Finance Management Act (1999). A further function of the Board 

is to promote transparency and the effective management of 

the revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the entities 

to which the standards apply. The Board contributes to all the 

presidential outcomes, but in particular to the achievement 

of a responsive, accountable, effective and efficient local 

government system (Outcome 9), and an efficient, effective and 

development oriented public service (Outcome 12).

Activities in 2013/14 included the following:

•	 issued 4 local exposure drafts and 5 international exposure 

drafts were issued concurrently with the International 

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB).

•	 submitted 2 new standards to the Minister for approval, 

•	 attended 1 IPSASB meeting and submitted 2 comment 

letters on the international standards of GRAP. 

•	 held 59 stakeholder outreach meetings to consult on 

discussion papers and exposure drafts issued for comments. 

•	 a total of 290 workshops on financial education were 

presented in the 2013/14 financial year. 

The ASB’s strategic goals for the coming four years are to 

continue to be committed to serving the public interest; 

respect and encourage input from all its stakeholders; bring 

objectivity to the consideration of issues; respect the ability 

of its stakeholders to exercise professional judgment; and 

commit to timely responses to stakeholder needs.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (ASB)	
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)
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The CBDA was established in terms of the Cooperative 

Banks Act (2007). The Agency’s mandate is to create a strong 

and vibrant cooperative banking sector. Its overarching 

objectives are to support, promote and develop cooperative 

banking, and to register, supervise and regulate deposit 

taking financial services cooperatives, savings and credit 

cooperatives, community banks and village banks as 

cooperative banks.

The CBDA’s achievements during 2013/14 included: 

•	 Cooperative financial institution managers and board 

members trained increased from 20 in 2011/12 to 60 in 

2013/14. Three sets of training materials were developed. 

•	 Establishing the Stabilisation Fund Committee consisting 

of members from the South African Reserve Bank (SARB), 

the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI), National 

Treasury and the CBDA to deal with the issues affecting the 

cooperative financial institutions (CFIs).

•	 Completing a self-assessment on the CBDA’s effectiveness 

as a supervisory unit against the Basel core principles for 

effective banking supervision of microfinance institutions.

•	 Successful hosting of the CFI annual indaba. This provided 

a platform for CFIs to learn, share information and network, 

building a sustainable and vibrant sector.

The Agency’s strategic goals are to facilitate, promote 

and fund the education and training of cooperative bank 

personnel; improve the institutional safety and soundness of 

existing cooperative financial institutions and of the financial 

stability of the sector as a whole; consolidate the cooperative 

financial institutions sector by managing the growth in their 

registration; address failing institutions to ensure improved 

compliance with the banking regulations; obtain legislative 

approval for the repeal of the South African Micro-Finance 

Apex Fund exemption notice and for moving those powers 

to the Agency; assist representative bodies in improving their 

leadership, management and operational capabilities; establish 

sector specific learning programmes with universities, colleges 

and support organisations; facilitate the establishment of an 

ICT enabled environment for institutions, with linkages to the 

national payment system; and establish a depositor’s insurance 

fund, to cover the losses of depositors.

CO-OPERATIVE BANKS DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY (CBDA)					   
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)
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The FFC derives its legislative mandate, which is to advise 

the relevant legislative authorities on the financial and fiscal 

requirements for the three spheres of government in terms of 

section 220 of the Constitution, from the Financial and Fiscal 

Commission Act (1997). Other legislation that informs its 

mandate includes the Intergovernmental Fiscal Relations Act 

(1997), the Money Bills Amendment Procedure and Related 

Matters Act (2009), the Provincial Tax Regulation Process Act 

(2001), the Municipal Fiscal Powers and Functions Act (2007), 

the Borrowing Powers of Provincial Government Act (1995), the 

Municipal Finance Management Act (2003) and the Municipal 

Systems Act (2003).

In 2013/14, the FFC successfully conducted research, published 

findings and briefed, advised and participated in Parliament 

and other spheres of government. This involved the following: 

•	 One parliamentary briefing was held on the 2013 Medium 

Term Budget Policy Statement (MTBPS). 

•	 44 legislature and government briefings were conducted 

additional to the target of two briefings per quarter due to 

increasing stakeholder demand for FFC services.  

•	 Nine briefings were conducted on the 2014/15 

recommendations for the division of revenue for provincial 

legislatures. 

•	 In support of the advancement of intergovernmental fiscal 

relations, the Commission published 16 working papers or 

technical reports and several peer-reviewed publications 

in accredited journals.

•	 The Commission presented the 2015/16 annual submission 

for division of revenue and the Division of Revenue Bill.

•	 The Commission conducted two parliamentary briefings 

on the 2014 Appropriations Bill.

The Commission’s overarching goal is to provide proactive, 

expert and independent advice on promoting a sustainable and 

equitable system of intergovernmental fiscal relations through 

the formulation and collation of policy relevant analysis. 

Its work is aligned with government’s 12 Outcomes and other 

developmental priorities, including the reduction of poverty, 

the promotion of economic and social development, and the 

protection of the environment.

The Commission’s strategic goals over the medium term are to 

contribute to a sustainable and equitable intergovernmental 

relations system; foster a strategic approach that is oriented 

towards the future and shows foresight; provide sound and 

informed policy advice that is evidence based and that results 

from comprehensive engagement; generate relevant and 

valuable knowledge that enhances developmental impact, 

using internal and external resources as required; nurture a 

dynamic and productive organisational culture; and achieve 

balance in relation to present and future demands, leading to 

effective performance within resource constraints.

FINANCIAL AND FISCAL COMMISSION (FFC) 		
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)
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The IRBA was established under the Auditing Profession Act 

(2005) and became operational in April 2006. The Board is 

mandated to protect the public that relies on the services 

of registered auditors, and to provide support to registered 

auditors. It is required to ensure that only suitably qualified 

individuals are admitted to the auditing profession and that 

registered auditors deliver services of the highest quality and 

adhere to the highest ethical standards.

The Board’s mandate is being expanded to cover two more 

areas. The first is in relation to the DTI’s amendments to the 

Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment Act (2003) 

that will transfer the regulation of the black economic 

empowerment verification industry from the South African 

national accreditation system to the Board. The second is that 

the Board is set to be the statutory body, recognised by SARS, 

with which tax practitioners are obliged to register. 

The IRBA’s achievements during 2013/14 included: 

•	 Developing and issuing new audit pronouncements as 

required by the Committee for Auditing Standards (CFAS).

•	 Processing 97 per cent of irregularities reports received 

from registered auditors within 40 days.

•	 Completing 383 inspections in accordance with the IRBA 

inspection plan.

•	 Monitoring the programmes and institutional requirements 

of accredited professional bodies, and submitting reports 

as required.     

Having achieved first position in the world for the strength 

of auditing and reporting standards, the IRBA will continue 

to serve on relevant international structures where it can 

influence standards and regulation, while responding to the 

needs of local stakeholders and the profession. The IRBA will 

continue to engage with other regulators and standard setters 

on the African continent, to support them in strengthening 

governance practices and reliable reporting through robust 

audit and ethics standards and independent audit regulation.

INDEPENDENT REGULATORY BOARD 	
FOR AUDITORS (IRBA)						   
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)
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The FSB is an independent institution established by statute 

to oversee the South African non-banking financial services 

industry in the public interest.

The Board’s legislative mandate is primarily derived from 

the Financial Services Board Act (1990) which requires it 

to supervise and enforce compliance with laws regulating 

financial institutions and the provision of financial services; to 

advise the Minister of Finance on matters concerning financial 

institutions and financial services; to promote the programmes 

and initiatives of financial institutions and bodies representing 

the financial services industry; and to inform and educate users 

and potential users about financial products and services.

Achievements in 2013/14 included:

•	 Embedding the TCF principles into current market conduct 

regulatory frameworks and supervisory approaches. This 

was in preparation for the shift to a dedicated market 

conduct mandate in the pending Twin Peaks model of 

financial sector regulation, under which the TCF approach 

will underpin the new Market Conduct Authority’s 

approach to conduct supervision.

•	 Establishment of the Twin Peaks Implementation Steering 

Committee (TPISC), mandated to give effect to the FSB’s 

approach to the implementation of the Twin Peaks model 

of regulation. 

•	 In consultation with the National Treasury, progress 

was made on key strategic regulatory policy projects 

informed by the TCF principles. These include the reviews 

of consumer credit insurance and retail distribution, 

retirement reform proposals, preparation of the micro-

insurance policy framework and an enhancement of the 

financial services ombud model.             

•	 A total of 290 workshops on financial education were 

presented in the 2013/14 financial year. 

The FSB’s main strategic goal over the medium term is to 

supervise and regulate the non-banking financial services 

industry in the areas of long term and short term insurance, 

retirement funds and friendly societies, financial service 

providers, collective investment schemes, and capital markets. 

The board will also decide on future regulatory initiatives 

involving the implementation of G20 commitments.

FINANCIAL SERVICES BOARD (FSB)			 
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)
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The legislative mandate of the FAIS Ombud is stated in the 

Financial Advisory and Intermediary Services Act (2002), 

under which the organisation is established. The act gives 

the Ombud the statutory powers to consider and dispose of 

complaints against financial services providers, primarily the 

60 intermediaries selling investment products. The Ombud 

is required to process the complaints in a procedurally fair, 

informal, economical and expeditious way. 

During the 2013/14 financial year, the Ombud’s office received 

9 439 complaints, a decrease of 5 per cent from the previous 

year. Of these, 7 587 were resolved within the same year. The 

quantum of cases settled and determined decreased from 

R51.1 million in 2012/13 to R30.5 million. There was also a 

decrease in the number of justiciable complaints received. 

In addition to providing assistance to members of the public 

through an expeditious dispute resolution process, the office 

of the FAIS Ombud assists consumers who have fallen victim 

to fraudulent financial schemes perpetrated by unscrupulous 

financial service providers. The office of the FAIS Ombud has 

become inundated with an increasing number of complaints 

arising from fraudulent investment schemes that have 

collapsed, chief amongst which have been those relating to 

property syndication. 

The Ombud’s strategic goals over the medium term are to 

serve customers by achieving excellent levels of customer 

satisfaction; facilitate the communication process with 

stakeholders to enhance performance, accountability and 

public confidence; and to ensure long term sustainability by 

strengthening the office’s organisational capacity to deliver 

on its mandate in an economically efficient and effective 

manner, in accordance with the relevant regulatory 

framework.

FINANCIAL ADVISORY AND INTERMEDIARY 
SERVICES OMBUD (FAIS OMBUD)				  
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The mandate of the OPFA is to investigate and determine 

complaints lodged in terms of the Pension Funds Act (1956). 

The mandate of the Office became effective in January 1998. 

In order to deliver on its mandate, it is required to ensure a 

procedurally fair, economical and expeditious resolution of 

complaints in terms of the act by ensuring that its services are 

accessible to all; to investigate complaints in a procedurally 

fair manner; reaching a just and expeditious resolution in 

accordance with the law; to incorporate innovation and 

proactive thought and action in its activities; and to support, 

encourage and provide opportunities for individual growth. 

The Office has jurisdiction only over funds that are registered under 

the Pension Funds Act (1956). Its strategic goals over the medium 

term are to tackle complaints received; achieve operational 

excellence and maintain effective stakeholder relationships.

During the 2013/14 financial year, the OPFA received 5 

405 new complaints, 4.7 per cent higher than the number 

received in 2012/13. The New Complaints Unit finalised 2 882 

complaints, the Adjudication Unit 3 646, and the Conciliation 

Unit 115. The OPFA’s determinations continued to enjoy 

coverage in the media.

OFFICE OF THE PENSION FUNDS 			 
ADJUDICATOR (OPFA)						   
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)



National Treasury Annual Report 2013/14

Public Entities reporting 
to the minister

19

The GPAA provides pensions administration services to 

the Government Employees Pension Fund in terms of 

the Government Employees Pension Fund Act (1996), 

the Temporary Employees Pension Fund Act (1979), the 

Associated Institutions Pension Fund Act (1963), the post-

retirement medical subsidies as provided for and regulated by 

Public Service Coordinating Bargaining Council resolutions, 

military pensions in terms of the Military Pensions Act (1976), 

injury on duty payments in terms of the Compensation for 

Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act (1993), and special 

pensions in terms of the Special Pensions Act (1996). The 

Agency also provides pensions administration services on 

behalf of the National Treasury. It is mandated to ensure that 

benefits are paid on time, maintain accurate information on 

benefits paid and payable pension benefits, communicate 

with members, and build relationships with employer 

government departments.

In 2013/14 the Agency’s modernisation programme 

accelerated the use of eChannel (online submission of 

exit documentation), which has resulted in a reduction of 

payment turnaround time. Currently employers representing 

81 per cent of membership have adopted eChannel. Mobile 

units have been deployed to all provinces resulting in better 

client access to services in rural areas. The Retirement Member 

Campaign (RMC) has resulted in a reduction in turnaround 

time for exit payments. 

With GEPF membership levelling off at 1 276 753 for the 

2013/14 financial year, GPAA collected just under 1.3 million 

contributions of approximately R13.1 billion, with an 

outstanding balance of R96.2 million in the fourth quarter. 

The Agency’s overarching goal is to achieve greater client 

satisfaction through improved service delivery, and through 

service level agreements drawn up to monitor service delivery 

targets for administering the processing and paying of 

benefits, including the improvement of turnaround times. The 

Agency’s strategic goals over the medium term are to ensure 

that customers and clients are satisfied; modernise benefit 

administration to improve efficiency; ensure that employees 

are satisfied, efficient and effective; transform the agency’s 

operational effectiveness by modernising systems and build 

mutually beneficial partnerships with employer departments.

GOVERNMENT PENSIONS 					  
ADMINISTRATION AGENCY (GPAA)				  
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

GOVERNMENT Employees PENSION 			 
Pension Fund (GEPF)					   
(Juristic Entity, governed by the Government Employees Pensions Law of 1996)

The GEPF is a defined-benefit fund that provides members 

with retirement, resignation, disability and death benefits. Its 

mandate is to make provision for the payment of pensions 

and certain benefits to persons in the employ of government, 

certain bodies and institutions, and to the dependants 

or nominees of such persons; and to provide for matters 

incidental thereto.

The GEPF accounts for the majority of the PIC’s assets under 

management which amount to about R1 trillion rand. It 

has recently expanded the PIC’s mandate to enable the 

corporation to make investments on the African continent as 

well as offshore.

The Government Pension Administration Agency (GPAA) 

provides the GEPF with administration services. These include 

admitting new members, collecting contributions, maintaining 

beneficiaries, and processing member benefits. 



National Treasury Annual Report 2013/14

Public Entities reporting 
to the minister

20

DEVELOPMENT BANK 						   
OF SOUTHERN AFRICA (DBSA)					  
(Schedule 2A: Major public entity)

The DBSA’s purpose is to promote sustainable economic 

development and growth, human resource development 

and institutional capacity building by mobilising financial 

and other resources from the public and private sectors, 

locally and abroad, for sustainable development projects and 

programmes in South Africa and the Southern African region. 

Progress in terms of key objectives in the 2013/14 financial 

year included:

•	 The Bank remains in a stable financial position with an 

impressive financial performance resulting in net profit of 

R822 million for the financial year, recovering from a net 

loss of R826 million in the previous financial year.

•	 Total assets grew by 18.3 per cent, from R53.9 billion to 

R63.8 billion.

•	 28 projects to the value of R13.5 billion were approved 

whilst total commitments amounted to R11.9 billion. 

•	 Total infrastructure disbursements of R12.7 billion (target: 

R11 billion) supporting a total of 116 projects (of which 90 

per cent were South African) were made. This is a record 

level since the 2008/09 financial year. 

•	 R1.6 billion was disbursed to support 25 municipal projects 

in South Africa.

•	 The Bank continued to focus its efforts on the priority 

infrastructure sectors of energy, water, transport and ICT, 

with R10.6 billion disbursed to these sectors.  

•	 To date an amount of R260.6 million has been disbursed 

on project preparation activities, of which R30 million was 

from DBSA, R6.6 million from DBSA’s partners, Agence 

Française de Développement (AFD) (Project Preparation 

Feasibility Study) and R224 million from the South African 

Government in respect of IPPs and the National Health 

PPP programme. 

As part of the Accelerated Schools Infrastructure Delivery 

Programme, 49 schools in phase 1 were completed. For phase 

2, 18 schools out of 22 of tranche 1 were in construction as at 

31 March 2014. Implementation of the construction of the 50 

schools of tranche 2 will gain traction in the new financial year.

PUBLIC INVESTMENT 						   
CORPORATION LIMITED (PIC)				  
(Schedule 3B: National government business enterprise)

The PIC manages funds on behalf of a number of state-related 

institutions, the largest being the Government Employee 

Pension Fund (GEPF), which accounts for approximately 89% 

of the PIC’s assets under management (AuM). Other clients of 

the PIC include the Unemployment Insurance Fund (UIF), the 

Associated Institutions Pension Fund (AIPF), the Compensation 

Commissioner (CC), the Pension Fund (PF), the Compensation 

Fund (CF) and the Guardian’s Fund.

The PIC’s total investment portfolio amounts to approximately 

R1.404 trillion (as at 31 March 2014), most of which is invested 

in listed bonds and equities. Developmental investments are 

provided for under the Isibaya Fund. The Isibaya Fund provides 

finance for projects that are able to generate good financial 

returns while supporting positive, long term, economic, social 

and environmental outcomes for the country. 

As at 31 March 2013 approximately R63 billion was earmarked 

for developmental investments through the Isibaya Fund. 

These will take place in four investment areas: economic 

infrastructure; social infrastructure; priority sectors and SME 

development; and environmental sustainability.

According to the PIC’s unaudited draft annual report, during 

2013/14 it managed to grow group revenue by 68 per cent 

from R482.4 million in 2012/13 to R808.8 million in 2013/14.
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LAND AND AGRICULTURAL DEVELOPMENT 		
BANK OF SOUTH AFRICA (LAND BANK)				  
(Schedule 3B: National government business enterprise)

The Land Bank’s mandate is expressed in the Land and 

Agriculture Development Bank Act (2002). It is aligned with 

government’s developmental objectives which are aimed 

at promoting, amongst others, rural development and job 

creation; provision of food security; equitable ownership of 

agricultural land, in particular by historically disadvantaged 

people; agrarian reform, land redistribution and development 

programmes aimed at historically disadvantaged individuals; 

land access for agricultural purposes; and agricultural 

entrepreneurship. 

Progress in terms of key objectives in the 2013/14 financial 

year included: 

•	 The Bank disbursed R267.2 million to retail emerging 

market clients and R1.8 billion under its development 

programme.

•	 The Bank’s capital and reserves increased by 9 per cent to 

R6.1 billion (2012: R5.6 billion) and its asset base increased 

by 21 per cent to R30.8 billion (2012: R25.4 billion).

•	 The gross loan book also increased by 25 per cent 

(R5.4 billion) to R26.9 billion (2012: R21.6 billion).

•	 The Bank recorded a profit of R304.6 million which is 89 per 

cent higher than the R161 million profit generated in the 

2012/13 financial year.

•	 The Bank’s cost-to-income ratio slightly reduced from 72 per 

cent in 2012 to 70 per cent at the 2012/13 financial year end.

•	 The Bank’s non-performing loans (NPL) reduced by 10% 

to R652 million (2012: R724 million), constituting 2.4 per 

cent of the entire loan book.

 

The Bank’s focus over the next three years will be on financing 

emerging farmers; growing the investment portfolio and 

delivering better performance from investments; promoting 

equitable ownership of agricultural land, particularly through 

increasing ownership of agricultural land by historically 

disadvantaged persons; and agrarian reform through land 

redistribution and development programmes aimed at 

historically disadvantaged individuals.
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MINISTER’S STATEMENT 
ON POLICY AND COMMITMENT

SOUTH AFRICAN SPECIAL RISK INSURANCE 		
ASSOCIATION (SASRIA) SOC LIMITED				  
(Schedule 3B: National government business enterprise)

SASRIA is a short-term insurance company that provides 

coverage for damage caused by special risks such as politically 

motivated malicious acts, riots, strikes, terrorism and public 

disorders as well as losses in respect of mortgage loans. 

Progress and activities in 2013/14 (according to the unaudited 

draft 2013/14 annual financial results) included the following:

•	 Gross written premium (GWP) income growth increased 

to R1.4 billion from R1.2 billion in 2012/13, a 13.2 per 

cent increase.

•	 Net investment income increased to R442 million in 

2013/14, representing an 8.8 per cent increase.

•	 SASRIA’s capital and solvency positions remain strong. 

Shareholders’ equity increased to R4.7 billion as at 31 

March 2014. 

•	 A dividend of R107 million was declared and paid to the 

shareholder during the year under review.

SASRIA’s strategic objectives over the next five years will, 

amongst others, include continued growth in sustainable 

revenue; adherence to the regulatory environment by 

proactively managing compliance; provision of superior 

customer services by focusing on customer-centricity, 

thus reducing the number of insurance claims; attraction, 

retention and development of skills which will support 

SASRIA’s aspirations by focusing on people’s capacity 

and capabilities; and creation of a trusted brand through 

emphasis on brand development.
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Minister’s statement 							     
on policy and commitment

As the custodian of the nation’s financial resources, the National 

Treasury aims to promote economic growth and development, 

sound governance, social progress and continuous 

improvement in the standard of living of all South Africans. 

The National Development Plan (NDP) lists the elements of a 

decent standard of living as including the following: 

•	 Income, through employment or social security

•	 Adequate nutrition

•	 Transport to get to work

•	 Safe communities and clean neighbourhoods. 

These elements require action from individuals, government, 

communities and the private sector. The NDP makes a firm 

commitment to achieving a minimum standard of living which 

can be progressively realised through a multi-pronged strategy. 

To achieve this minimum standard of living, South Africans will 

require a basic set of capabilities, the most important of which 

are education, skills and the opportunity to work. 

These themes find practical expression in the work of the 

National Treasury and will continue to inform public policy and 

contribute to better planning and programme implementation 

in the years ahead. It is these themes that frame the day-to-day 

work of National Treasury through its activities that promote 

national government’s fiscal policy, coordinate macroeconomic 

policy, manage the budget process and ensure transparency and 

effective management of government revenues and expenditure.

A healthy fiscal position  -  an outcome of the effective management 

of the resources generated by higher economic growth and better 

tax compliance in the 2000s - enabled government to maintain 

social and economic spending programmes despite the decline in 

revenue as a result of the 2009 global recession.

The NDP makes 
a firm commitment to 
achieving a minimum 

standard of living which 
can be progressively 

realised through a 
multi-pronged strategy.

Pravin Gordhan
Minister of Finance
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South Africa’s budget policy framework is guided by the 

challenges of growth, job creation and poverty reduction. 

However, development is not just the pursuit of faster growth; 

it is also about creating a more equitable future. As South 

Africa negotiates its way through the present global transition, 

we must shift the balance of opportunity towards those for 

whom work, regular income, decent shelter and adequate 

nutrition are still only aspirations. 

Expanding the construction of economic and social 

infrastructure, enhancing economic competitiveness, 

moderating remuneration and consumption for the better-

off, sustaining investment in people and skills, supporting 

rural development and job creation are among the levers of 

economic change at our disposal.  

To pave the way for accelerated economic progress over the 

next 20 years, South Africa needs to make tough decisions. 

Any solution must tackle the problem comprehensively and 

deal with each of the features of our legacy and our current 

challenges. 

To accelerate economic progress, the NDP proposes, amongst 

others, the following steps:

 •	 Increasing exports while taking steps to prevent excessive 

overvaluation of the currency

•	 Improving skills development

•	 Breaking the disincentive to hire young, unskilled work 

seekers by incentivising their employment 

•	 Using fiscal policy to raise savings and investment and to 

reduce consumption

•	 Taking measures to increase competition in regulated 

sectors, or broadening price regulation in sectors that are 

natural monopolies

•	 Lowering the cost of transport and logistics and investing 

in remedies which address spatial divides

•	 Strengthening the social wage to raise the living standards 

of those out of work or in low paying jobs. 

To achieve a more competitive and diversified economy, the 

NDP identifies three strategic interventions to underpin this 

process: 1) raising levels of investment; 2) improving skills and 

human-capital formation; and 3) increasing net exports. 

Success on these three fronts will lead to rising employment, 

increased productivity, improved living standards and a decline 

in inequality. Rising rates of investment will be achieved initially 

through state spending on infrastructure and “crowding in” 

private-sector investment. 

The NDP provides a broad strategic framework for putting the 

economy and society on a new trajectory. It recognises that 

ours is a youthful, urbanising society and that this presents 

opportunities for growth and development. It sets out a wide 

range of actions needed to boost growth, eliminate poverty 

and reduce inequality, beginning with an approach to change 

that focuses on enhanced capabilities and an active citizenry.  

It points out that, while government will play a significant role, all 

sectors of society must be involved in making the plan a reality. 

The NDP also recognises that development is not a linear 

process, with one step following another in a predictable 

and orderly sequence. Instead, it requires a multidimensional 

framework of interacting initiatives, policies and investments 

that generate a virtuous cycle of progress, with actions in one 

area supporting advances in others. 

Overall, we should all – government, business, labour and civil 

society – be guided by the overwhelming imperative to build 

a more equal society, for a shared future. 

 

This is, and will continue to be, the goal of the National Treasury. 

I want to acknowledge the excellent contribution of the Director 

General and the staff of the National Treasury in helping the 

South African economy to navigate a difficult period.

Pravin Gordhan

Minister of Finance



Deputy minister’s
Overview



National Treasury Annual Report 2013/14 27

Deputy Minister’s 
Overview

As articulated in the National Development Plan (NDP), our 

nation’s goal is to have built an inclusive economy by 2030, 

one in which  levels of poverty and unemployment have been 

drastically reduced. 

The entities that make up the “Finance Family”, such as the 

South African Revenue Service, the Financial Intelligence 

Centre, the Financial Services Board and the Government 

Pensions Administration Agency, have a key role to play in 

laying the foundations upon which we  can construct the kind 

of society envisioned in the NDP. 

The success of SARS in collecting revenue has been a crucial 

block in building a strong fiscus which has enabled successive 

governments to increase the depth and breadth of public 

services. Our tax policy framework has also proven resilient, 

even during the global economic turmoil that has tested 

South Africa’s public finances. In the 2013/14 financial year, 

SARS collected R899.9 billion, which is R0.9 billion above the 

revised estimate of R899 billion published in the 2013 Medium 

Term Budget Policy Statement.

The FIC and the FSB safeguard our financial system. Since its 

establishment in 2003, the FIC has been at the forefront of 

combating money laundering and the financing of terrorist 

and related activities which can compromise the integrity and 

stability of our financial system. 

Our regulatory framework ensured that our financial services 

sector weathered the storm of the global financial crisis. To 

build on that, in the 2013/14 financial year the FSB focused 

on embedding into market conduct the principle of treating 

customers fairly. This ensures that the sector serves the nation. 

The FSB’s achievements during the year include a review of 

Our regulatory 
framework ensured 

that our financial services 
sector weathered the 

storm of the global 
financial crisis

Nhlanhla Nene
Deputy Minister of Finance
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consumer credit insurance, an enhanced financial services 

ombud scheme model and a redoubling of its efforts to 

increase the level of financial literacy among our people.

South Africa can be proud of the “Finance Family” institutions 

that we have built since the dawn of democracy. These 

institutions will continue to support our democratic 

dispensation, creating a stable macro-economic environment 

and financial stability that enable our country to prosper and 

our goal of a better life for all South Africans to be achieved.

Nhlanhla Nene, MP

Deputy Minister of Finance

Accounting Officer’s
Overview
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Accounting Officer’s 
Overview

It has now been two full decades since South Africa has been 

a non-racial democracy. The constitutional order established in 

1994 has proven to be a solid foundation on which we have 

made progress. The journey, where the quality of lives of all 

citizens is of acceptable standard and sustainably so, began 

with this milestone. The first steps towards our utopia began 

with reconciliation and thereafter, making the tactical decisions 

that would see improvements on an ongoing basis.

We have realized impressive gains on various fronts, ranging 

from increases in average household income to the number 

of people employed and children attending school. Presently 

75 percent of adult South Africans enjoy financial services 

from the banking sector, as contrasted by 47 percent in 

2005. One can also observe the remarkable increase in black 

participation in the economy and the transformation of the 

middle class. Although there will always remain room for 

improvement, our institutions have continued to extend 

their capacity and capabilities to support further social 

and economic progress. Amidst all of these positive gains 

though, much remains to be done. South Africa has high 

levels of poverty, inequality and unemployment. Joblessness 

among young people is of great concern. In many parts of 

the country, public services are uneven or of poor quality. 

Our economy is not growing fast enough to meet these 

challenges. The national budget tabled during February 

2014 aims to address these challenges in alignment with our 

national priorities.

We have realized 
impressive gains on various 

fronts, ranging from increases 
in average household income 

to the number of people 
employed and children 

attending school.

Lungisa Fuzile
Director-General
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We are guided by the National Development Plan in our 

aspirations; it is the blueprint for our economic development. 

From the National Treasury’s perspective, this will take place 

from several areas in the organisation. As the Office of the Chief 

Procurement Officer aims to reduce wastage and eliminate 

corruption, the Office of the Accountant-General will further 

improve visibility in government’s management of public funds. 

The Budget Group, comprised of the Public Finance, Budget 

Office and Intergovernmental Relations divisions, will continue 

to promote optimal allocation of public funds. Other parts 

of the organisation will ensure that our risks are adequately 

managed, that the financial sector remains stable and that our 

representation internationally continues to be taken seriously.

Since the start of the global financial and economic crisis in 2008, 

government’s countercyclical fiscal policy and the fiscal space 

created in previous years have allowed for a widening budget 

deficit and higher levels of debt to increase infrastructure 

investment, continue funding social priorities and support 

the economy. South Africa’s borrowing strategy is sufficiently 

responsive to withstand long-term adjustments in global and 

domestic capital allocations and short-term market shocks. 

This strategy was tested over the past year as the US Federal 

Reserve announced a slowdown in its large-scale bond-buying 

programme, triggering a global sell-off in emerging-market 

assets. However, the financing programme has continued 

without interruption, with domestic investors taking the global 

sell-off as an opportunity to increase investments in South 

African government paper, highlighting the depth of the local 

bond market.

Engagements on the international front were also eventful 

during the year under review. During 2013, Cabinet identified 

the establishment of a new development bank as one of the 

major deliverables that South Africa wished to result from the 

hosting of the BRICS Summit. This effort appears to have gained 

substantial momentum. 

On a related matter, substantial work has gone into ensuring that 

the Government Technical Advisory Centre (GTAC) becomes a 

centre of excellence that can build capacity, share knowledge 

and make a diverse range of skills available to help resolve 

complex and chronic challenges in government. Through the 

GTAC, we hope to contribute to the improvement of the overall 

performance of government. Together with the International 

and Regional Economic Policy (IREP) unit, GTAC intends to 

bring the knowledge hub into operation – as part of the 

implementation of the South Africa / World Bank Partnership.

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank Minister 

Gordhan for his leadership and direction afforded during the 

period under review. I also look forward to the future leadership 

and direction of Minister Nene and Deputy-Minister Jonas, who 

have taken up the challenge to continue delivering on the aims 

of the National Development Plan.  I also wish to extend my 

deepest and sincere gratitude to the National Treasury team for 

their continued commitment and dedication to public service. 

I have no doubt that this unwavering team will continue to rise 

to any challenge in the future.

Lungisa Fuzile

Director-General 

National Treasury
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Programme 1

Administration

Purpose: Provide leadership, strategic management and 

administrative support to the department. 

Measurable objective: Ensure effective leadership, manage-

ment and administrative support to the National Treasury 

through continuous refinement of organisational strategy 

and structure in compliance with appropriate legislation and 

in alignment with best practice. 

The programme is divided into four subprogrammes:

•	 The Minister subprogramme incorporates the Office of 

the Minister of Finance and includes parliamentary and 

ministerial support services.

•	 The Deputy Minister subprogramme incorporates the 

Office of the Deputy Minister of Finance and related 

support services.

•	 The Management subprogramme incorporates the Office 

of the Director-General and related support services 

(the Communications, Legal Services, Legislation Drafting, 

Internal Audit and Enterprise Risk & Security Management 

units).

•	 The Corporate Services subprogramme incorporates 

all other support functions for the administration and 

effective operation of the department.

SERVICE DELIVERY 			 
OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS
Recent outputs
The Internal Audit unit continued with the implementation 

of a three-year audit plan which was approved by the Audit 

Committee. A total of 51 audits planned in terms of the 

2013/14 Annual Audit Plan were completed within the set 

timeframe whilst a further 9 ad hoc audits were done at the 

request of management. All audits were performed in line 

with the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) standards and 

the Office of the Accountant General’s (OAG) Internal Audit 

framework. Client satisfaction with audits increased from 78 

per cent (2012/13) to 82 per cent (2013/14).  

The Enterprise Risk and Security Management unit facilitates 

the implementation of the enterprise wide risk management 

strategy, and includes business continuity, security 

management and anticorruption activities in its mandate. The 

Audit and Risk committee oversees the implementation of the 

enterprise wide risk management strategy. In the year under 

review, the following achievements were realised:

•	 The enterprise risk management strategy for 2013/14 was 

reviewed and approved by the Accounting Officer, and 

the risk management plan was fully implemented.

•	 The Business Continuity Management policy was reviewed 

and business continuity activities conducted on one 

division identified as critical.

•	 Security management successfully prevented security 

breaches that may have resulted from information 

leaks and could have resulted in disruption of business 

processes.

•	 Anticorruption activities continue to be undertaken 

and the unit is looking to improve its Corruption Case 

Management Framework.

Corporate Services (CS) is responsible for upholding good 

governance, managing risks facing the department and 

ensuring compliance with legislation. 

The two focus areas of the CS team were to: 

•	 Provide integrated business solutions to customers 

by consolidating the CS plans and ensuring that 

implementation remains in line with the National 

Treasury’s strategic priorities; and

•	 Ensure good governance and a sound control environment 

with the aim of achieving unqualified reports from the 

Auditor-General.

The Human Resources (HR) unit supports an integrated approach 

to talent management across the department, leading to a 

highly skilled workforce with a strong performance culture. 

During the reporting period, numerous restructuring projects 

took place resulting in an increased staff establishment. 

Because of the department’s strict recruiting standards and 

limited availability of the required skills, this resulted in an 

increased vacancy rate. The department has improved its 

female representation in SMS level to 45 per cent; the national 

target is 50 per cent.  The Graduate Development Programme 

received increased support, with 48 interns employed by the 
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department and an additional 11 external bursaries being 

provided to students. The Siyaphila Lifestyle Programme, 

which contributes to a healthy work environment, continued 

to be well received during the year, with employees taking an 

active role in ensuring a balanced work life.

The Financial Management unit processed all transactions 

before 31 March 2014 and closed its financial records 

on 3 April 2014, once again being the first national or 

provincial department to submit. Accurate semi-annual 

and annual tax reconciliations were submitted to the 

South African Revenue Service (SARS) seven weeks before 

the closing date. The unit developed and is in the process 

of implementing the Internal Control Framework to 

enhance governance. The Supply Chain Management unit 

efficiently and effectively implemented strategic sourcing 

which resulted in savings on goods and services during the 

financial year. Turnaround time for bids averages 45 days. 

This unit continued to carry out its social responsibility role 

by donating equipment to five schools in need and one 

community child care centre.

The aim of the Facilities Management unit is to ensure that it 

meets all departmental office accommodation needs as the 

department’s staff complement continues to grow. In the year 

under review, all of these needs were met.

The Information and Communication Technology (ICT) unit, 

under the auspices of the ICT Steering Committee, has 

formalised a governance framework, developed the related ICT 

policies and procedures; and has established a firm baseline 

for achieving applicable implementation targets set by the 

DPSA. Based on the business process model adopted, the 

organisational structure has been revised and approved and 

is aligned to the DPSA ICT Governance Framework.  The unit 

has continued with its infrastructure upgrades, deployment of 

several business applications and back-end solutions. 

The Strategic Projects and Support unit promotes a departmental 

culture of learning and knowledge sharing. The knowledge 

management framework was concluded during the year 

under review, with the Information and Content Management 

component of the framework having been piloted. The records 

management policy was also approved by the Governance 

Review Committee. A clean-up was conducted in the 240 

Madiba Street building and more than ten tons of  inactive 

paper records were removed from the operational areas, either 

for archival or disposal. 

The Public Entity Oversight unit (PEOU) established a Chief 

Financial Officers’ (CFOs’) forum where all entities and 

constitutional institutions reporting to the Minister of 

Finance meet quarterly to discuss reporting and governance 

and to improve compliance with the Treasury Regulations 

and the PFMA. 

Material performance variances for Programme 1 are related to:

•	 Security vetting of identified employees. Whilst it was 

envisaged that vetting of all identified employees would  

have been completed during the year under review, only 

20 per cent of such vetting was completed. These delays 

resulted from insufficient human resources being available 

for this purpose, and the matter will be appropriately 

attended to during the year ahead

•	 The National Treasury’s approved procurement plan was 

not submitted before the end of the 2013/14 financial 

year as initially intended. It was submitted on 27 May 2014; 

lessons learned from this experience will be considered in 

order to prevent future delays in this regard.
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Purpose: Provide specialist policy research, analysis and 

advisory services on macroeconomics, microeconomics, 

taxation, the financial sector and regulatory reform.

Measurable objective: The programme advises on policies 

to promote growth, employment and macroeconomic 

stability, and conducts macroeconomic and revenue forecasts 

for the annual budget and the Medium Term Budget Policy 

Statement (MTBPS) and the development of tax and financial 

sector policy. 

The programme is divided into four sub-programmes:

•	 Management advises on policies that will promote 

economic growth, employment, macroeconomic stability 

and regional integration.

•	 Research funds the department’s economic research 

programmes and promotes the research capacity of 

academic researchers in the areas of economic growth, 

job creation, macroeconomic stability, taxation, financial 

sector development, regulations, retirement reform and 

poverty alleviation.

•	 Financial Sector Policy advises on financial sector policies 

in relation to the regulatory framework and supporting 

legislation. The current focus is on modernising the 

financial regulatory framework in response to the global 

financial crisis and facilitating a stable financial sector, 

retirement reform, improved access to financial services 

and the transformation of the financial sector.

•	 Tax Policy provides advice on tax policy drafts the annual 

tax legislation and carries out tax revenue analysis and 

revenue forecasting.

•	 Economic Policy provides macroeconomic and 

microeconomic analysis, policy advice, economic forecasts, 

regulatory assessments and policy review for the annual 

budget and other government processes.

The Economic Policy, and Tax and Financial Sector Policy 

divisions coordinate the National Treasury’s interaction with: 

•	 The South African Reserve Bank on the framework and 

conduct of macroeconomic policy, supervision and 

regulation of banking and management of exchange 

controls

•	 The Financial Services Board (FSB) on the regulation of 

non-banking financial services

•	 The Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC) on anti-money-

laundering and combating the financing of terrorism

•	 The Cooperative Banks Development Agency (CBDA) on 

the development of cooperative financial institutions and 

the regulation and supervision of cooperative banks

•	 Three committees on macroeconomics, financial 

regulation and financial markets which the National 

Treasury’s Asset and Liability Management, Economic 

Policy, Tax, and Financial Sector Policy divisions co-chair 

with the South African Reserve Bank. These committees 

also prepare recommendations for bilateral meetings 

between the Minister of Finance and the Governor of the 

Reserve Bank.

SERVICE DELIVERY 			 
OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS
Recent outputs
The programme funds research on economic growth and 

development through two institutions: Economic Research 

Southern Africa (ERSA) and the Centre for Research into 

Economics and Finance in Southern Africa (CREFSA) at the 

London School of Economics (LSE). The programme has 

budgeted an average of R11 million per year over the Medium 

Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF). 

Economic policy
In addition to the research conducted by Economic Policy 

during the reporting year, the division also advised on growth-

enhancing policies. Areas of work included:

•	 Assessment of policies to achieve higher sustainable 

economic growth and job creation 

•	 Supporting South Africa’s G20 inputs through briefings 

and speaking notes 

•	 Analysis of exchange rate trends, their impact on the 

economy and the policy options for a more stable and 

competitive exchange rate

•	 Analysis and monitoring of capital flows and capital 

account management issues and of global trends in capital 

flows and policy
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•	 Submission of papers evaluating the optimal level of 

foreign exchange reserves for the South African economy 

and the methodologies that can be used to calculate what 

these levels should be

•	 Inputs to the Economic and Employment clusters on 

decent employment through inclusive growth 

•	 Research into the economic impacts of carbon taxation, 

the Integrated Energy Plan and electricity pricing policy 

•	 Research into the economic drivers of tax revenue

•	 Research and inputs into trade and industrial policy

•	 An outline of the drivers of household savings in South 

Africa and possible policy responses

•	 Daily, weekly, monthly and quarterly monitoring and 

reporting on economic developments.

The division also engaged with a number of international 

organisations including the IMF, the World Bank and the 

Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development 

(OECD).

Together with the Public Finance, Tax Policy and Asset and 

Liability divisions, Economic Policy assessed and advised on 

departmental policy proposals and the initiatives of state-

owned enterprises.

The Modelling and Forecasting unit contributed to the budget 

framework, economic growth scenarios and analysis of the 

impact on the economy of commodity price shocks. It also 

provided long-term economic forecasts which assisted the 

National Treasury’s work on debt management. The unit 

continues to build capacity in tax analysis, climate change and 

energy modelling as well as in Dynamic Stochastic General 

Equilibrium (DSGE) modelling, a macroeconomic policy 

analysis tool. 

Tax and financial sector policy 
Tax Policy conducted research and developed policy which 

culminated in the revenue forecasts and tax proposals made 

in the 2014 Budget. Follow up amendments and refinements 

to the tax deductible contributions to defined benefit 

retirement savings schemes will be enacted during 2014. The 

tax incentive design with regard to non-retirement savings has 

been finalised.  Amendments to limit the deduction of interest 

payments to help protect the corporate income tax base 

have been refined. The carbon tax offset paper and a paper 

reviewing the taxation of alcoholic beverages were published 

for public comment. 

Financial Sector Policy is responsible for policies and legislation 

to ensure that South Africa enjoys the benefits of an advanced, 

stable, fair and accessible financial sector. The unit was 

widely engaged in the process of implementing proposals 

to strengthen the financial regulatory system, as contained in 

the National Treasury document “A safer financial sector to serve 

South Africa better”. 

During the year under review, the unit tabled the Banks 

Amendment Act 22 of 2013 in Parliament. The Act was 

promulgated on 10 December 2013. amends the Banks Act 

(1990) to strengthen the framework for banking regulation 

and supervision and specifically to give effect to the Basel 3 

requirements for banking regulation. A new Financial Markets 

Act (No. 19 of 2012) was promulgated on 28 May 2013 to update 

South Africa’s regulatory framework for financial markets. A 

draft Financial Sector Regulation Bill was approved by Cabinet 

and released on 11 December 2013 for public comment. This 

Bill aims to implement the “Twin Peaks” approach to financial 

sector regulation, giving new responsibilities to the South 

African Reserve Bank and converting the FSB into a dedicated 

market conduct regulator. Public comments have been 

received on the draft Bill, and a new bill is due for publication 

during the second half of 2014. In the 2014 Budget, the Minister 

also announced measures to deepen trade and investment 

links between South Africa and the rest of Africa.

The Financial Services Laws General Amendment Act, No. 

45 of 2013, assented to by the President in January 2014  

amongst other objectives, closes regulatory gaps, enhances 

the supervisory capabilities of the FSB and strengthens the 

governance and management of retirement funds. A paper 

titled “Charges in South African retirement funds” was released in 

2013, followed by the  “2014 Budget update on retirement reforms”.

The unit monitors and promotes the policy objective of 

greater access to, and use of, appropriate and affordable 
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financial services. Progress is being made. Currently 75 per 

cent of adult South Africans are banked, compared to 47 per 

cent in 2005. However, in terms of access to credit, while 20.6 

million, or 57 per cent of the adult population, use credit, 20 

per cent are three or more months in arrears. To address 

consumers’ current over-indebtedness and prevent such over-

indebtedness in future, Cabinet instructed National Treasury 

and the Department of Trade and Industry to work together 

to implement a number of measures including setting clear 

affordability guidelines, ensuring the suitability of credit so that 

30-day or pay-day loans are not marketed as appropriate for 

long-term use, strengthening monitoring and enforcement 

to ensure that unregistered credit providers are shut down 

and that registered ones are fully compliant and encouraging 

employers, including the public sector, to investigate the 

legitimacy of emolument-attachment orders for credit.

No material variances between planned and actual 

performance outcomes were experienced for this programme.
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Purpose: Provide analysis and advice on fiscal policy and 

public finances, intergovernmental financial relations, and 

expenditure planning and priorities. Manage the annual 

budget process and provide public finance management 

support.

Measurable objective: To promote growth, social 

development and poverty reduction through sound fiscal and 

financial policies and the effective, efficient and appropriate 

allocation of public funds. Specific aims are to: 

•	 Prepare a national budget that gives effect to the 

government’s economic, fiscal, social and developmental 

goals under the umbrella of the outcomes approach.

•	 Produce and publish the National Budget; publish the 

Budget Review, the Estimates of National Expenditure (ENE), 

the Medium Term Budget Policy Statement (MTBPS) and 

appropriation legislation containing relevant, accurate and 

clear financial information and associated indicators of 

service delivery and performance. 

•	 Contribute to public policy and programme development 

through support for planning, policy and programme 

analysis, budgeting and project management including 

support for public finance reform in provinces and 

municipalities.

•	 Promote public and private investment in infrastructure 

and public services by providing technical support 

for capital expenditure planning and project analysis, 

advice on financing alternatives, support for municipal 

development and financial assistance for neighbourhood 

development projects. These activities are complemented 

by Programme 8 activities (Technical and Management 

Support, and Development Finance).

•	 Monitor and analyse public expenditure and service 

delivery, and support improved monitoring and analysis 

of public expenditure and service delivery and the 

appropriate use of public and private financial resources 

for social and economic development and infrastructure 

investment.

SERVICE DELIVERY 			 
OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS
Recent outputs

Budget Office

The Budget Office is responsible for the national budget process, 

including the publication of the Budget Review, the Medium 

Term Budget Policy Statement and the Estimates of National 

Expenditure. The division oversees expenditure planning, 

provides fiscal advice, leads the budget reform programme, 

manages official development assistance, and compiles public 

finance statistics.

The Fiscal Policy unit manages and develops the fiscal framework 

which is used to advise the Minister of Finance on policy options 

available in setting the budget framework. The unit further 

regulates, analyses and reports on public sector infrastructure 

spending. In 2013/14, the unit completed a revised version of 

the country’s long term fiscal outlook report. This was submitted 

to Cabinet for comment. In addition, the unit began work on the 

design of a new fiscal risks framework which considers risks to 

government finances across the public sector.

The Expenditure Planning unit has the responsibility for 

designing a budget process that relates to government’s fiscal 

framework, with the imperative of funding government’s 

priorities. The annual process for budget allocation decision-

making was determined and executed in consultation 

with the Minister of Finance and his colleagues on the 

Ministers’ Committee on the Budget. The unit issued various 

guidelines to government institutions on the budget process 

input requirements at different stages of the process, and 

administered the process of budget consultations involving 

all spheres of government. Ultimately Cabinet approval was 

obtained for the budget allocations to government institutions. 

The unit also coordinated the production of the Appropriation 

Bill, required for parliamentary approval of these budgets, as 

well as of the accompanying Estimates of National Expenditure 

publications, tabled with the 2014 Budget in February.
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In addition, the unit managed the 2013/14 financial year budget 

adjustments process and the production of the Adjustments 

Appropriation Bill, and the accompanying Adjusted Estimates 

of National Expenditure, published in October 2013. The unit 

is also responsible for budget reform, and leads or participates 

in interdepartmental forums as well as representing South 

Africa internationally in this capacity. South Africa was the 

main venue of the unit’s 2013/14 international engagements. 

Presentations were made in Kenya in August and September 

2013, at a Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative (CABRI) 

annual conference and as an expert advisor reviewing Kenya’s 

programme budgeting reform respectively.

The Public Finance Statistics unit produces fiscal data and 

public finance statistics within a consistent accounting 

framework which complies with national and international 

reporting requirements. These statistics support the budget 

and its auxiliary processes. The aim is to maintain and improve 

the transparency and accountability of government finance 

data used for budget publications and for submission to 

international organisations such as the IMF. 

The unit produced consolidated government accounts for 

the 2013 MTBPS and the 2014 Budget Review, providing 

information on the operating account, the capital account 

and a consolidated financing position, whilst ensuring close 

alignment with the IMF’s GFS presentation format. All newly 

listed entities were included in the consolidation. To further 

improve the verifiability of cash budgets for public entities, 

detailed cash flow data (direct method) was used in the 

consolidation. The unit also processed the data for estimating 

the preliminary spending numbers and calculating the 

preliminary budget balance for 2013/14.

The Standard Chart of Accounts (SCOA) committee, co-

managed by the unit and the Technical Support Services unit 

in the Office of the Accountant General, published a number 

of classification circulars and participated in Basic Accounting 

System (BAS) User forums. The chart was reviewed to 

eliminate classification inconsistences by the departments, by 

automating some of the category links when using the chart.  

Training material was revised to ensure alignment with the 

SCOA changes introduced on 1 April 2013 and with the new 

South Africans Qualifications Authority (SAQA) approved 

SCOA unit standards. A first draft of a revised Reference Guide 

to the Economic Reporting Format that supports the use of 

SCOA was also compiled, aligning it with the changes. 

The International Development Cooperation (IDC) unit is 

responsible for coordinating, mobilising and managing 

official development assistance (ODA). The IDC enhances 

ODA coordination through continuous engagement with 

development partners on various platforms including annual 

consultations, high level bilateral meetings and official visits. 

Within government departments, the IDC has enhanced 

coordination by organising national and provincial ODA 

coordinators’ fora and has facilitated greater accountability 

and transparency by reporting on ODA programmes to the 

budget allocation decision-making process. Through a series 

of community of practice sessions and manuals, the unit has 

also developed capacity within line departments to report 

on and manage budget support programmes. Within the last 

year, the unit has finalised the agreements for the €100 million 

Infrastructure Investment Programme for South Africa (IIPSA) 

and the €25 million Socio-Economic Justice for All (SEJA) 

between the European Union and South Africa. 

In the last year, the South African government received 

R2.3 billion in the form of grants from bilateral international 

development partners. These grants support development 

efforts across many sectors of government.

The Public Entities Governance unit implements the 

recommendations of the public entities governance review 

framework. It provides institutional support to various public 

entities, both at the national and provincial spheres of government, 

on a variety of issues. During the reporting year, the unit assisted 

with preparing consolidated financial accounts and maintaining 

budget databases and administrative records of the general 

government sector including public entities, as well as developing 

applicable remuneration frameworks. The unit continued efforts 

to enhance the regulatory environment for the governance 

and management of public entities, taking into account various 

perspectives on the legislative, financial, human resources and 

other applicable frameworks. The unit provided support to various 
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departmental review committees on public entities reporting to 

Ministers and consulted with departments on budgets and on 

policy related matters concerning public entities. 

The purpose of the Public Sector Remuneration Analysis and 

Forecasting unit is to provide timely analysis and policy 

advice about the fiscal impact of government compensation 

spending and changes in policy. 

Key areas of work in 2013/14 included deliberation of the 

report on options available for designing an appropriate 

pension benefit structure for traditional leaders, which was 

completed in November 2012. At present, further discussions 

on the report are on hold pending the outcome of ongoing 

broader consultations relating to features of the Political Office 

Bearers Pension Fund (POBPF) between the National Treasury, 

the Independent Commission for the Remuneration of Public 

Office Bearers and the Legislative Sector Forum. The Minister 

of Finance gave approval for the process to amalgamate 

the Temporary Employees Pension Fund (TEPF) with the 

Government Employees Pension Fund (GEPF). The process 

for considering implementation details, including a full data 

audit, and rules governing the transfer, communication with 

employers, and calculation of transfer values is presently 

underway. The amalgamation will be effective following 

the date of implementation to be approved by the Minister 

of Finance. It is envisaged that the amalgamation should be 

completed by 30 September 2014. The amalgamation of the 

Associated Institutions Pension Fund (AIPF) with the GEPF has 

not yet been approved, owing to the pending legal process to 

amend the AIPF Act (No. 41 of 1963) to authorise the Minister 

of Finance to approve the amalgamation. 

The unit has finalised the development of a draft report 

on pre-funding alternatives to address the post-retirement 

medical assistance obligation in the public service. The report 

is currently undergoing analysis within the National Treasury 

and will be discussed further with relevant stakeholders.

The unit has completed a statutory actuarial valuation 

draft report on state liabilities in respect of post-retirement 

healthcare benefits. The report was issued without Police 

Services Medical Scheme  (POLMED) details. It is undergoing 

analysis and will be further updated and distributed following 

access to the POLMED data and the implementation of the 

revised medical assistance policy for the public service. The 

implementation details of the revised dispensation are under 

negotiation in the Public Service Coordinating Bargaining 

Council (PSCBC). 

Public Finance

The Public Finance division oversees budgetary planning 

and execution in national departments, provides advice and 

analysis on sectoral policies and programmes, monitors public 

expenditure and advises on financial and budgetary aspects 

of public policy and spending proposals. The division provides 

advice to the Director-General, the Deputy Minister and the 

Minister on cabinet memoranda and public finance issues that 

require ministerial concurrence or National Treasury approval. 

It is the primary link between the National Treasury and other 

national departments and government agencies.

The Administrative Services unit oversees the finances and 

budgets of a number of central government departments and 

entities. Key areas of work in 2013/14 included:

•	 The Presidency: the unit worked closely with the department on 

its budget programme structure and on managing spending. 

The unit also formed part of the task team responsible for 

reviewing the National Youth Development Act.   

•	 Department of Monitoring and Evaluation: the unit worked 

closely with the department on its budget programme 

structure and facilitated funding for the newly established 

Government Performance Information Unit.

•	 Department of International Relations and Cooperation: 

the unit provided advice and technical support to the 

department on the acquisition strategy and implication 

of various financing arrangements for the construction 

of the Pan African Parliament and affiliated structures; 

contributed to the review of the foreign exchange 

management framework; and participated in expenditure 

and performance reviews of foreign missions. 

•	 Department of Home Affairs: the unit assisted the 

department to roll out the live capture system to 27 district 

offices. The department was thus able to issue the Smart ID 

card from July 2013.  
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•	 Statistics South Africa: the unit assisted with monitoring 

spending on household surveys. It assisted Stats SA with its 

PPP project to obtain new head office accommodation. By the 

end of 2013/14, the tender for the project had been awarded 

and construction of the building is planned to start in 2014/15. 

•	 Department of Public Works: the unit reviewed the 

department’s draft turn-around plan and provided 

extensive comment on the conceptualisation and 

resourcing of various stabilisation and transformation 

projects; provided guidance on the operationalisation of 

the Property Management Trading Entity; coordinated 

processes that led to the signing of a funding agreement 

between the government of South Africa and the African 

Development Bank for the development of a one-stop 

policy for South African border-posts; participated in 

reviewing the performance of the Expanded Public Works 

programme and the development of a plan for the third 

phase of the programme; advised the Independent 

Development Trust on an appropriate long-term business 

and funding model; advised the department and relevant 

stakeholders on processes that need to be followed 

for shifting custodial responsibilities for endowment 

properties to the Department of Defence; and advised on 

adjustments to the baseline of the department necessary 

to bring its budget in line with its spending capacity. 

•	 National School of Government: the unit provided technical 

support for the transformation of the Public Administration 

Leadership and Management Academy into the National 

School of Government (NSG); and provided extensive 

comments and technical advice on the strategy as well as 

the business and funding models for the NSG.

•	 Department of Public Service and Administration: the 

unit provided extensive feedback on proposals for the 

establishment of the Office on Standards and Compliance 

and the Anti-Corruption Bureau; advised the department 

on the need to bring spending in the Administration 

programme in line with its budget; coordinated the 

derivation of a more realistic budget for the Presidential 

Remuneration Review Committee.

The Justice and Protection Services unit oversees planning, 

expenditure and service delivery by departments in this sector. 

Key achievements for 2013/14 included:

•	 Department of Correctional Services: the unit commented 

on the Draft White Paper on Remand Detention in South 

Africa, and provided advice on a business case for the 

establishment of a Professional Council for Corrections 

as well as the application for the transformation of 

departmental production workshops into commercially 

operated production factories.

•	 Departments of Defence and Military Veterans: the unit 

successfully motivated for a budget allocation for paying 

benefits to military veterans; provided guidance and 

advice to the Department of Military Veterans on the draft 

military veterans benefits regulations and recommended 

approval of the regulations; and assisted the Department 

of Defence to secure funds for peacekeeping operations in 

the Central African Republic and for promoting maritime 

security on the east coast of Africa.

•	 Department of Justice and Constitutional Development: the 

unit provided advice and inputs to Legal Aid South Africa 

on the revision of the Legal Aid Act (1969); and continued 

to give support and guidance to the Department of Justice 

and Constitutional Development on the draft regulations 

relating to educational assistance for victims identified 

by the Truth and Reconciliation Commission, and their 

subsequent finalisation. 

•	 Office of the Chief Justice: the unit continued to provide 

guidance and support to the newly established 

department, particularly with regard to the transfer 

of functions from the Department of Justice and 

Constitutional Development, the configuration of its 

2013/14 and 2014 MTEF budget baseline, and revisions to 

its approved programme structure.

•	 Independent Police Investigative Directorate (IPID): the unit 

provided detailed inputs to the IPID on its 2014/15 annual 

performance plan and provided technical advice to the 

department on the revision of its budget programme 

structure in line with the Budget Programme Structure 

Guidelines (2010). 

•	 Department of Police: the unit provided comment to the 

Department of International Relations and Cooperation 

(DIRCO) and the South African Police Service (SAPS) 

on the draft funding agreement between South 

Africa and the United Nations Interregional Crime and 

Justice Research Institute (UNICRI) for undertaking a 
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comprehensive study of the possible links between 

transnational organized crime, other criminal activities 

and the illicit trafficking of precious metals. The unit 

also provided comment and/or inputs on the following 

policy documents and reports: Green Paper on Policing, 

Victims of Crime Survey, Criminal Law (Forensic 

Procedures) Amendment Bill, 20 Year Review Synthesis 

Report, Geographic Accessibility Study, amongst others. 

The unit further provided and consolidated comments 

received from other units within the National Treasury 

on the Private Security Industry Regulatory Authority 

Amendment Bill.

•	 Civilian Secretariat for Police: the unit provided technical 

support and advice to the secretariat on the budgeting, 

reporting and accounting requirements that need to 

be in place for it to operate as a designated department 

independent from the Department of Police; and provided 

detailed comments on the department’s 2014/15 annual 

performance plan.

•	 Integrated Justice Cluster: the unit provided advice to 

the Minister of Finance on the financial implications 

of the implementation of the Minimum Sentencing 

Law, produced 2012/13 reports on the performance of 

the criminal justice system departments linking it with 

budgeting, and provided advice on the project plans 

to enhance the performance and operations of the 

criminal justice sector and the integrated justice system 

modernisation programme. 

The Education and Related Departments unit monitors and advises 

on a number of functions implemented largely by provinces and 

public entities. During the year, the unit assisted with improved 

monitoring of expenditure and service delivery and with 

reviews of current departmental policy and implementation 

approaches. Key areas of work in the year included:

•	 Department of Basic Education: the unit served on the 

Steering Committee for the Expenditure and Performance 

Review of In-Service Training (INSET) for teachers; assisted 

and advised the department on improving the delivery 

of school infrastructure; advised the department on the 

drafting of the regulations related to norms and standards 

for school infrastructure; and advised on the establishment 

of the National Education Collaboration Trust. 

•	 Department of Higher Education and Training: the unit 

participated in discussions on the funding of university 

student accommodation; advised on developing a 

feasibility study for the new universities in Mpumalanga 

and the Northern Cape; and assisted and advised on 

transferring responsibility for the adult education and 

training function and Further Education and Training 

Colleges function to the national Department of Higher 

Education and Training. 

•	 Department of Sport and Recreation: the unit assisted and 

advised the department and host cities with planning 

and budgeting for the African Nations Championships 

(CHAN) 2014; commented and advised on the impact 

of the planned legislation to ban alcohol advertising 

and sponsorship of sport and the arts; and assisted the 

department with the planned transfer of earmarked 

funding for sport and recreation in the Municipal 

Infrastructure Grant to a sport and recreation infrastructure 

conditional grant. 

•	 Department of Labour: the unit commented on the 

Unemployment Insurance Amendment Bill and especially 

the inclusion of public servants, and made a proposal 

on this which was accepted; commented on the Policy 

on Acceptable Households Chores in respect of Child 

Labour; and advised the department on fast tracking the 

advertising and recruitment of labour inspectors and the 

development of an implementation schedule for taking 

over the provision of IT services.

•	 Department of Arts and Culture: the unit assisted the departments 

of Arts and Culture and Basic Education to determine their 

roles and responsibilities in the provision of dual purpose 

libraries and to develop proposals for the implementation 

of the Mzansi Golden Economy Strategy; participated in the 

expenditure and performance review of language services 

and provided detailed comments on the report; provided 

comments on the Norms and Standards for the Public Library 

Information Services Bill; and advised the Department and staff 

of the Auditor-General on the classification of expenditure 

from unauthorised to irregular expenditure.

The Health and Social Development Chief Directorate created 

a new indirect grant called the National Health Grant in 

2013/14. Consisting of two components (National Health 

Insurance and Health Infrastructure), the grant is designed to 
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improve spending and performance on general-practitioner 

contracting, development of a new hospital reimbursement 

mechanism and health infrastructure projects. Much of the 

unit’s focus during the year was on monitoring expenditure 

and performance of the two components of this grant. The unit 

prepared a discussion document on financing options for the 

NHI and had a number of engagements with the Department 

of Health to discuss NHI policy proposals. In the preparation of 

the 2014/15 budget, a new component of the National Health 

Grant was created to provide for the introduction of the new 

human papilloma virus (HPV) vaccine which protects against 

cervical cancer. In addition, additional funding was provided 

for continued expansion of the antiretroviral treatment (ART) 

programme, the South African Demographic Health Survey 

and the Office of Health Standards Compliance (which will 

become a public entity in 2015/16). 

The unit refined the projection model for social grants and 

used it to inform the 2014 social grant increases and budgets. 

Progress was made in developing options for universalising 

the old age grant.  The research process on welfare services 

financing is progressing well, with the first phase focussing on 

improving the administration of transfers to NPOs. The unit 

supported the implementation of the revised programme 

structure for provincial Departments of Social Development. 

It also participated in the NPO registration Expenditure and 

Performance Review (EPR) project and discussions were held 

with National Department of Social Development on taking 

the recommendations forward. The unit engaged the National 

Department of Social Development on the outcome of the 

review of the National Development Agency and how its 

mandate should be focussed. The unit provided extensive input 

into the Early Childhood Development policy and programme 

and submitted input on the costing of this policy to Cabinet. 

The unit also provided Cabinet with input on significant policy 

issues around substance abuse, social crime prevention, food 

security and the Children’s Amendment Bill. The unit provided 

extensive input into the Medium Term Strategic Framework 

(MTSF) chapter on Social Protection.   

The Economic Services unit works with government 

departments and agencies and analyses policy proposals, 

strategies, funding requests and expenditure plans of 

departments and state entities responsible for regulatory 

oversight, economic development, employment, growth, 

science and technology, tourism, environmental protection, 

land reform, rural development, agriculture, forestry, fisheries, 

trade and industrial development.

Below are some of the unit’s key activities in the reporting year: 

•	 Department of Environmental Affairs: the unit was a member 

of the Green Fund Management Committee that supports 

green initiatives to assist South Africa’s transition to a low 

carbon, resource efficient and climate resilient development 

path delivering high impact economic, environmental 

and social benefits; and of the Project Management Team 

that assesses progress on the Expanded Public Works 

Environmental and Tourism Sector Programmes in terms 

job creation and spending progress. The unit advised on 

and assessed investment projects for PFMA compliance in 

environmental, science and technology fields. 

•	 Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries: the unit 

commented on the Agriculture Policy Action Plan; and 

assessed and gave input to the Micro-Agricultural Financial 

Institutions of South Africa (MAFISA) impact study.

•	 Department of Rural Development and Land Reform: the unit 

assisted the department to speed up the restitution process 

and the Comprehensive Rural Development Programme 

(CRDP) by assisting the Department for Performance 

Monitoring and Evaluation (DPME) with its review on 

Restitution and Comprehensive Rural Development 

Programme (CRDP). It continued to support the department 

with its National Rural Youth Services Crops programme, 

which has trained 14 000 rural young people to date.

•	 Department of Mineral Resources: the unit commented 

on the draft amendments of the Mine Health and Safety 

Amendment Bill. Inputs were also given on the draft 

technical regulations on petroleum resources including 

shale gas exploration, following the approval to lift 

the moratorium on the acceptance and processing of 

applications to explore shale gas to allow normal 

exploration (excluding actual hydraulic fracturing).

•	 Department of Economic Development: the unit supported 

small business financing through the Economic 

Competitiveness Support Programme to the Small 

Enterprise Finance Agency; and provided comment on 
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the progress of the implementation strategy for the Youth 

Employment Accord.

•	 Department of Trade and Industry: the unit supported 

industrial development through the Economic 

Competitiveness Support Programme for the 

Manufacturing Competitiveness Enhancement 

Programme and Special Economic Zones. It served on 

adjudication committees of various incentive schemes, 

and participated in the Expenditure Review of the Industrial 

Development Zones in order to inform future policy roll 

out. The unit provided comment on the latest iteration of 

the Industrial Policy Action Plan.

•	 Department of Public Enterprises: the unit provided assistance 

to the capacity building programme of the Department of 

Public Enterprises to strengthen its oversight through filling 

strategic positions within the department. It participated 

in the department’s task teams to develop strategies to 

enhance its strategies and operations.

The Urban Development and Infrastructure unit provides budget, 

policy and expenditure management and support to national 

departments and the 50 associated public entities involved 

in infrastructure provision including transport, energy, water 

and sanitation, telecommunications, municipal infrastructure, 

cooperative governance and human settlements. 

The unit made progress in the following areas during the year:

•	 Finalised the funding framework and fiscal commitments 

for the new rolling stock procurement programme of 

the Passenger Rail Agency; supported the drafting of 

the Transport Economic Regulator Bill; introduced a new 

allocation formula for the Human Settlement Development 

Grant to align allocations with the new census data; and 

created a new grant to support capacity building in urban 

metropolitan municipalities to support the assignment of 

the housing function.

•	 Supported the Department of Communications in 

finalising the SA Connect Broadband Policy and Strategy 

as approved by Cabinet in 2013, and the funding 

arrangements for subsidies to facilitate the broadcasting 

digital migration programme. The unit also engaged in 

finalising the National Infrastructure Development Bill to 

ensure alignment with the PFMA.

•	 Supported the finalisation of the financing mechanism 

for acid mine drainage and the programme elements 

for the biofuel subsidy programme.The National Capital 

Projects unit conducted in-depth assessments of feasibility 

studies for major national infrastructure reports. Other 

responsibilities included monitoring the progress of large 

projects/programme builds; analyzing and problem-

solving infrastructure delivery constraints; and developing 

frameworks for financing public infrastructure investment. 

The unit completed the update of the liquid fuels sector 

investment study and several studies of the feasibility of gas, 

nuclear and regional hydro for electricity generation; continued 

to monitor the electricity sector and particularly the Eskom 

build programme; reviewed the feasibility of projects in the 

transport sector; started a comprehensive review of environment 

expenditure on the budget; completed a review of the impact 

on delivery of various procurement regulations, and an analysis of 

funding and pricing mechanisms for various projects and sectors; 

and drafted a new chapter in the Budget Review on infrastructure. 

A project appraisal methodology for capital projects was finalized, 

and was supported by training in cost-benefit analysis, studies 

in various aspects of project costing and the development of a 

framework for financing public infrastructure.

The National Capital Projects unit conducts in-depth assessments 

of feasibility studies for major national infrastructure reports. 

Other responsibilities include monitoring the progress of large 

projects/programme builds; analyzing and problem-solving 

infrastructure delivery constraints; and developing frameworks 

for financing public infrastructure investment. 

During the 2013/14 financial year, the unit completed 

several in-depth studies on the key energy generation 

options for South Africa, both short- and long-term; it 

undertook analysis of funding and pricing issues relating 

to the electricity sector; participated in and advised on 

several project steering committees looking at developing 

large energy projects; continued with a study updating 

investment options in the liquid fuels sector and completed 

a first iteration; internally delivered quarterly updates on the 

progress of large projects; and assisted with analyzing the 

feasibility of a number of transport projects.
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Intergovernmental Relations

The Intergovernmental Relations (IGR) division coordinates 

fiscal and financial relations between the national, provincial 

and local spheres of government, an important function given 

that R498.6 billion or 52.6 per cent of non-interest expenditure 

in 2013/14 was allocated to provinces and municipalities. The 

bulk of this expenditure went to priority programmes such as 

education, health care and the provision of free basic services. 

The division coordinates inputs to the division of revenue, the 

annual Division of Revenue Bill and the development of the 

framework for managing conditional grants. The 2013 Division 

of Revenue Act (DORA) included new clauses requiring plans 

for provincial infrastructure grants for health and education to 

be submitted to national departments as a condition for future 

grant allocations to fund those plans. A new local government 

equitable share was introduced in 2013/14, following a 

consultative review process undertaken in 2013. The new 

formula allocates funding for free basic services for the 59 per 

cent of South African households that reported having an 

income of less than the value of two old age grants. The new 

formula also allocates larger amounts to rural municipalities that 

have limited ability to raise their own revenues. The 2013 division 

of revenue included updating the provincial equitable share with 

data from the 2011 Census. The updated data reflected some 

significant changes in the distribution of demand for services 

across the provinces; as a result, the updated formula allocates 

significant increases to those provinces with the fastest growing 

demand for services. To cushion the impact of these changes on 

the allocations to provinces with slower growth in demand (and 

hence slower growth in allocations), an additional R4.2 billion has 

been allocated to these provinces over the 2013 MTEF. 

The division coordinates the implementation of the City Support 

Programme (CSP) designed to respond to demands from 

metropolitan municipalities for an integrated programme of 

assistance in addressing their challenges of inclusive economic 

growth and poverty reduction. 2013/14 was a start of the 

implementation phase of the CSP and much effort was focused 

on defining the desired outcomes, performance targets, 

strategies and plans and support needs in each city. The activities 

implemented included the determination of built environment 

performance indicators agreed with cities, the development 

of Built Environment Performance Plans (BEPPs) and the 

development of City Implementation Support Plans (CISPs) based 

on individualised support needs assessments. Other activities 

included the continuation of the Executive Leadership Programme 

for the metropolitan municipalities focusing on public transport 

and spatial transformation. The technical focus of the programme 

was on the interface between planning and regulation, finance, 

institutional arrangements and operational and investment. In 

partnership with the National Planning Commission, a Spatial 

Targeting workshop was held to review South Africa’s past and 

present initiatives to promote local and regional development 

through spatially-targeted investment and to find ways of 

better supporting inclusive growth at local and regional levels, 

maximising the returns from public interventions and reducing 

the risk of failure. The workshop involved approximately 80 

representatives from all spheres of government and most sectors, 

together with academics, development partners and experts 

from China, Brazil and the European Union.

The Integrated City Development Grant (ICDG) was 

established in 2013/14 to provide incentives for metropolitan 

municipalities to integrate and focus their infrastructure 

investments within identified integration zones within cities; 

metropolitan municipalities will also be assisted to plan and 

programme a series of catalytic investments within these zones. 

During the 2013/14 financial year, R40 million was allocated to 

metropolitan municipalities that obtained unqualified audit 

opinions in the 2010/11 financial year and achieved acceptable 

levels of capital expenditure performance. 

The National Treasury has developed, tested and implemented 

an Infrastructure Delivery Management System (IDMS) 

across the provinces; this clarifies and defines public sector 

infrastructure delivery processes and sub-processes. To 

standardise infrastructure delivery in the country. A similar 

process to customise the IDMS for local government was 

initiated during the reporting year. Most of the work of 

customizing and implementing IDMS in local government will 

be undertaken in the coming financial year. 

The Infrastructure Skills Development Grant (ISDG) is a 

conditional grant designed to expand and deepen the built 
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environment skills pipeline for municipalities. Seventeen 

municipalities are participating in the programme, with three 

partnering with Water Boards in training graduates. A total 

of 419 graduates are being trained in various skill categories 

in line with the requirements for professionalization by the 

respective statutory councils. During the financial year, 

a Steering Committee was convened to give strategic 

direction to the National Treasury on professionalizing 

graduates in various skill categories. The Steering 

Committee is composed of representatives of various sector 

departments, statutory councils and voluntary bodies. The 

division also developed the ISDG policy and guideline 

documents and revised service level agreements with the 

participating municipalities. 

With respect to monitoring of municipal budgets, during the 

reporting period IGR continued the roll out of the municipal 

budget and reporting regulations with the aim of improving 

the quality of information received from municipalities. Key 

to this is improving oversight over local government budget 

legislative prescripts by national and provincial treasuries. All 

278 municipalities have compiled their 2014/15 Medium Term 

Review Expenditure Frameworks in line with the MBRR. There 

has been a particular focus on ensuring that all municipalities 

complete the MBRR supporting schedules and ensure that 

their budgets documents articulate the strategic and service 

delivery objectives of the IDP. This has enabled quarterly 

publication of consolidated municipal financial performance 

reports, in line with Section 71 of the MFMA. Furthermore, 

the National Treasury publishes a consolidated set of budget 

information for all municipalities annually. This practice is 

aligned with the MFMA and has been institutionalised over 

the past six years. The reporting facilitates transparency, 

better in-year management and oversight of budgets, 

making these reports into management tools and early 

warning mechanisms so that councils can improve their 

oversight role. 

The division continued to improve the conditional grant 

monitoring framework for local government. All 278 

municipalities’ unspent conditional grants were reconciled and 

verified for the 2012/13 financial year. Section 21 of the DORA 

was invoked in offsetting previous years’ unspent conditional 

grants from underperforming municipalities and returning 

them to the National Revenue Fund (NRF), with a total of R1.6 

billion returned. This is higher than the R733 million recorded 

in 2012/13. The division met with 53 municipalities to discuss 

the offsetting of unspent conditional grants. During 2013/14, 

National Treasury instituted a Task Team to support Mopani 

District municipality in Limpopo on the management of its 

conditional grants. The work will continue in the new financial 

year. National Treasury continues annually to identify and 

support eligible municipalities in the management of their 

conditional grants. 

During the reporting period, two engagements, on the Municipal 

Budget and Benchmark Engagement (MBBE) and the Mid-year 

Budget and Performance Assessment, with the 17 non-delegated 

municipalities were undertaken as planned. The MBBE marks 

the sixth consecutive engagement with the 17 non-delegated 

municipalities. Analysis and feedback were circulated to all 17 

to ensure that good-quality and sufficient reporting is achieved, 

in line with the Batho Pele principles. Annually, improvements 

are noted in municipalities’ understanding of how to apply the 

funding compliance methodology and the requirements for 

funded municipal budgets. IGR facilitated the replication of the 

MBBE exercise to be conducted with the 261 non-delegated 

municipalities, via the  provincial treasuries. These activities are 

envisaged to constructively support municipalities to improve 

their execution of financial management and strategic planning 

functions. The ultimate aim would be for municipalities to 

align these planning and management functions with  service 

delivery objectives. 

During the reporting period, a draft regulation on a Standard 

Chart of Accounts (SCOA) for local government was published 

and followed by planning for conducting on change 

management and piloting. The IGR unit has processed over 

2000 comments received after the publication of the draft 

SCOA and has refined the classification framework. The 

unit held SCOA workshops with the following stakeholders: 

provincial treasuries; several national departments including 

the Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional 

Affairs (CoGTA), 44 district municipalities with their local 

municipalities, 8 metropolitan municipalities, SALGA, AGSA 

and professional bodies.
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MFMA circulars No. 70 and 72 were circulated and published 

on the National Treasury’s website. The circulars provide 

municipalities with guidance on preparing the 2014/15 

municipal Medium-Term Revenue and Expenditure Framework 

(MTREF) budget. To improve the credibility of reported 

performance information, Circular 72 requires municipalities 

and their entities to submit annual financial statements to the 

national and provincial treasuries and other organs of state 

certified by the Auditor-General.

The division continued to support provinces with preparing 

their budgets and monitoring their expenditure. The budget 

benchmarking exercise largely ensured the credibility of 

budgets, especially in the critical areas of health and education. 

There was particular emphasis on proper funding of Learner 

and Teacher Support Material (LTSM) and teacher salaries; on 

funding non-negotiabless such as medicines; and on funding 

NGOs in the social development sector. 

Provincial performance monitoring activities continued with 

timely quarterly publication of financial data for public and 

media use. This process was strengthened in 2013/14 with the 

publication of non-financial information for the agriculture, 

health and social development sectors.  The division also 

provided quarterly briefings to Parliament on the fiscal position 

of all nine provinces and participated in the public hearings of 

the National Council of Provinces (NCOP). 

To guide best practice in building capacity at provincial level, 

the division has developed an Integrated Strategic Support 

Plan (ISSP) for the provinces. Phase 1 of a programme to 

improve provinces’ financial management has been initiated 

in the KwaZulu-Natal, North West and Western Cape provinces. 

Technical support is provided through European Union (EU) 

donor funding. 

A further capacity building initiative with provincial treasuries 

was initiated through the Public Expenditure and Financial 

Accountability (PEFA) assessments in the Free State, KwaZulu-

Natal, Limpopo and Western Cape provinces. The aim is to 

assess the level of financial management capacity and to 

initiate corrective action where required. 

Support provided during the reporting year also included 

permanent deployment of staff to the Limpopo Provincial 

Treasury where a Section 100 intervention is in progress; and 

assistance with addressing critical system failures in the Eastern 

Cape, Free State and Gauteng provinces.

Variances between planned and actual achievements for this 

Programme relate to:

•	 Concluding the review of municipal own revenue sources:

	 - 	T he review is a process of collaboration with various 

stakeholders and therefore requires extensive 

consultations. In lieu of this, the timeframes for finalising 

the report on initial reforms to municipal own revenues 

were extended to ensure that all stakeholders are 

properly consulted. To date, a working group consisting 

of metropolitan municipalities, the Department of 

Cooperative Governance, FFC, SALGA and National 

Treasury has been established to undertake the review, 

and desk-top analysis work has begun.

	 - 	T he draft development charges policy framework, 

draft Municipal Fiscal Powers and Functions 

Amendment Bill and draft regulations on municipal 

development charges have been reviewed in 

line with the outcomes of internal consultations. 

Processes are underway to commence consultations 

with external stakeholders. 

•	 Conducting of budget assessment and in-year monitoring 

workshops for all provinces. Workshops had been 

undertaken for all except the Gauteng provincial officials. 

Challenges were faced in this regard and will be resolved 

in due course.

•	 Publish Local Government Budgets and Expenditure 

Review (LGBER) by end of October 2013. The scope of this 

exercise was expanded and as a result a change in the 

scheduled date for publication of the LGBER was approved.
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Purpose: Prudent management of government’s financial 

assets and liabilities.

Measurable objective: Manage government’s annual 

funding programme in a manner that ensures prudent cash 

management and an optimal portfolio of debt and other 

fiscal obligations. Promote and enforce prudent financial 

management of state-owned entities through financial 

analysis and oversight.

There are six sub-programmes:

•	 Management provides strategic guidance and direction 

to the overall programme, including management of the 

divisional budget.

•	 Oversight and Governance of State-Owned Enterprises seeks 

to oversee and enable state-owned enterprises to meet 

government’s policy objectives in a financially and fiscally 

sustainable manner, as well as to promote sound corporate 

governance.

•	 Government Debt Management provides for government’s 

long-term funding needs, manages domestic and foreign 

debt and contributes to the development of domestic 

capital and retail markets.

•	 Financial Operations provides for government’s short-term 

funding needs, the prudent management of cash, the 

efficient accounting for debt and investment transactions, 

the supply of reliable systems and the provision of quality 

information.

•	 Strategy and Risk Management develops and maintains a 

risk management framework for cash investments, debt 

and contingent liabilities of the State.

•	 Financial Investments provides funding mainly for the 

recapitalisation of Eskom and the Land and Agricultural 

Development Bank of South Africa.

SERVICE DELIVERY 			 
OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS
Recent outputs
On an annual basis, the Oversight and Governance of State-

Owned Enterprises unit reviews the corporate plans of all public 

entities listed in Schedule 2 and 3B of the PFMA, including 

some selected Schedule 3A entities. In addition to assessing 

their alignment with government’s priorities, financial 

sustainability and soundness of governance, the review 

aims to identify possible risks proactively so that appropriate 

mitigating actions can be taken. Similarly, the public entities’ 

performance is evaluated through a review of their annual 

reports. In 2013/14, 29 corporate plans and 33 annual financial 

statements of public entities and DFIs, and 12 corporate plans 

and annual reports of Water Boards, were reviewed.

The unit analyzed the remuneration trends in Schedule 2 

public entities against the State-Owned Entities Remuneration 

Guide (SOERG) and Water Boards against the Water Affairs 

Remuneration Policy, and shared the findings with shareholder 

departments. The finalization of the PIC and the SASRIA 

Memorandum of Incorporation in compliance with the new 

Companies Act was also completed in this period.

Requests from public entities for funding, guarantees and 

borrowing limits were analysed. No new funding allocations 

were made to public entities. Approval of domestic borrowing 

limits for Rand Water, Umngeni Water, Mhlathuze Water, Pelledrif 

Water, Sedibeng Water and the Trans-Caledon Tunnel Authority, 

as well as a foreign borrowing limit for Transnet, were granted.

The tenor of the existing R5 billion guarantee to SAA was 

extended to become a perpetual guarantee. A R1.5 billion 

guarantee was approved for the Land Bank. The financial 

performance and progress in relation to the turnaround 

strategy of all public entities with guarantees, continued to be 

monitored closely and reported on a quarterly basis.

The unit consolidated the capital expenditure and borrowing plans 

of the public entities and monitored and reported progress against 

these plans on a quarterly basis. State-Owned Companies (SOCs) 

spent approximately R120 billion on infrastructure against a budget of 

R125 billion, translating to 96 per cent of spending against plans. 

As required in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act 

(MFMA), the National Treasury provided written comments to 

each of the Water Boards regarding proposed tariff adjustments. 

A briefing was made to the Parliamentary Portfolio Committee 

on the Water Boards’ tariffs and performance. Notifications in 
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terms of Section 54(2) of the PFMA relating to major transactions 

being undertaken by public entities were analysed.

The Oversight and Governance of State-Owned Enterprises unit 

also undertook the following activities during 2013/14:

•	 Reviewed the corporate plans, shareholder compacts and 

annual reports of the PIC, SASRIA, DBSA and the Land Bank. 

They were tabled in Parliament by the Minister of Finance.

•	 The Memorandum of Incorporation (MOI) for the PIC and 

SASRIA were finalised. 

•	 A number of policies or amendments to Acts with 

implications for the public entities were considered, and 

comments provided. The focus was particularly on policies 

affecting the energy, transport, ICT and water sectors.  An 

amount of R7.9 billion of capital support for the DBSA over 

the 2013 MTEF period was approved, of which R2.4 billon 

was transferred in 2013/14. An amount of R500 million was 

transferred to the Land Bank as part of its recapitalisation. 

•	 The DBSA’s mandate for infrastructure development was 

extended beyond SADC to the rest of the African countries. 

•	 A review of the treasury management policies of the Land 

Bank and SAX was completed.

•	 The unit participated in work streams and cluster forums 

that contribute to an efficient, competitive and responsive 

economic infrastructure network.

•	 The National Treasury has established a task team to 

work jointly with representatives from labour and the 

private sector to enable increased private investment in 

infrastructure, and the unit was a key contributor. During 

2013/14, the task team undertook a market sounding to 

identify obstacles impeding private investment.

The Government Debt Management unit successfully financed 

the gross borrowing requirement of R208 billion, originally 

budgeted at R215.5 billion. This was financed through the 

issuance of domestic short-term loans (R23 billion), domestic 

long-term loans (R171 billion) and foreign loans (R19.6 billion). 

In addition, government increased cash balances by R5.6 

billion. Investments in retail bonds amounted to R3 billion.

Debt service costs were R101.2 billion agaist a revised budget 

of R100.5 billion. Domestic and foreign loans of R40.8 billion 

were repaid during 2013/14.

A nominal amount of R179.1 billion was issued in domestic 

long-term loan issuance, of which 21 per cent was in inflation-

linked bonds and 79 per cent in fixed-rate bonds. To manage 

refinancing risk at the short end of the yield curve, about 65 

per cent of domestic bond issuance was at the +17 years 

maturities. Also in an effort to smooth the maturity profile, 

three new bonds were introduced during the year, (two fixed-

rate bonds and one inflation-linked bond). The bond switch 

programme reduced the redemption amount of the R201 

(8.75%: 2014) bond by R10.6 billion in 2013/14.

The Financial Operations unit managed cash flows amounting 

to R4.7 trillion in 2013/14, ensuring that government had 

sufficient funds available to meet its daily cash requirements. 

Surplus cash was optimally invested, earning interest equal to 

the South African Benchmark Overnight Rate (SABOR).

The total balance of surplus cash which provinces and some 

public entities are required to invest with the Corporation for 

Public Deposits (CPD) reached a high of R58 billion, making on 

average R23 billion available as bridging finance for the national 

government. As part of government’s on-going broadening of 

the coordination of public sector cash, 25 new accounts were 

added to the public sector portfolio of accounts at the CPD.  

To comply with sound debt management principles of 

transparency and accountability, the unit met all the relevant 

reporting requirements of the PFMA and of the IMF’s Special 

Data Dissemination Standards. Transparency was also enhanced 

by publishing information on the Investor Relations website.

On the systems front, 90 per cent of the functionality for the 

retail debt module has been fully developed and quality 

assurance tested, with user acceptance training commencing 

in preparation for implementation. All payments in respect 

of domestic and foreign debt are now being processed in a 

straight-through manner using SWIFT.

The Strategy and Risk Management unit ensured that government’s 

funding strategy continued to be informed by domestic and 

foreign debt portfolio risk benchmarks; and government’s 

exposure to contingent liabilities, primarily emanating from its 

public sector infrastructure programme, is minimised.



National Treasury Annual Report 2013/14 77

Programme 4

ASSET AND LIABILITY 
MANAGEMENT

The reviewed risk benchmarks were approved in 2013 for 

implementation in 2014/15. This modified set of benchmarks 

separates inflation risk from interest rate risk. The benchmarks 

further introduce additional risk indicators to limit the share of 

short-term debt and debt maturing over the medium-term 

arising from Fixed Rate Bonds (FRBs) and revaluation growth of 

inflation linked bonds (ILBs). 

To characterise how long or short the average maturity 

of government debt portfolio should be, given the trade-

off in the cost and risks of the current debt portfolio and 

of financing government’s future debt obligations, two 

Average-Term-to-Maturity (ATM) indicators have been 

introduced. Due to different cash flow characteristics of 

government debt (fixed, floating or inflation linked), the 

first average term to maturity (ATM1) combines FRBs and 

Treasury Bills (TBs), while the second average term to 

maturity (ATM2) is purely for ILBs.  

In the absence of a foreign currency hedge programme and 

to limit the downside impact of currency depreciation and 

external vulnerability, the foreign debt ratio risk indicator has 

been revised lower and from a range to a limit. This reflects 

government’s decreasing appetite for high risk and volatile 

sources of debt and financing, likely to impact negatively on 

government’s cost and cash flow objectives. The cost and risk 

model for strategic risk benchmarks integrates fiscal, macro 

and market variables as drivers of the cost and volume of 

government debt in a way that supports government’s fiscal 

policy objective of maintaining debt at sustainable levels. 

   

Government debt increased from R1 366 billion in 2012/13 

to R1 585.8 billion in 2013/14, with foreign debt accounting 

for 9.1 per cent of the total loan debt. This is well below the 

new foreign debt risk benchmark of 15 per cent. The share 

of debt maturing within a year was 14.3 per cent against a 

limit of 15.3 per cent. The share of debt maturing in 5 years 

was 14.6 per cent against a limit of 25 per cent. The share 

of inflation-linked debt was 21.3 per cent against a range 

of 20-25 per cent. The average term to maturity of FRBs 

and TBs was 9.9 years against a range of 10-14 years.  The 

average term to maturity of ILBs was 14.8 years against a 

range of 14-17 years.

Government’s guarantee exposure to public entities increased 

to R209.2 billion in 2013/14, from R180.2 billion in 2012/13. 

Eskom makes up 58.5 per cent of the total government 

guarantee portfolio.

During 2013/14, four major credit rating agencies reviewed 

South Africa’s investment grade credit ratings. In July 2013, 

Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) and Ratings and 

Investment Information, Inc. (R&I) affirmed the country’s credit 

ratings at ‘Baa1’ with a negative outlook and ‘A-’ with a stable 

outlook respectively. In the latter part of 2013, Standard & 

Poor’s (S&P) and Fitch Ratings (Fitch) followed by affirming the 

country’s credit rating at ‘BBB’. However, S&P maintained their 

negative outlook while Fitch maintained their stable outlook 

relating to SA’s credit rating.

Notable variances between planned and actual performance 

are listed below:

•	 Providing an annual report to Cabinet on the status of 

government’s contingent liabilities. Whilst the report 

had been drafted, the requirement to table this draft at a 

meeting of the Infrastructure Cluster forum and thereafter 

at MinComBud resulted in an extension of the envisaged 

submission date. It will be submitted for Cabinet 

consideration during the 2014/15 year.

•	 Whilst the gross issuance of R215,5 billion was initially 

estimated for the 2013/14 year, the actual requirement was 

reduced to R208 billion, as a result of the outcomes of the 

requirements of the national budget and the ability to meet 

cash requirements through domestic and foreign loans.

•	 Switch auctions did not yield the target amount of 

R11,6 billion for the year under review. R10.6 billion was 

switched out under the switch auction programme from 

the R201 bond maturing on 21 December 2014, due to 

lesser demand during switch auctions

•	 A country risk policy review, as part of ongoing strategy and 

risk management efforts, was not completed as planned. 

The document was prepared but was not approved in 

2013/14. It will be submitted for approval in 2014/15.
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Programme 5

Financial Accounting 
and Reporting

Purpose: To promote and enforce transparency and effective 

management of revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities by 

departments, public entities, constitutional institutions and 

local government.  

Measurable objectives: To facilitate accountability, 

governance and oversight by promoting transparent, 

economic, efficient and effective management of revenue, 

expenditure, assets and liabilities in the public sector.

The programme consists of the following sub-programmes:

•	 Programme Management provides support for planning, 

monitoring and delivering the programme’s activities.  

•	 Office of the Chief Procurement Officer aims to modernise 

the state procurement system to be fair, equitable, 

transparent, competitive and cost-effective; enable the 

efficient, economic, effective and transparent utilisation 

of financial and other resources, including state assets, 

for improved service delivery; and promote, support 

and enforce the transparent and effective management 

of state procurement and the sound stewardship of 

government assets and resources. This subprogramme 

absorbed the Supply Chain Policy subprogramme in 

2013/14. 

•	 Financial Systems updates financial management systems 

to comply with the Public Finance Management Act (1999) 

and GRAP.  

•	 Financial Reporting for National Accounts for the National 

Revenue Fund and the Reconstruction and Development 

Fund provide banking services for national government 

and support to each sphere of government in 

implementing the financial reporting frameworks and in 

preparing consolidated financial statements.

•	 Financial Management Policy and Compliance Improvement 

assists with improving financial management; developing 

reporting frameworks in line with international and local 

best practice; developing and implementing accounting 

policies; monitoring compliance with public finance 

legislation; and improving financial management, internal 

audit and risk management capacity within government. It 

also provides performance auditing and forensic auditing 

capacity to the public sector.

•	 Audit Statutory Bodies covers shortfalls in audit fees in 

statutory bodies and municipalities in terms of the Auditor 

General Act (1995).

•	 Service Charges: Commercial Banks provides for bank service 

charges related to departments’ deposit accounts.

The programme contributes towards the aims of Outcome 

12 (An efficient, effective and development-oriented public 

service), Output 3 (Business processes, systems, decision rights 

and accountability), Output 4 (Corruption tackled effectively), 

Outcome 9 (A responsive, accountable, effective and efficient 

local government system), and Output 6 (Improvement to 

municipal financial and administrative capability).

SERVICE DELIVERY 		
OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS
Recent outputs
The programme is organised into two divisions: the Office 

of the Chief Procurement Officer and the Office of the 

Accountant-General.

Office of the Accountant-General
Technical Support Services: During the reporting year, the unit 

finalised the development of accounting manuals supporting 

the application of the Modified Cash Standard by national 

and provincial departments. Significant time was given to 

ensuring that affected parties understand the requirements 

of the Standard by responding to queries, and by publishing 

answers to frequently asked questions and training slides. The 

unit also updated the existing implementation guidelines on 

the Standards of GRAP and participated in discussion about, 

and responded to queries on, the application of the Standards. 

Another important initiative was the development of Standard 

Operating Procedures (SOPs) on financial management. These 

outline departmental policies and processes to improve 

accountability, efficiency and effective administration within 

the institution.  The SOPs will be rolled out in conjunction with 

the new Treasury Regulations.

Accounting Support and Reporting: During the 2013/14 

financial year, the unit prepared and tabled the consolidated 

annual financial statements for national departments and 
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public entities. It also prepared and tabled the annual 

financial statements of the Reconstruction and Development 

Programme Fund. These financial statements were prepared 

and tabled in Parliament within the timeframes required by the 

PFMA. The unit also monitored and reported on information on 

national revenue and expenditure through reports published 

monthly in terms of Section 32 of the PFMA.  Training and 

accounting support interventions assisted all spheres of 

government to improve financial management.

Internal Audit Support: During the year under review, the 

unit completed 18 reviews of the internal audit functions 

of national and provincial departments and municipalities 

to assess their state of readiness to submit themselves to 

independent external quality assessments, as required by the 

International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal 

Audit. To assist with the transfer of skills, a third of these reviews 

were performed in partnership with the respective provincial 

treasuries. Support plans were put in place with 11 institutions, 

with National Treasury agreeing to provide a range of services 

to enhance the effectiveness of their internal audit units and 

audit committees. The focus on facilitating knowledge-sharing 

continued in this reporting period through hosting the national 

internal audit forums for departments and non-delegated 

municipalities, and participating in the provincial forums for 

provincial departments and delegated municipalities. The unit 

hosted internal audit study tours by representatives of the 

governments of Bangladesh and Indonesia.

Risk Management Support: During this reporting period, 

the unit continued to support government institutions 

to improve risk management, including by seconding 

staff to supplement technical expertise in this area. As in 

previous years, the unit aggressively drove training and skills 

development. An additional 306 officials across government 

completed a risk management course made accessible via 

an  e-learning platform. Over 700 officials attended generic 

training programmes and risk management forums arranged 

by the National Treasury, while 62 board members, municipal 

councillors and members of risk management committees 

attended training programmes specifically developed for 

their needs. The unit hosted a risk management study tour by 

representatives of the government of Zambia.

Capacity Building: During the period under review, the 

unit advanced the implementation of the PFM capacity 

development strategy (CDS) and a number of education, 

training and development (ETD) solutions were developed. 

These included a PFM ETD model, a CFO skills programme, a 

Cash Flow Management course and four unit standard based 

SCM courses. A PFM Stakeholder Management, Marketing and 

Communications Strategy Framework, envisaged to enable 

more effective collaboration between key PFM capacity 

building stakeholders, was finalised during the year. A risk 

management master learning curriculum, skills programme, 

competency dictionary and standardised job descriptions 

were also developed, an important milestone on the path to 

effective public sector financial management. By March 2014, 

4100 learners were registered for attaining the minimum 

competencies for municipalities. The unit facilitated knowledge 

sharing on financial management practices through formal 

platforms, and 862 learners were trained. 

The unit continued to support the development of a pool of 

accounting professionals through the Chartered Accountants 

Academy (CAA), by referring two qualifying candidates 

to existing institutions. It also assisted with mobilizing, 

coordinating and harmonising donor support for public 

finance management capacity building. This resulted in four 

Donor Coordination Forum meetings with key international 

donor agencies as well as the initiation of a number of  donor-

funded PFM capacity building projects. Through donor 

funding, the unit also provided hands-on technical assistance 

to the Office of the Chief Procurement Officer and to the 

provincial treasuries of the North West, Western Cape and 

KwaZulu-Natal provinces.

Governance Monitoring and Compliance: The unit is the custodian 

of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1999 (Act No. 

1 of 1999) and regularly reviews the Treasury Regulations and 

Treasury Instructions to ensure that they are aligned with local 

and international financial management and governance best 

practice. The unit continues to analyse the audit outcomes of 

national and provincial PFMA compliant institutions. The results 

are communicated annually to Cabinet for consideration and 

further direction on important matters to be addressed. These 

may include requiring accounting officers and accounting 
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authorities to develop corrective plans to improve the audit 

outcomes of their institutions and to act on the Auditor-

General’s recommendations in management letters.  

During the year under review, the unit coordinated the 

development of new questions to assess the financial health 

of departments, constitutional institutions and public entities 

listed in Schedule 3A and 3C of the PFMA, using the Financial 

Management Capability Maturity Model (FMCMM). The unit 

also coordinated a major review of the Treasury Regulations to 

ensure their alignment with the King III Report on Corporate 

Governance in South Africa, 2009 and with financial management 

best practice. The extensive consultation process meant that its 

finalisation was delayed and the revised Treasury Regulations 

will be published during 2014/2015.The unit also continued to 

support institutions by contributing towards the development 

of circulars, guidelines and Treasury Instructions about PFMA-

related concepts. Information sessions on PFMA related matters 

were also held with internal and external stakeholders.

The unit receives monthly information from departments 

about the timeous payment of their invoices. This information 

is analysed, and bi-monthly reports are submitted to the Forum 

of South African Directors-General (FOSAD) on the status of 

departments’ compliance with the legal requirement to make 

payments within thirty days of receipt of an invoice.

MFMA Implementation: The unit coordinates the 

implementation of the MFMA in all municipalities and 

related entities. It also develops policies, regulations, 

guides and circulars to strengthen implementation; assists 

in monitoring compliance; provides reports; and supports 

municipalities in improving their financial management 

policies, procedures and practices. The unit administers the 

MFMA helpdesk which responds to municipalities’ enquiries 

about the MFMA; and attends regional CFO Forums to 

explain MFMA prescripts and guides. The unit has finalised 

the development of a system of delegations to improve 

financial management performance and accountability, as 

well as the financial management capability maturity model 

for municipalities. This will be coupled with the 32 financial 

management indicators to provide information on the 

financial status of municipalities. The intention is to roll out 

the tool in the 2014 financial year; this will provide a basis 

for measuring 10 years of implementation of the MFMA and 

the results will be used to direct specific support and other 

intervention measures.

The unit also administers and manages the financial 

management grant programme and the technical advisory 

support offered to selected municipalities. This is reported on 

in more detail in Programme 8. The Municipal Finance Recovery 

Service will continue to monitor municipalities’ performance 

and to respond to their requests for assistance in developing 

financial recovery plans.

The unit supported municipalities’ implementation of the 

MFMA through, among other means, quarterly meetings with 

officials of national and provincial departments, SALGA and the 

Office of the Auditor-General. These meetings are also intended 

to improve the coordination of financial management reforms 

in municipalities. MFMA circulars have been issued to assist 

with implementing steps to address unauthorised, irregular, 

fruitless and wasteful expenditure, supply chain management 

processes, and uniform norms and standards on financial 

management. Regulations dealing with the enforcement of 

the MFMA, focusing on financial misconduct, were developed 

in 2013 and concluded in 2014 for effective implementation 

on 1 July 2014. The first phase of technical support ended 

in March 2014. Eight provinces and 91 predominantly small, 

medium and rural municipalities received support on financial 

management implementation. 

Specialised Audit Services: During the period under review, the 

unit completed 22 forensic investigations and performance 

audits in 10 departments and public entities. The unit also 

identified breakdowns in the systems of internal control in 

four departments, for resolution by the relevant authorities. 

Members of the unit serve on certain Ministerial task teams to 

support the resolution of major control deficiencies in public 

procurement processes. Forensic investigation reports by the 

unit resulted in the National Prosecuting Authority’s Asset 

Forfeiture unit issuing restraint orders on approximately R1 

billion of assets possessed by implicated parties in incidents of 

fraud and corruption. Certain senior government officials were 

also suspended as a result of these activities.
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In the Limpopo Section 100 (b) intervention, the unit’s forensic 

reports have resulted in 13 criminal cases being brought to 

trial, with 34 accused. Thirteen cases of fraud still under review 

for criminal proceedings; with 45 officials facing charges  

across all 4 departments under intervention, and two heads of 

department suspended.

The unit provided members of the Northern Cape Anti-

Corruption Task Team with training on the PFMA and MFMA 

legislation, as reference in criminal proceedings in cases of 

public procurement fraud.

Financial Systems: The transversal systems (BAS, LOGIS, PERSAL 

and VULINDLELA) were available for over 99 per cent of the 

time; this exceeded the targeted 98 per cent availability. 

In 2012/2013, the OAG initiated and completed the turnaround 

strategy on the Integrated Financial Management System (IFMS) 

solution architecture. This resulted in a Cabinet Resolution in 

November 2013 which supported the procurement of a widely 

used and well-supported commercial software product from 

a single vendor. A Request for Proposal was published for this 

purpose in March 2014. Additional initiatives in relation to the 

IFMS included the establishment of a Programme Management 

Office (PMO) to strengthen the governance and execution of 

the project over the next five years.  

Office of the 				  
Chief Procurement Officer
During the 2013/14 financial year, the division achieved the 

following objectives per sub-programme:

Supply Chain Policy, Norms and Standards: The Chief 

Directorate: Supply Chain Policy was merged with the 

Chief Directorate: Norms and Standards to become Supply 

Chain Policy, Norms and Standards (SCP, N&S). Its objective 

is to implement the revised Preferential Procurement Policy 

Framework Act (PPPFA). The Act and its regulations are being 

reviewed in order to achieve further SCM efficiencies and thus 

the developmental objectives of government. A legal review 

of the procurement environment has been completed; this 

will inform the mandate of the OCPO and will be a key input 

to conceptualising more effective transactions between 

government and the private sector.

During the period under review, work commenced on a 

White Paper governing public sector procurement. This will be 

circulated for discussion, and implemented, over the medium 

term.  Instructions were issued in respect of three sectors 

that have been designated for local production and content. 

The draft revised regulatory framework for SCM has been 

completed and is awaiting promulgation.  

Numerous applications for condoning irregular expenditure 

were processed; this led to the development of a policy 

document to govern such decisions.  

SCM Client Support: The unit is responsible for managing research, 

development and implementation of interventions that 

contribute to improved SCM capacity, capability and performance 

in all three spheres of government, through institutional, 

organisational, individual and stakeholder development.

The Chief Directorate commenced the development of 

a SCM Job Specification Framework, SCM Human Capital 

Development Framework, and SCM Education, Training and 

Development (ETD) Delivery Framework. Course material 

was developed for the public sector specific unit standards 

within the Certificate in SCM, a unit standard based learnership 

programme registered at Level 5 on the National Qualifications 

Framework. The Integrated Learning Matrix for SCM ETD 

programmes was drafted.

Procurement processes were initiated for the delivery of 

the following ETD programmes: Bid Rigging, Preferential 

Procurement, Strategic Sourcing, SCM Certificate Learnership, 

and the Corporate Award Programme. Stakeholder relations 

were initiated and strengthened with government institutions, 

private institutions, educational institutions, professional 

bodies and the donor community.

Contract Management: Twenty transversal term contracts 

were due for renewal during the review period. Eighteen 

were awarded, and two expired contracts were extended and 

scheduled for renewal in the first and second quarters of 2014/15. 
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SCM Governance, Monitoring and Compliance: The section is 

responsible for managing the SCM governance framework 

in all three spheres of government including its design, 

development and implementation; monitoring and evaluation 

of compliance.

A combination of pro-active and reactive measures are used 

in analysing and assessing SCM non-compliance, including 

established SCM measures and prescribed parameters, and 

the development and implementation of, and reporting on, 

corrective actions for procurement plans and bid processes.

The section facilitates and reports on malpractice interventions 

including cancellation of bid processes, initiation of disciplinary 

actions, laying of criminal charges, claiming of damages and 

restriction of suppliers.

Strategic Procurement: The unit implemented Procurement 

Transformation Initiative pilots at the national Department of 

Public Works where good progress was made in analysing the 

current state of 40 lease contracts in the Johannesburg and 

Pretoria areas as well as in the development of a SCM capability 

model. Other initiatives were piloted in Limpopo’s Departments 

of Health and Education and of Cooperative Governance, 

Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs (COGHSTA). The 

projects are at various stages of implementation. At COGHSTA, 

the project is focussing on rural housing and implementing 

agents; at the Department of Health on procurement of 

medical equipment and linen; and at the Department of 

Education on scholar transport. A draft price referencing 

model has been completed and is currently being reviewed 

for implementation.

Variances between planned and actual performance in this 

programme are listed below:

•	 Integrated Financial Management System (IFMS). 	

This target has been affected by the revised approach to 

the IFMS project, which was endorsed by Cabinet during 

November 2013. The plan for successfully undertaking the 

revised approach will be completed during the 2014/15 

year and the performance targets revised accordingly.

•	 Revision of strategic sourcing course materials have been 

delayed as a result of financial resources for this purpose 

not having been made available within the envisaged 

timeframes. The matter will be rectified within the first 

quarter of the 2014/15 year.

•	 Assessment of the number of departments with approved 

preferential procurement plans, and the issuance of 

instruction notes for five sectors in terms of preferential 

procurement regulations were delayed during the year 

under review, as a result of a delay in the appointment of 

legal expertise for this purpose. This target will be reviewed 

and adjusted as necessary during the year ahead.

•	 A central supplier database for government was not 

completed as envisaged during the year under review, as 

a result of insufficient human resources being available in 

this recently appointed team. The output is scheduled for 

completion during the 2014/15 financial year.
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Programme 6

International 
Financial Relations

Purpose: Manage South Africa’s interests in shaping regional 

and global policies that advances the economic, financial and 

development objectives of our country, and those of Africa.

Measurable objectives:

•	 To advance South Africa’s interests specifically, and those 

of Africa more generally, through regular strategic analysis, 

engagement and negotiation in financial and economic fora. 

•	 To increase Africa’s voice and South Africa’s influence 

in multilateral international institutions including the 

International Monetary Fund, the G20, the African 

Development Bank (AfDB) and BRICS. 

•	 To promote regional economic integration in the 

Southern African Development Community (SADC) and 

to strengthen economic links within Africa by providing 

ongoing support in SADC forums and by supporting the 

Southern African Customs Union (SACU). 

There are nine sub-programmes:

•	 Management supports the planning, monitoring and 

implementation of the programme’s activities. The office 

of the Deputy Director-General (DDG) oversees South 

Africa’s representation in international and regional 

financial institutions; manages bilateral and multilateral 

relationships on behalf of the National Treasury; and plans, 

implements and monitors programmes and activities that 

advance South Africa’s national interests. 

•	 International Economic Cooperation facilitates South 

Africa’s contribution to shaping international, financial and 

development policies through its participation in regional 

and global institutions and fora and through strategic 

bilateral engagements. 

•	 The remaining sub-programmes including the 

Common Monetary Area Compensation; Financial and 

Technical Support; the African Development Bank and 

African Development Fund; the World Bank Group; the 

Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative (CABRI); the 

Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation; and the 

International Funding Facility for Immunisation, transfer 

funds to various institutions in accordance with South 

Africa’s participation in the associated forums. 

SERVICE DELIVERY 		
OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS
Recent outputs
•	 The International and Regional Economic Policy (IREP) division 

gives effect to this programme. It has two chief directorates: 

African Economic Integration (AEI) and International 

Finance and Development (IFD) which fall under the sub-

programme International Economic Cooperation. 

•	 The AEI unit manages South Africa’s engagements within 

the African continent. Key to this is the management of 

South Africa’s membership of the SACU in collaboration 

with the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI). 

Negotiations on the review of the SACU agreement 

and particularly on arriving at a new revenue sharing 

arrangement continued during the review period. 

•	 The unit also aims to increase Africa’s voice and South 

Africa’s influence in international institutions and fora and 

to play a leading role in the reform of the governance and 

administration structures of African institutions. During 

the period under review, the unit continued to engage in 

multilateral efforts to ensure full implementation of SADC’s 

Finance and Investment Protocol. 

•	 Playing a prominent role in SADC’s Finance Committee, 

the unit ensured that SADC resources are adequately 

scrutinised against agreed targets and that stricter 

accountability is applied within the Secretariat when using 

these resources. 

•	 The unit represented South Africa’s interests at the AfDB, 

the African Union Commission (Economic Affairs) and the 

United Nations Economic Commission for Africa. It focused 

particularly on ensuring an ambitious replenishment of 

the AfDB’s concessionary lending window. In this cycle, 

South Africa obtained 3 560 new shares that were offered 

to regional member states, increasing our shareholding to 

4,8%.  The increased shareholding will enable South Africa 

to reach the goal of 6% share level that was approved by 

Cabinet in 1998.
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•	 IFD participated in multilateral caucus groups and global 

international institutions to advance South Africa’s 

economic, financial and developmental agenda. 

•	 In collaboration with the South African Reserve Bank 

(SARB), the unit leads South Africa’s participation in the 

finance track of the G20. This includes participating in a 

number of working groups and in G20 ministerial and 

deputies’ meetings. South Africa co-chaired the Study 

Group on Climate Finance, attended the G20 Energy 

Sustainability Working Group meeting and presented 

the G20 anti-corruption work at the Anti-Corruption Task 

Team meeting.  The unit helped to develop a strategy 

for South Africa’s interaction with the G20 as a whole, 

working with the Presidency, DIRCO and SARS among 

others. It is planning a number of G20 outreach events 

linked to the G20 Strategy to ensure a coordinated African 

voice in the G20. It is also establishing and strengthening 

ties with a number of other government departments, 

such as SARS and DOE.

•	 The unit also leads South Africa’s engagement in the 

finance track of the BRICS. South Africa joined BRICS in 

2011. In 2012 BRICS leaders announced that their finance 

ministers were exploring the feasibility and viability of 

establishing a new development bank; this has become 

a cornerstone for consolidating BRICS co-operation as 

well as co-operation among emerging markets and 

developing countries (EMDCs). In 2013, the establishment 

of the bank was identified by Cabinet as the major 

deliverable that South Africa wished to result from the 

hosting of the BRICS Summit. The IFD unit contributed 

towards this major outcome for the country. The unit has 

also engaged the external stakeholders to ensure that 

their interests are well-represented in BRICS initiatives 

and decisions. Both the New Development Bank and the 

Contingent Reserve Arrangement have been finalised.  

The process of ratification of the legal agreement has 

been concluded.

•	 The IFD unit continued to strengthen relations with 

multilateral development banks. This was accomplished 

at two levels. The first was the completion of the World 

Bank Country Partnership Strategy for 2013/16. This 

strategy relates in broad terms to the areas in which the 

World Bank intends to provide support to South Africa. 

As part of the implementation of the South Africa/World 

Bank Country Partnership, the Government Technical 

Advisory Centre (GTAC) will bring the Knowledge Hub 

into operation, with IREP responsible for the monitoring 

of the World Bank Group’s activities and how they align 

with South Africa’s overall policy. The second level relates 

to South Africa’s contribution to the global development 

agenda through on-going International Development 

Assistance (IDA). 

•	 The IMF Article IV Annual Consultations were completed 

successfully.  Part of the success of this process was that 

IREP secured a stronger participation from government 

officials than was previously the case.

Notable variances between envisaged and actual outputs for 

the 2014/15 year include:

•	 Presentation of the proposed G20 strategy to Cabinet. 

This was postponed in favour of presenting to Cabinet 

following the national elections in May 2014.

•	 Finalising of the SACU revenue formula and establishment 

of a common revenue pool as stand-alone account with 

SA Reserve Bank. This activity requires further consultation 

between relevant SACU Ministers, as well as specific 

bilateral engagements. They are envisaged to take place 

during the 2014/15 financial year.

•	 Official launch of the Southern Africa Regional Resource 

Centre was delayed due to logistical challenges and will be 

completed during the year ahead.
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Purpose: Provide pensions and post-retirement medical 

benefits to former employees of state departments and 

bodies. Provide similar benefits to members of the military, 

special pensioners, injury-on-duty state employees and other 

related benefits.

Measurable objective: The programme ensures the 

payment of benefits and awards to rightful beneficiaries in 

terms of various statutes, collective bargaining and other 

agreements. It is the responsibility of the programme to 

ensure that benefits are paid to the correct recipients within 

specified times.

The programme is divided into the following key delivery 

sub-programmes:

•	 Management provides support for planning, monitoring 

and delivering the programme’s activities.

•	 Government Pensions Administration Agency (GPAA) 

provides administrative services as regulated by various 

statutes.

•	 Military Pensions and Other Benefits provides for the 

payment of military pension benefits and medical claims 

arising from treatment for disability, medical assistance 

devices and other related expenses in terms of statutory 

commitments.

•	 Post Retirement Medical Benefits deals with the processing 

of medical aid applications for retired government 

employees.

•	 Special Pensions provides for the payment of pension to 

persons who made sacrifices or served the public interest 

in the cause of establishing a democratic constitutional 

order.

•	 Injury on Duty Payments provides pensions and gratuities 

to injured or deceased employees in terms of the 

Compensation for Occupational Injury and Diseases Act 

(COIDA).

These funds are administered on behalf of the National 

Treasury, with which GPAA has a service level agreement 

governing turnaround times, the registration of new 

members, payments made, errors incurred, over payments 

and under payments, risks, audit findings, business continuity 

and financial issues.

SERVICE DELIVERY 		
OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS
Strategic objectives for the 
financial year 2013/14
•	 To pay 80 per cent of benefits accurately and on time and 

within 60 days of receipt at the GPAA.

•	 To improve the customer service experience by 

responding to queries, complaints or requests within two 

working days; resolving queries, complaints or requests 

within seven working days; and developing a customer 

satisfaction indicator consisting of a range of criteria.

•	 To address internal audit findings by specified date. 

•	 To entrench enterprise-wide risk management by 

implementing mitigating actions.

•	 To comply with stakeholder SLAs by delivering on 

specified service levels in the National Treasury service 

level agreement.

•	 To institutionalize key account management by responding 

to queries, complaints or requests within two working 

days and by resolving stakeholder queries, complaints or 

requests within seven working days.

Highlights, achievements 		
and challenges in 2013/14
GPAA paid out pensions and benefits worth over R3.2 billion 

to approximately 113 800 beneficiaries during 2013/14. These 

benefits were paid accurately in 100 per cent of cases and on 

time in 94 per cent of cases; this was significantly above the 

targets set for these two activities for the year.  

In all, the unit had 15 deliverables for the year and succeeded 

in meeting or exceeding 14 of these. GPAA exceeded 10.

The one unmet target was the application control review target 

(focusing on testing the robustness of the ICT applications’ 

control environment). It should be noted that the audit 

process started in March 2013 and the audit report was signed 

off in September 2013, six months into the financial year. In 

the remaining six months, Programme 1 resolved 75 per cent 
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of the internal audit findings against the target of 90 per cent, 

and is on track to resolve the rest within the next three months.

The remainder of this section reports on some of the key 

projects and initiatives undertaken during 2013/14.

Stakeholder relations
GPAA places a premium on building and maintaining sound 

relations with stakeholders. This enables the unit to improve 

the quality of the customer experience and helps to spread 

the word to prospective beneficiaries about benefits for 

which they may be eligible to apply. Special pensions are a 

case in point. During 2013/14, with the help of stakeholder 

networks GPAA was able to trace a number of beneficiaries 

who were unaware of their eligibility to apply for a special 

pension.

To strengthen relations with stakeholders, GPAA met with 

key stakeholders for all categories of benefits. For post-

retirement medical benefits, these stakeholders are medical 

aid schemes, retiring public servants and the Department of 

Public Service and Administration. For military pensions and 

special pensions, key stakeholders include the Department 

of Defence, Department of Military Veterans, Association of 

Military Veterans and political parties that were involved in 

the liberation struggle. The Compensation Commissioner is 

one of the main stakeholders for injury-on duty-payments. 

Across all benefit categories, Parliament is a key stakeholder 

for GPAA. A trend that continued during 2013/14 was the 

increase in the number of beneficiaries for post-retirement 

medical benefits, rising from 77 988 in the previous year to 

82 364 in the year under review. By contrast, the client bases 

for other benefits in the portfolio are on the decrease, owing 

to mortality rates among beneficiaries and a decline in new 

applications.

The SOMA injury assessment project
In the case of military pensions, this represented a 

challenge for the unit, specifically in terms of the SOMA 

project. According to the agreement with the SOMA Risk 

Management Assessment company, GPAA is required to 

refer a certain number of prospective applicants per year for 

injury assessment and verification. This can be problematic 

when insufficient applicants apply or application information 

is incomplete. To overcome these challenges, the unit plans 

to embark on an awareness drive in 2014/15 to inform 

prospective applicants about the provisions and criteria for 

accessing military pensions.

Legislative inputs to 		
National Treasury
During 2013/14, the programme drafted two legislative 

amendments for consideration by the Minister of Finance. 

These are the Military Pensions Amendment Bill and 

the Special Pensions Amendment Bill. These bills will be 

considered by the National Treasury for submission to the 

2014 Parliamentary sittings. 

The only material variance between planned and actual outputs 

for this programme, relates to the percentage of internal audit 

findings to be resolved during the year under review. Whilst 

the resolution of 90 per cent of internal audit findings was 

planned for the year under review, the programme achieved a 

75 per cent resolution. The final report for System Controls was 

received by at the end of September 2013 with 98 findings. 

73 of these have been resolved and awaiting assurance from 

the National Treasury’s Internal Audit team. Whilst some delays 

were experienced, the remaining findings will be resolved by 

end of June 2014.
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Programme 7

CIVIL AND MILITARY PENSIONS, 
CONTRIBUTIONS TO FUNDS AND OTHER BENEFITS
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Programme 8

TECHNICAL SUPPORT 
AND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE

Purpose: Provide specialised infrastructure development 

planning and implementation support and technical 

assistance to aid capacity building in the public sector.

Measurable objectives: The programme promotes public 

and private investment in infrastructure and public services by 

providing technical support for organisational strengthening 

and capital expenditure planning. This includes support for 

project management, public-private partnerships, urban 

spatial planning, infrastructure service delivery and municipal 

financial management. 

It also provides financial assistance for catalytic projects that 

drive sustainable neighbourhood development and job 

creation. Objectives include:

•	 Building public sector clients’ capacity through a combination 

of diagnostic services, organisation development and 

programme and project implementation support

•	 Providing transaction advice and support to PPPs and large 

infrastructure projects

•	 Promoting a strategic planning and investment 

framework to transform the spatial form of South Africa’s 

larger urban centres

•	 Assisting with the design and co-financing of the 

Neighbourhood Development Partnership grant

•	 Building financial skills by improving internal and external 

reporting on financial management grants as they relate 

to budgets, service delivery and budget implementation 

plans, in-year monitoring and annual reports

•	 Ensuring proper planning and implementation of 

infrastructure maintenance by provincial departments 

of Education, Health and Public Works through quarterly 

monitoring of their infrastructure.

Technical and Management Support and Development 

Finance consists of the following sub-programmes:

•	 Technical and Advisory Support (including the Technical 

Assistance Unit (TAU) and Public Private Partnership (PPP) Unit) 

•	 Neighbourhood Development Partnership (NDP)

•	 Infrastructure Delivery Improvement Programme (IDIP) 

•	 Local Government Financial Management Grant (FMG) 

•	 Municipal Finance Improvement Programme (MFIP) 

•	 Employment Creation Facilitation Fund (ECFF).
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Programme 8

TECHNICAL SUPPORT 
AND DEVELOPMENT FINANCE
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Report of the 
Audit Committee

the internal auditors, and the Auditor-General on the 

results of its audits, that the financial information provided 

to management and other users of such information is 

adequate, reliable and accurate. 

The effectiveness of 
internal control 
From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the 

Audit Report on the Annual Financial Statements and the 

management letter of the Auditor-General, it was noted that 

no significant or material non-compliance with prescribed 

policies and procedures have been reported. We can report 

that the system of internal control for the period under review 

was generally effective. However, attention is drawn to the 

following area of concern: 

•	 The Integrated Financial Management System has not 

been rolled out as per the original timeline. This system is 

developed in collaboration with DPSA and SITA. Based on 

the revised approach, the system will be configured and 

rolled out at lead sites followed by a roll-out to the rest of 

government.

•	 The lack of controls in the CIVPEN system to adequately and 

effectively mitigate the risks associated with administration 

of pensions by Programme 7. 

•	 The presentation of performance information and its 

usefulness as indicated in the Auditor General’s report.

Other than these matters nothing significant has come to 

the attention of the Audit Committee to indicate that any 

material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, 

procedures and systems has occurred during the year 

under review.

The effectiveness of 
internal audit 
The Audit Committee received a wide variety of audit 

reports from the internal auditors and is of the opinion 

that internal audit is effective in the fulfillment of their 

Report of the 		
Audit Committee
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year 

ended 31 March 2014.

Audit Committee Members 
and Attendance:
The audit committee consists of the members listed 

hereunder and has met as reflected below, in line with its 

approved terms of reference.

Name of member
*Number of 

meetings attended

Mr Vuyo Jack (Chairperson) 7 of 7

Ms Octavia Matloa 5 of 6

Mr Hemant Bhoola 5 of 5

Mr Joe Lesejane 5 of 7

Mr Zach Le Roux 6 of 7

Ms Berenice Francis 5 of 7

Audit Committee 
Responsibility
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its 

responsibilities arising from section 77 and 38(1)(a) of the 

PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1. 

The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted 

appropriate formal terms of reference as its audit committee 

charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter 

and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

The adequacy, reliability and accuracy of the financial 

information provided to management and other users of 

such information

The Audit Committee is of the opinion, based on the 

information and explanations given by management, 
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statements be accepted and read together with the report 

of the Auditor-General.

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

Date: 31 July 2014

mandate. We are satisfied with the activities of the internal 

audit function, including its annual work programme, 

co-ordination with the external auditors, the reports of 

significant investigations and the responses of management 

to specific recommendations.

The risk areas of the 
institution’s operations 
There is a Risk Management Committee that meets on a 

regular basis and shares its reports with the Audit Committee. 

A risk register is kept and updated continuously to ensure that 

all the major risks facing the programs and entities under the 

National Treasury are recorded. The risk management system 

will be subject to internal audit in the coming year. 

Accounting and auditing 
concerns identified as a 
result of internal and 
external audits
No additional accounting concerns have been reported. 

The institution’s 
compliance with legal and 
regulatory provisions 
The Audit Committee has noted the in year management and 

monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the Act and the 

Division of Revenue Act and is satisfied with the quality thereof. 

Evaluation of Financial 
Statements
The Audit Committee has evaluated the annual financial 

statements of the National Treasury for the year ended 31 

March 2014 and, based on the information provided to 

the Audit Committee, concurs and accepts the Auditor-

General’s conclusions on the annual financial statements, 

and is of the opinion that the audited annual financial 
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Report of the 
Accounting Officer

Report by the Accounting Officer to the Executive Authority 

and Parliament of the Republic of South Africa. 

1.	 General review of the 
state of financial affairs

1.1	 Strategic overview	

The role of the National Treasury (NT) is defined in chapter 

13 of the Constitution. As set out in the Public Finance 

Management Act (1999) as well as other laws governing 

financial and fiscal affairs, the legislative mandate of the NT 

is to promote the national government’s fiscal policy and the 

coordination of macroeconomic policy; ensure the stability 

and soundness of the financial system and financial services; 

coordinate intergovernmental financial and fiscal relations; 

manage the budget preparation process; and enforce 

transparency and effective management in respect of 

revenue and expenditure, assets and liabilities, public entities 

and constitutional institutions. 

As custodian of the nation’s financial resources, the NT seeks 

to promote economic development, good governance, and 

social progress through accountable, economic, efficient 

and sustainable management of the country’s public 

finances. 

During the period under review, government has begun 

to align its planning and expenditure to the National 

Development Plan (NDP), Vision 2030.  NT holds itself 

accountable to the nation for promoting inclusive economic 

growth and long term fiscal sustainability while contributing 

meaningfully to the NDP objectives of reducing poverty and 

inequality, and building a capable state that is able to play 

a developmental and transformative role. Underpinning 

our strategy to pursue the NDP objectives, NT continues 

to conduct research on the country’s economic climate, 

fiscal policy considerations and for managing economic 

and financial risks while supporting economic growth 

opportunities. 

A key priority in the 2013/14 period was to contribute to the 

NDP objective of accelerating employment creation. The Jobs 

Fund has expanded its support for innovative approaches 

to promoting enterprise development and employment. 

The Employment Tax Incentive Act (2013) was passed by 

Parliament in December 2013 and took effect in January 2014, 

aimed at assisting young people to enter the labour market, 

gain experience and access job opportunities more readily. 

In the face of a constrained fiscal environment, NT has 

continued to pursue budget efficiencies through focusing 

on reprioritisation within the existing budget envelope while 

remaining mindful of critical service delivery imperatives. 

This has been reinforced through procurement reforms 

which are aimed at rooting out corruption and wastage 

while introducing innovative approaches to government 

procurement. The Office of the Chief Procurement Officer 

(OCPO) was established as a distinct sub-programme. Its first 

initiative have included reviews of high value and strategic 

contracts to ensure that value for money was derived and 

steps to ensure that all contracts comply with the relevant 

norms and standards. The OCPO will continue to modernise 

the procurement system across national, provincial and 

local spheres of government as well as government 

entities and agencies to ensure the efficient, effective and 

transparent use of financial and other resources to improve 

service delivery. 

The newly introduced cost containment measures that 

were announced by the Minister during the 2013 Medium 

Term Budget Policy Statement and 2014 Budget Speech will 

also help the government as a whole to ensure that public 

funds are spent with great efficiency while at the same time 

reinforcing accountability in public finance spending. NT 

remains committed to prioritise infrastructure development 

to facilitate economic growth and employment. The newly 

established Government Technical Advisory Service (GTAC) 

will enhance the Treasury’s capacity to support infrastructure 

projects by providing technical skills and advisory support 

focused on public private partnerships, project management, 

infrastructure service delivery and public finance 

management reforms.  

The NT has continued over the past year to advance South 

Africa’s economic, financial and development objectives 
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through participation in multilateral institutions and 

engagement with regional and global economic and financial 

forums. Work is underway for the possible establishment of 

a BRICS led bank and creation of a trade and development 

insurance risk pool. These initiatives are aimed at co-funding 

infrastructure in developing regions and establishment of 

a sustainable alternative insurance network for the BRICS 

countries, respectively.

More detailed discussions of the activities of the National 

Treasury are set out in the chapters of this report dealing with 

programme performance and expenditure.

For a more detailed discussion of the outcome of the 

aforementioned strategic activities, please refer to the 

chapters dealing with programme performance included in 

this report.

1.2	 Infrastructure spending

Neighbourhood Development Partnership 	
grant projects 

Through the Neighbourhood Development Partnership 

Programme the NT contributes to creating habitable, 

sustainable, resilient, efficient and integrated human 

settlements. Further impetus has been given to this initiative 

by the new urban networks strategy which locates township 

development within a wider integrated city planning 

framework. The grant supports city-wide and precinct level 

planning, and provides the capital for catalytic infrastructure 

projects such as public transport and social facilities, public 

spaces and landscaping.

Capital investment on the Neighbourhood Development 

Partnership programme had reached R3.5 billion as at 31 March 

2014, of which 37.5 per cent was allocated to nodal and corridor 

upgrading, 25.7 per cent to transport infrastructure, 20.1 per 

cent to community facilities, 13.5 per cent to small and medium 

enterprises facilities, 1.6 per cent to utility infrastructure and 1.6 

per cent for green efficiencies. In the period under review, the 

programme had more than 280 approved project plans and 

in 2012/13, the Neighbourhood Development Partnership 

programme had completed 129 catalytic projects valued at 

more than R1 billion as at 31 March 2013. 

Large projects

Integrated Financial Management System

 

The NT continues to develop the integrated financial 

management system, which will replace its existing legacy 

systems. Since inception, R768.8 million has been expended 

on developing the financial management, supply chain 

management, human resource management, payroll and 

related business intelligence modules, which have been 

piloted at lead sites, including National Treasury, the Free State 

Department of Education and Limpopo Department of Health. 

A revised approach on the solution architecture of the 

system was endorsed by Cabinet in 2013/14. This is aimed 

at fast tracking completion of the project and may call for 

an increase in expenditure in the future. However, spending 

on the project is expected to remain within the R3.2 billion 

allocated to it. As part of the revision process, a tender was 

issued in the 2013/14 financial year for the commercial off-

the-shelf solution. In order to improve governance and overall 

performance of the project, a programme management 

office was established.

1.3	A nnual appropriation and vote structure 

The total appropriation for the National Treasury for the year 

ended 31 March 2014 amounted to R25.2 billion (2012/13: R21.1 

billion) and is divided into the following main components: the 

operational budget, transfers and payments for financial assets.  

Operational budget amounted to R1.6 billion (2012/13: R1.5 

billion), and comprised R658 million (2012/13: R615 million) 

for compensation of employees, R942 million (2012/13: R894 

million) for goods and services and R33 million (2012/13: R34 

million) for the acquisition of capital assets. 

The transfers budget of R20.7 billion (2012/13: R19.4 billion) 

included transfers to municipalities, universities, departmental 

agencies and foreign institutions; and payments of post-

retirement benefits for a specific category of former employees 

and members of liberation movements. The remaining 

funding of R2.9 billion (2012/13:R200 million) was for the 

recapitalisation of the Post Bank and Development Bank of 

Southern Africa.  
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1.4	V irement

A virement of R 21.7 million  from Programme 1 was utilised 

to curb the over-spending on Programme 7 to supplement 

payment for the Non-Statutory Forces liability (R20.9 million) 

and compensation of employees for  Programme 8 (R726 000). 

Another virement of R5.7 million from Programme 3 was done 

to further supplement the payment for the Non-Statutory 

Forces in Programme 7. Finally, a virement of R1.8 million 

from Programme 5 to 6 was utilised to curb overspending 

on goods and services. The virements were approved by the 

Accounting Officer.

1.5	P rogramme structure

There are ten programmes which fall under Vote 10: The 

National Treasury: Administration; Economic Policy, Tax and 

Financial Regulation and Research; Public Finance and Budget 

Management; Asset and Liability Management; Financial 

Systems and Accounting; International Financial Relations; 

Civil and Military Pensions; Contributions to Funds and Other 

Benefits; Technical Support and Development Finance; Revenue 

Administration; and Finance Intelligence and State Security.

Refer to the Notes to the Appropriation Statement for the 

reasons for variances between the financial appropriation and 

actual expenditure.

Administration provides leadership and strategic management, 

and continues its commitment to and responsibility for the 

overall institutional management of and support to the 

entire department. This is achieved by ensuring that activities 

carried out by the department are in harmony with its 

strategy and structure and in compliance with the relevant 

legislation and best practices. The programme consists of 

the Ministry, Departmental Management, Corporate Services, 

Enterprise Wide Risk Management, Financial Administration, 

Legal Services, Internal Audit, Communications and Office 

Accommodation.

The total appropriation for this programme amounted to 

R335 million (2012/13: R320 million). Expenditure incurred 

on compensation of employees was R144 million (2012/13: 

R132 million), goods and services R154 million (2012/13: 

R147 million), transfers R3.5 million (2012/13: R2.6 million) and 

capital expenditure R17 million (2012/13: R14 million).

Economic Policy, Tax, Financial Regulation and Research provides 

specialist policy research, analysis and advisory services in 

the areas of macroeconomics, microeconomics, taxation, the 

financial sector and regulatory reform in order to promote 

economic growth, employment and macroeconomic stability. 

The programme also focuses on policy formulation and the 

drafting of legislation in support of government’s economic 

policy. The programme consists of five sub-programmes: 

Management, Research, Financial Sector Policy, Tax Policy and 

Economic Policy.

The total appropriation for this programme amounted to 

R134 million (2012/13: R123 million). Expenditure incurred on 

compensation of employees was R67 million (2012/13: R62 

million), goods and services R30 million (2012/13: R22 million), 

transfers R27 million (2012/13: R26 million) and capital assets 

R0.4 million (2012/13: R0.5 million).

Public Finance and Budget Management provide analysis and 

advice on fiscal policy and public finances, intergovernmental 

financial relations and expenditure planning and priorities.  

It manages the annual budget process and provides 

public finance management support.  These activities are 

organised into three sub-programmes: Public Finance, Budget 

Management and Intergovernmental Relations.

The total appropriation for this programme amounted to 

R226 million (2012/13: R241 million). Current expenditure 

incurred totalled R171 million (2012/13: R182 million) and 

mainly consisted of compensation of employees R144 million 

(2012/13: R141 million) and goods and services R27 million 

(2012/13: R41 million). Transfers amounted to R41 million 

(2012/13: R38 million). Payment for capital assets amounted to 

R0.9 million (2012/13 R1.2 million).

Asset and Liability Management is responsible for managing 

government’s annual funding programme in a manner that 

ensures access to global and domestic markets, prudent 
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cash management and an optimal portfolio of debt and 

other fiscal obligations. It is also responsible for exercising 

effective oversight over state-owned enterprises to enable the 

achievement of government’s policy objectives in a financially 

and fiscally sustainable manner. There are six sub-programmes: 

Programme Management, Oversight and Governance of State 

Owned Enterprises, Government Debt Management, Financial 

Operations, Strategy and Risk Management and Financial 

Investments.

The total appropriation amounted to R3 billion (2012/13: R283 

million). Total expenditure incurred amounted to R3 billion 

(2012/13: R278 million) and mainly consisted of compensation 

of employees R63 million (2012/13: R58 million), goods and 

services R23 million (2012/13: R20 million) and payments 

for capital expenditure R0.4 million (2012/13: R0.5 million). 

Payment for financial assets amounted to R2.9 billion (2012/13: 

R200 million).

	

Financial Accounting and Supply Chain Management Systems 

promotes and enforces transparency, economic and effective 

management of revenue, expenditure, and assets and 

liabilities and supply chain processes in the public sector. It 

also provides policy that regulates supply chain management 

processes and financial management; monitors and enhances 

compliance in respect of supply chain management processes 

in all spheres of government; facilitates and manages 

transversal term contracts; and maintains and improves 

existing financial systems by replacing out-dated systems 

to comply with the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) 

(1999) and the Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

(GRAP). There are seven sub-programmes: Management, 

Office of Chief Procurement Officer, Financial Systems, Financial 

Reporting for National Accounts, Financial Management Policy 

and Compliance Improvement, Audit Statutory Bodies and Service 

Charges: Commercial Banks.

The total appropriation for this programme amounted to 

R733 million (2012/13: R686 million).  Current expenditure 

incurred totalled R621 million (2012/13: R564 million) and 

comprised compensation of employees R150 million (2012/13:  

R136 million) and goods and services R472 million (2012/13: 

R428 million).  Capital expenditure amounted to R2 million 

(2012/13: R2.8 million). Transfer payments amounted to R84 

million (2012/13: R73 million).

International Financial Relations facilitates the deepening of 

South Africa’s role in regional and international economic 

integration and advances South Africa’s national economic 

interests through regular strategic analysis, engagement 

and negotiation at financial and economic forums. The 

programme relates to Programme 6 and is made up of a 

single division, International and Regional Economic Policy 

(IREP), with two chief directorates: International Finance 

and Development (IFD) and Africa Economic Integration 

(AEI). The programme is made up of five sub-programmes: 

Management, International Economic Cooperation, African 

Integration and Support, International Development Funding 

Institutions and International Projects. 

The total appropriation for this programme amounted to 

R1.1 billion (2012/13: R1 billion). Total expenditure incurred 

amounted to R1.1 billion (2012/13: R1 billion) and consisted of 

compensation of employees R22 million (2012/13: R21 million) 

and goods and services R21 million (2012/13: R9 million). 

Transfer payments amounted to R1 billion (2012/13: R973 

million). Payment for capital assets amounted to R0.2 million 

(2012/13: R0.1 million).

Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other 

Benefits provides for non-contributory pensions and post-

retirement medical benefits to former government employees 

and retired members of the military, and the payment of 

compensation benefits to government employees in respect 

of temporary, total or partial disablement.  

The total appropriation for this programme amounted 

to R3.5billion (2012/13: R3.3 billion). Expenditure for the 

period under review amounted to R3.5 billion (2012/13: 

R3.3 billion) which comprised civil pensions and other 

contributions R2.7 billion (2012/13: R2.6 billion) and military 

pensions and other contributions R792 million (2012/13: 

R547 million). Goods and services amounted to R58 million 

(2012/13: R50 million).
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Technical Support and Development Finance comprises 

five-sub programmes: Technical and Advisory Support, 

Local Government Financial Management Grant, Municipal 

Finance Improvement Programme (MFIP), Neighbourhood 

Development Partnership Grant (NDPG), Infrastructure 

Delivery Improvement Programme (IDIP) and Employment 

Creation Facilitation Fund (ECFF). The Technical and Advisory 

Support component of this programme includes the Public-

Private Partnership Unit and the Technical Assistance Unit, 

which will move into the newly established government 

component, the Government Technical Advisory Centre 

(GTAC), during 2014.

The total appropriation for this programme amounted to R2.5 

billion (2012/13: R2 billion). Expenditure for the period under 

review amounted to R2.5 billion (2012/13: R2 billion) which 

comprised compensation of employees R43 million (2012/13: 

R40 million) and goods and services R109 million (2012/13: 

R104 million). Transfer payments amounted to R2.3 billion 

(2012/13: R1.9 billion).

Revenue Administration makes transfers to allow the South 

African Revenue Service to provide core tax administration 

services and maintain the information technology (IT) services 

that support operations. Activities include branch operations, 

tax payer audits, call centre operations, processing operations, 

debt management and IT support. 

The total appropriation for this programme amounted to R9.5 

billion (2012/13: R9.1 billion) which represents total transfers 

made to the South African Revenue Service.

Financial Intelligence and State Security transfers funds to the 

Financial Intelligence Centre and Secret Services to combat 

financial crime including money laundering and terror 

financing activities, and to gather intelligence for purposes 

of national security, defence and combating crime. The total 

appropriation for this programme amounted to R4.2 billion 

(2012/13: R4 billion) which comprises transfers made to the 

Secret Services R3.9 billion (2012/13: R3.8 billion) and Financial 

Intelligence Centre R241 million (2012/13: R197 million).

1.6	D epartmental revenue

Departmental revenue received during the reporting period 

amounted to R3.7 billion (2012/13: R4.2 billion) and consisted 

of sales of goods and services of R73 million (2012/13: R54 

million), fines, interest and dividends R2.6 billion (2012/13: R3.2 

billion) and other recoveries R1 billion (2012/13: R0.9 million).

For more details on departmental revenue, please refer to Note 

2 of the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements.

1.7	U tilisation of donor funds

Local and foreign assistance received in cash during the 

reporting period amounted to R96 million (2012/13: R28 

million).  Expenditure incurred amounted to R55 million 

(2012/13: R26 million). Other donor funds amounting to R1,2 

million  (2012/13: R3 million) were transferred to external 

spending agencies on behalf of the Reconstruction and 

Development Fund, but were not disclosed in the annual 

financial statements because the Department was acting as 

a conduit to channel the funds between the donors and the 

spending agencies.

1.8	E vents after the reporting date

Payments amounting to R39.1 million (2012/13: R50 million) 

relate to the 2013/14 financial year were processed during 

April 2014. These payments were not included in the annual 

financial statements for the 2013/14 financial year, which are 

prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting (refer to 

Note 22). Departmental revenue amounting to R235 million 

(2012/13: R243 million) was received after year-end and 

surrendered to the National Revenue Fund (refer to Note 

25). Contract commitments amounting to R11.4 million 

(2012/13: R12.5 million) were entered into after 31 March 

2014. There were no non-adjusting events identified after 

reporting date.

1.9	 Service rendered by the department

With the exception of Programme 7 which provides pensions 

and post retirement civil and military benefits, the core 

business of the National Treasury is of a fiscal and financial 
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policy nature, servicing organs of the state in all three 

spheres of government and foreign multilateral and national 

institutions. The National Treasury is not a service delivery 

department and does not render any services in the public 

domain on a recoverable basis. 

Other technical assistance is disclosed with the Project 

Development Facility (PDF) and the Technical Assistance Unit 

(TAU) trading entities which will be moved into the Government 

Technical Advisory Centre (GTAC) in the 2014/15 financial year.

2.	Capa city constraints
The Talent Management framework has been entrenched 

within the National Treasury.   The Department’s focus over 

the past three years has been to reduce the vacancy rate 

as well as turnaround times.  In 2013/14, a vacancy rate of 

10.1% was achieved as well as a turnaround time of 14 

weeks to fill vacant positions.  In addressing the challenges 

with the turnaround times, the Department has enlisted 

the services of LexisNexis Risk Management for qualification 

verifications, and internal processes have been reviewed to 

ease the burden of administrative and manual processing of 

applications.  The termination rate and internal hire rate have 

had an impact on the overall vacancy rate.  The focus has 

been to increase internal mobility/promotions of staff. This 

has left pressure to replace and train staff to avoid having a 

skills gap at the entry and middle management levels.  7% 

of the National Treasury workforce was promoted as well as 

0.50% of lateral transfers.

There has also been improvement in equity representation 

with female representation at senior management service 

(SMS level) currently at 45.6% compared with the national 

target of 50%. This is an improvement of 3% compared to the 

previous financial year where the target reached was 42%.

The Department still faces challenges with recruiting 

employees with disabilities.  The target reached is 1% against 

the 2% national target. Having partnered with a recruitment 

agency that recruits persons with disabilities, referrals have 

been minimal, and disclosure by existing staff has been limited. 

The Department has implemented targeted learning and 

development programmes to equip employees across the 

National Treasury with skills and knowledge required for their 

roles. These programmes are also aimed at ensuring that 

managers perform effectively in their day-to-day operations. 

62% of employees across all levels participated in learning and 

development programmes, of which 32% were SMS members 

participating in the programmes.  The Department’s Graduate 

Development Programme has resulted in an additional 48 

interns being recruited with 31 interns being appointed into 

permanent positions.

Significant organisational design work has been carried out to 

establish the Office of the Chief Procurement Officer (OCPO). 

The department is in the process of building the capacity 

within the OCPO to deliver on its mandate to oversee and 

support procurement matters across the public sector.

3.	O rganisations to which 
transfer payments have 
been made 

Funds to public entities and other institutions in terms of 

various legal provisions governing financial relations between 

government and those institutions are made available through 

various programmes.  Refer to Annexures 1A to 1H. There 

were no accounting arrangements in place regarding transfer 

payments in the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

4.	C orporate governance 
arrangements

4.1	 Internal audit function

In the period under review, the Internal Audit Function 

(IAF) of the National Treasury continued to fulfill its 

mandate to provide an independent, objective assurance 

and consulting activity that is designed to add value and 

improve the National Treasury organisation’s operations. 

The IAF assisted the National Treasury to accomplish 

its objectives by bringing a systematic and disciplined 
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approach to evaluating and improving the effectiveness 

of risk management, control and governance within the 

department. The function operates in accordance with an 

approved Internal Audit Charter. The IAF is guided by a fully 

functional Audit Committee which operates in terms of 

an approved Audit Committee terms of reference. The IAF 

continues to monitor its human capital and ensures that 

there are processes in place to make sure that existing staff 

obtain appropriate qualifications. 

The IAF through engagement with internal stakeholders 

formulated a comprehensive three-year rolling plan, 

incorporating an annual plan that was approved by the 

Audit Committee. The annual audit plan of 56 planned 

audits was fully executed during the year under review with 

the assistance of a co-sourced service provider. The IAF also 

performed 15 consulting activities, and relationships with 

management improved as evidenced by the number of 

unplanned specialised audits which, in turn, indicate that 

management sees the value of the IAF within its system 

of governance. Furthermore, the IAF has successfully 

implemented a revised operating model that made provision 

for in-house audit resource capacity in the regularity, 

performance, information technology, compliance and 

quality assurance audit domains. The head of the IAF has 

complete access and a direct reporting line to the Audit 

Committee and reports at each audit committee meeting on 

control weaknesses and other internal audit activities.

4.2	A udit Committee

The Audit Committee continues to operate within its written 

terms of reference, which are reviewed annually. The Audit 

Committee met six times during the financial year under 

review. In these meetings, the Accounting Officer and 

executive management were always represented. The Auditor-

General is always invited to attend, thus ensuring that such 

meetings are as effective and transparent as possible.

4.3	 Risk management

The risk management culture within The National Treasury 

has continued to improve, with management taking an 

active role in implementing risk management principles 

in the department’s day to day activities. The Enterprise 

Risk Management Strategy was successfully implemented 

during the year. 

The Chief Risk Officer championed good governance practices 

through representation on key governance committees, 

and the direct reporting line to the Accounting Officer 

continues to create a strong tone at the top. The benefits of 

risk management were continuously communicated through 

ongoing awareness campaigns promoting the embedding 

of risk management principles and processes within the 

department. The department refined its risk profile which 

is actively monitored by the Risk Management Committee 

and the Audit Committee. The profile includes strategic, 

operational, corruption and business continuity risks and forms 

the basis for the department’s internal audit plans. 

The department supported and monitored the successful 

implementation of its anti-corruption plan and encouraged 

strong ethical values from all of its employees.  The anti-

corruption plan is implemented across numerous functions 

and results in a multi-dimensional approach to mitigating 

identified corruption risks and combating corruption 

holistically. The National Treasury has a zero tolerance stance 

on corruption and the mitigation of identified corruption risks 

receives on-going support at all levels.  

The Risk Management Committee met four times during the 

year under review, and continues to provide objective oversight 

and advice on the institutionalisation of risk management, 

business continuity and anti-corruption processes throughout 

the department.

4.4	 Internal policy review

In the period under review, the revised Terms of Reference 

for the Governance Review Committee (GRC) were 

approved in order to improve and enhance the operations 

of the committee. The mandate of the GRC is to review, 

assess and evaluate departmental corporate governance 

instruments to facilitate:

•	 Efficiency and effectiveness in the department’s operations;

•	 Proper safeguarding of departmental assets;

•	 Reliability of financial reporting; and

•	 Compliance with statutory requirements.
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The GRC met three times during the past financial year 

and managed to review nine corporate governance 

policy documents. The need to streamline processes 

and improve communication and technology is still a 

major challenge, despite the GRC’s continued effort to 

strengthen good governance. 

4.5	O ther governance matters

4.5.1		  Integrated sustainability management

The National Treasury recognises that strategy, risk, performance 

and sustainability are inseparable, as outlined in the King III 

best practices, and that the organisation is and is seen to be 

a responsible corporate citizen. The National Treasury views 

sustainability as a business practice which creates value for 

stakeholders through managing environmental, social and 

governance factors impacting on the department’s ability to 

achieve sustainable service delivery to its stakeholders. 

The National Treasury acknowledges the importance of 

reporting the results of its operations in a way that brings 

together information about the department’s strategy, 

governance, and performance and future prospects while 

reflecting the commercial, social and environmental context 

within which it operates. 

In the period under review, the National Treasury has 

continued to emphasise the importance of embedding the 

management of environmental and sustainable development 

issues in its core business. The department has already 

integrated sustainability aspects in its strategic objectives 

which are reported in chapters dealing with programme 

performance included as parts of this report and the human 

resource report to provide a unified view on the performance 

of the department. 

The sustainability agenda for the National Treasury will 

continue to aim at delivering a high quality service that 

impacts positively on the stakeholders while aiming at being 

a responsible corporate citizen. The National Treasury will 

continue to be responsive to the changing environment and 

expectations of the stakeholders with a view to making a 

meaningful contribution to the betterment of the lives of the 

people and the improvement of the country’s economy.

At the core of its sustainability agenda, the department has 

recognised the need to be cost efficient and environmentally 

friendly to ensure that its resources are used efficiently and in a 

socially and environmentally responsible manner. To this end, 

cost-saving initiatives and green practices are being gradually 

introduced into business practices. To ensure this, certain key 

cost drivers have been monitored in the past financial year to 

measure performance against the sustainability agenda. The 

results show that paper consumption has been reduced by 17 

per cent, the number of flights booked has been reduced by 

7.5 per cent, car rentals have been reduced by 25.4 per cent 

and business travel accommodation by 11.6 per cent.

3.4.2	 Operational controls 

The Supply Chain Management Enhancement Project 

has progressed very well and the implementation of its 

outcomes have begun to make a visible contribution 

towards operational efficiency and good governance 

within the department. The National Treasury is committed 

to monitoring the implementation of the project to 

ensure that corrective action is taken promptly against any 

identified discrepancies and keep the supply chain function 

responsive to the strategic needs of the department. 

Amongst the key initiatives in the period under review was 

the development of the Internal Control Framework which 

is aimed at ensuring:

•	 the reliability and integrity of financial and operational 

information

•	 the effectiveness of operations

•	 safeguarding of assets

•	 compliance with laws, regulations and controls.

5.	 Asset management 
In terms of sub-section 38(1) (b) of the Public Finance 

Management Act as amended, the Accounting Officer for 

the Department is responsible for the effective, efficient, 

economical and transparent use of the resources of the 

Department.

In addition to the normal day-to-day administration and 

management of the National Treasury’s asset register, the 

department’s Asset Management unit undertook several 
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key activities to improve the overall asset management 

environment of the department.  These activities are as follows:

5.1	A sset verification

The Asset Management unit continued to manage the asset 

verification internal, utilising temporary staff to assist in the 

process.  The internal process benefited the organisation through 

cost savings, created opportunities for skills development 

and provided hands on knowledge and awareness on asset 

management matters.  Overall coverage for asset verification 

in the 203/14 financial period was 94%, an improvement of 

2% compared to the 92% coverage in the 2012/13 financial 

year. Focus in 2014/15 annual asset verification is to ensure 

that business declare and withdraw from service any unused or 

assets broken beyond economical repair.  

The Asset Management unit seeks to drive a collaborated 

process through effective verification and disposal process, 

by identifying and removing redundant to a demarcated 

disposal area. Innovatively and with the intention to enhance 

the culture of ownership of the assets amongst our staff, 

Asset Management unit intends to develop and introduce 

an internally built system on the department’s intranet where 

employees will verify assets in their possession. This will 

supplement the work that will be done during the 2014/15 

asset verification and possibly produce more savings by 

requiring less man hours for asset verification. 

5.2	A sset disposal

During the 2013/14 financial year, the Asset Management 

unit, in line with the National Treasury’s Asset Management 

Disposal policy, Treasury Regulations and the King III Code of 

Corporate Governance report pertaining to corporate social 

responsibility, managed to dispose redundant and obsolete 

assets as follows:

•	 Donated 184 computer desktops to state-owned 

educational institutions: Repelego Primary, Moime Primary, 

Langutani Senior Primary, Modiselle Senior Primary and 

Thutong Secondary.  The schools are situated in semi-rural 

areas where there is a need for such computer equipment;

•	 Donated 10 computer desktops to Child Soul Care Centre 

and one computer to Garankuwa Sunshine Hospice 

HIV&AIDS Centre in support of Mandela Day;

•	 Sold 504 scrap electronic assets to a recycler of redundant 

electronic equipment through a bidding process; and

•	 Identified and disposed of 123 assets through a bid 

process to National Treasury staff members. These 

consisted of computer equipment, kitchen appliances, 

office machinery and equipment and a motor vehicle. 

During the process, revenue amounting to R210  167.18 

was collected including revenue for scrapped items. 

The department will continue to support needy communities 

in the 2014/15 financial year.

5.3	A cquisition of ICT assets	

The department continues to follows supply chain management 

processes in the acquisition of assets.  The Information 

Communication Technology Procurement Committee (ICTPC) 

is mandated to ensure efficient and effective procurement 

and utilisation of state resources for ICT related asset. The 

committee consists of Financial Management, Information 

Technology and Security Management. The committee 

enforces internal control measures to ensure accountability 

and eliminate wasteful expenditure. In the 2013/14 financial 

year, the ICTP committee monitored the bulk buying initiative 

that was introduced in 2012/13 to ensure continuity and 

economic use of state funds. 

6.	I nformation on 
predetermined 
objectives

Divisional heads reported to the Director-General on a quarterly 

basis on the progress made with regard to programme 

delivery and measurable objectives, as contained in the 

National Treasury’s Strategic Plan and the annual performance 

plan. These were also incorporated in an internal management 

report; detailed information on predetermined objectives is 

included on pages 32 to 133 of this report. 
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7.	SC oPA resolutions
The committee recommended in a report dated 9 May 2013 

that the executive authority should submit a progress report 

to SCoPA on the implementation of controls for material 

impairments and under-spending of the vote. 

8.	E xemptions and 
deviations received from 
the National Treasury

There were no exemptions or deviations received for the 

period under review.

9.	I nterim financial 
statements

Interim financial statements were issued for various quarters 

of the financial year that depicted a true and fair view of the 

financial performance, financial position, changes in net assets 

and cash flows of the department at the end of each quarter. 

The interim financial statements were prepared on a modified 

cash basis of accounting and the National Treasury- determined 

Framework as prescribed in the PFMA and Treasury Regulations 

and the relevant guidelines issued by the National Treasury. 

10.	Approval
The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 134 to 306 

have been approved by the Accounting Officer.

Lungisa Fuzile

Director-General 

National Treasury
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

Introduction
1.	I  have audited the financial statements of the National 

Treasury set out on pages 155 to 210, which comprise 

the appropriation statement, the statement of financial 

position as at 31  March  2014, the statement of financial 

performance, statement of changes in net assets and the 

cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the 

notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information. 

Accounting officer’s 
responsibility for the 
financial statements
2.	T he accounting officer is responsible for the preparation 

and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with the Modified Cash Standard and the 

requirements of the Public Finance Management Act 

of South Africa,1999(Act No.1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the 

Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2012 (Act No.5 

of 2012 ) (DoRA), and for such internal control as the 

accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s 
responsibility
3.	 My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my 

audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South 

Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice 

issued in terms thereof and International Standards on 

Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with 

ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement.

4.	A n audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend 

on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 

controls relevant to the entity’s preparation of the 

financial statements in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the financial statements.

5.	I  believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit 

opinion.

Opinion
6.	I n my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in 

all material respects, the financial position of the National 

Treasury as at 31 March 2014 and its financial performance 

and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with 

the Modified Cash Standard and the requirements of the 

PFMA and DoRA.

Additional matter
I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not 

modified in respect of this matter:

Unaudited supplementary 
schedules
7.	T he supplementary information set out on pages 211 to 

247 does not form part of the financial statements and is 

presented as additional information. I have not audited 

these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an 

opinion thereon.
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REPORT ON OTHER 
LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS
In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued 

in terms thereof, I report the following findings on the 

reported performance information against predetermined 

objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual 

performance report, non-compliance with legislation as well 

as internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify 

reportable findings as described under each subheading but 

not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. 

Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on 

these matters:

Predetermined objectives
8.	I  performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 

usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

information for the following selected programmes 

presented in the annual performance report of the 

department for the year ended 31 March 2014:

	 •	 Programme 2: Economic Policy, Tax, Financial 

Regulation and Research on pages 39 to 45

	 •	 Programme 3: Public Finance and Budget 

Management on pages 46 to 73

	 •	 Programme 5: Financial Systems and Accounting on 

pages 88 to 107

	 •	 Programme 7: Civil and Military Pension Contributions 

to Funds and Other Benefits on pages 119 to 123

	 •	 Programme 8: Technical Support and Development 

Finance on pages 124 to 133

9.	I  evaluated the reported performance information against 

the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.

10.	I  evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was presented in 

accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting 

principles and whether the reported performance was 

consistent with the planned programmes. I further 

performed tests to determine whether indicators 

and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, 

measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the 

National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme 

performance information (FMPPI).

11.	I  assessed the reliability of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was valid, accurate 

and complete.

The material findings in respect of the selected programmes 

are as follows:

Programme 2: Economic 
Policy, Tax, Financial 
Regulation and Research

Usefulness of reported performance 
information

12.	N o reasons for variances between planned and actual 

achievements reported in the annual performance report 

were given for 100% of the targets not achieved, as 

required by the National Treasury’s Guide for the preparation 

of the annual report. This was due to a lack of review of 

the presentation of the annual performance report by 

management.

13.	T he FMPPI requires the following: 

	 •	 Performance targets must be specific in clearly 

identifying the nature and required level of 

performance, it must be measurable and the period 

or deadline for delivery of targets must be specified; 

and

	 •	 Performance indicators must be well defined by 

having clear data definitions so that data can be 

collected consistently and is easy to understand 

and use.
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The measurability of planned targets and indicators could not 

be assessed due to a lack of technical indicator descriptions 

and documented system descriptions.

Reliability of reported performance 
information

14.	T he FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems 

to collect, collate, verify and store performance information 

to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual 

achievements against planned objectives, indicators 

and targets. I was unable to obtain the information and 

explanations I considered necessary to satisfy myself as 

to the reliability of the reported performance information. 

This was due to the fact that the department could not 

provide sufficient, appropriate evidence in support of the 

reported performance information.

Programme 3: Public 
Finance and Budget 
Management

Usefulness of reported performance 
information

15.	N o reasons for variances between planned and actual 

achievements reported in the annual performance report 

were given for 75% of the targets not achieved, as required 

by the National Treasury’s Guide for the preparation of 

the annual report. This was due to a lack of review of 

the presentation of the annual performance report by 

management.

16.	T he FMPPI requires the following: 

	 •	 Performance targets must be specific in clearly 

identifying the nature and required level of performance; 

They it must be measurable and the period or deadline 

for delivery of targets must be specified; and

	 •	 Performance indicators must be well defined by having 

clear data definitions so that data can be collected 

consistently and is easy to understand and use.

The measurability of planned targets and indicators could not 

be assessed due to a lack of technical indicator descriptions 

and documented system descriptions.

Reliability of reported performance 
information

17.	T he FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems 

to collect, collate, verify and store performance information 

to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual 

achievements against planned objectives, indicators 

and targets. I was unable to obtain the information and 

explanations I considered necessary to satisfy myself as 

to the reliability of the reported performance information. 

This was due to the fact that the department could not 

provide sufficient, appropriate evidence in support of the 

reported performance information.

Programme 5: Financial 
Systems and Accounting

Usefulness of reported performance 
information

18.	N o reasons for variances between planned and actual 

achievements reported in the annual performance report 

were given for 74% of the targets not achieved, as required 

by the National Treasury’s Guide for the preparation of 

the annual report. This was due to a lack of review of 

the presentation of the annual performance report by 

management.

19.	T he FMPPI requires the following: 

	 •	 Performance targets must be specific in clearly 

identifying the nature and required level of performance; 

They must be measurable and the period or deadline 

for delivery of targets must be specified; and

	 •	 Performance indicators must be well defined by having 

clear data definitions so that data can be collected 

consistently and is easy to understand and use.
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The measurability of planned targets and indicators could not 

be assessed due to a lack of technical indicator descriptions 

and documented system descriptions.

Reliability of reported performance 
information

20.	T he FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems 

to collect, collate, verify and store performance information 

to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual 

achievements against planned objectives, indicators 

and targets. I was unable to obtain the information and 

explanations I considered necessary to satisfy myself as 

to the reliability of the reported performance information. 

This was due to the fact that the department could not 

provide sufficient, appropriate evidence in support of the 

reported performance information.

Programme 7: Civil 
and Military Pension 
Contributions to Funds 
and Other Benefits

Usefulness of reported performance 
information

21.	N o reasons for variances between planned and actual 

achievements reported in the annual performance report 

were given for 100% of the targets not achieved, as 

required by the National Treasury’s Guide for the preparation 

of the annual report. This was due to a lack of review of 

the presentation of the annual performance report by 

management.

22.	T he FMPPI requires the following: 

	 •	 Performance targets must be specific in clearly 

identifying the nature and required level of performance; 

Theymust be measurable and the period or deadline 

for delivery of targets must be specified; and

	 •	 Performance indicators must be well defined by having 

clear data definitions so that data can be collected 

consistently and is easy to understand and use.

The measurability of planned targets and indicators could not 

be assessed due to a lack of technical indicator descriptions 

and documented system descriptions.

Reliability of reported performance 
information

23.	T he FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate 

systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance 

information to ensure valid, accurate and complete 

reporting of actual achievements against planned 

objectives, indicators and targets. I was unable to 

obtain the information and explanations I considered 

necessary to satisfy myself as to the reliability of the 

reported performance information. This was due to the 

fact that the department could not provide sufficient, 

appropriate evidence in support of the reported 

performance information.

Programme 8: Technical 
Support and Development 
Finance

Usefulness of reported performance 
information

24.	N o reasons for variances between planned and actual 

achievements reported in the annual performance 

report were given for 100% of the targets not achieved, 

as required by the National Treasury’s Guide for the 

preparation of the annual report. This was due to a lack of 

review of the presentation of the annual performance 

report by management.

25.	T he FMPPI requires the following: 

	 •	 Performance targets must be specific in clearly 

identifying the nature and required level of 
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performance; They must be measurable and the 

period or deadline for delivery of targets must be 

specified; and

	 •	 Performance indicators must be well defined by 

having clear data definitions so that data can be 

collected consistently and is easy to understand 

and use.

The measurability of planned targets and indicators could not 

be assessed due to a lack of technical indicator descriptions 

and documented system descriptions.

Reliability of reported performance 
information

26.	 The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate 

systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance 

information to ensure valid, accurate and complete 

reporting of actual achievements against planned 

objectives, indicators and targets. I was unable to 

obtain the information and explanations I considered 

necessary to satisfy myself as to the reliability of the 

reported performance information. This was due to the 

fact that the department could not provide sufficient, 

appropriate evidence in support of the reported 

performance information.

Additional matter 

I draw attention to the following matter:

Achievement of planned targets

27.	 Refer to the annual performance report on pages 32 to 133 

for information on the achievement of the planned targets 

for the year.

Compliance with 
legislation
I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the department 

had complied with applicable legislation regarding financial 

matters, financial management and other related matters. My 

findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in 

key legislation, as set out in the General Notice issued in terms 

of the PAA, are as follows:

Annual financial statements

28.	 The financial statements submitted for auditing were 

not prepared in all material respects in accordance 

with the requirements of section 40(1) of the PFMA. 

The auditors identified material misstatements in the 

submitted financial statements in respect of various 

disclosure notes, which management subsequently 

corrected resulting in the financial statements receiving 

an unqualified audit opinion.

Internal control
I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial 

statements, performance report and compliance with legislation. 

The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal 

control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on non-

compliance with legislation included in this report:

Leadership

Oversight responsibility regarding 
reporting and compliance

29.	T he oversight processes implemented by management 

in respect of the annual financial statements and 

performance information were inadequate.

Action plans to address internal control 
deficiencies

30.	T he department developed a plan to address internal 

and external audit findings, but the appropriate level of 

management did not timeously monitor adherence to 

the plan.
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OTHER REPORTS

Investigations
31.	A n investigation was conducted by the Public Service 

Commission (PSC) based on an allegation received by 

their office in terms of the irregular appointment of service 

providers by the National Treasury. The PSC presented 

a draft investigation report to the Deputy Minister of 

Finance. At present, the National Treasury is awaiting the 

final report.

32.	A lleged irregularities with respect to supply chain 

management processes at the Government Pensions 

Administration Agency have been referred to the National 

Treasury’s Specialised Audit Services unit for further 

investigation.

33.	A llegations of receiving kickbacks, bribes and entertainment 

have been referred to the National Treasury’s Specialised 

Audit Services unit for further investigation. 

Auditor-General

Pretoria

7 August 2014
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Summary of significant 
accounting policies 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with the following policies, which have been applied 

consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated.

  

The historical cost convention has been used, except where 

otherwise indicated.  Management has used assessments 

and estimates in preparing the annual financial statements.  

These are based on the best information available at the time 

of preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful additional information 

has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the financial 

statements and to comply with the statutory requirements 

of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 

1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury 

Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual 

Division of Revenue Act.

1.	Ba sis of preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with the Modified Cash Standard.  

2.	 Going concern 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going 

concern basis.

3.	 Presentation currency
Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South 

African Rand (R) which is also the functional currency of 

the department. 

4.	R ounding 
Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded 

to the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

5.	 Foreign currency 
translation

Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are 

translated into South African Rands using the exchange rates 

prevailing at the date of payment / receipt and end March 

2014 for disclosure purposes.

6.	C urrent year 
comparison with budget 

A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual 

amounts for each programme and economic classification is 

included in the appropriation statement.  

7.	R evenue

7.1	A ppropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprise of departmental allocations but 

exclude direct charges against the revenue fund (i.e. statutory 

appropriations), which are reported and audited separately 

as part of the consolidated annual financial statements. This 

includes extra-ordinary receipts.

Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of 

financial performance on the date the appropriation 

becomes effective.  Adjustments made in terms of the 

adjustments budget process are recognised in the 

statement of financial performance on the date the 

adjustments become effective.

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the 

relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a 

payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.  

7.2	D epartmental revenue 

Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of 

financial performance when received and is subsequently paid 

into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.
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Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the 

reporting date is recognised as a payable in the statement of 

financial position. 

7.3	A ccrued departmental revenue 

Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding 

tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the financial 

statements when:

•	 it is probable that the economic benefits or service 

potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

department; and

•	 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration receivable. Accrued tax revenue (and related 

interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable 

from collecting agents.

8.	E xpenditure

8.1	C ompensation of employees

8.1.1	 Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial 

performance on the date of payment.  

8.1.2	 Social contributions

Social contributions made by the department in respect of 

current employees are recognised in the statement of financial 

performance on the date of payment.  

Social contributions made by the department in respect of 

ex-employees are classified as transfers to households in the 

statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

8.2	O ther expenditure

Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and 

subsidies and payments for capital assets) is recognised in the 

statement of financial performance on the date of payment.  

The expense is classified as a capital expense if the total 

consideration paid is more than the capitalisation threshold.  

8.3	A ccrued expenditure payable

Accrued expenditure payable is recorded in the notes to the 

financial statements when the goods are received or, in the 

case of services, when they are rendered to the department.

Accrued expenditure payable is measured at cost.

8.4	 Leases

8.4.1	 Operating leases

Operating lease payments made during the reporting period 

are recognised as current expenditure in the statement of 

financial performance on the date of payment.

The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to 

the financial statements. 

8.4.2	 Finance leases 

Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are 

recognised as capital expenditure in the statement of financial 

performance on the date of payment.

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to 

the financial statements and are not apportioned between the 

capital and interest portions.  

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are 

recorded and measured at the lower of:

•	 cost, being the fair value of the asset; or

•	 the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including 

any payments made to acquire ownership at the end of 

the lease term, excluding interest.

9.	 Aid Assistance

9.1	A id assistance received

Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement 

of financial performance when received. In-kind aid assistance 

is recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the date 

of receipt and is measured at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any 

unutilised funds from aid assistance that are required to be 
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refunded to the donor  are recognised as a payable in the 

statement of financial position.

9.2	A id assistance paid

Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial 

performance on the date of payment. Aid assistance payments 

made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a receivable 

in the statement of financial position.

10.	Cash and cash 
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement 

of financial position.  

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the 

statement of financial position.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash 

equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held, other short-

term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

11.	Prepayments and 
advances

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of 

financial position when the department receives or disburses 

the cash.  

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently 

measured at cost.

12.	Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of 

financial position at cost plus accrued interest, where interest 

is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.

13.	I nvestments
Investments are recognised in the statement of financial 

position at cost.

14.	Impa irment of financial 
assets

Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial 

asset, an estimation of the reduction in the recorded carrying 

value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future 

economic benefits expected to be received from that asset, is 

recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

15.	Payables
Loans and payables are recognised in the statement of financial 

position at fair value.

16.	Capital Assets

16.1	Immovable capital assets

Immovable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes 

to the financial statements at cost.  Immovable capital assets 

acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured 

at fair value as at the date of acquisition.  

Where the cost of immovable capital assets cannot be 

determined accurately, the immovable capital assets are 

measured at R1 unless the fair value of the asset has been 

reliably estimated, in which case the fair value is used.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as 

approved by the OAG) are recorded at R1.

Immovable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and 

are not subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to 

the cost of the asset at the end of the capital project unless 

the immovable asset is recorded by another department in 

which case the completed project costs are transferred to 

that department.  
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16.2	Movable capital assets

Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the 

financial statements at cost.  Movable capital assets acquired 

through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair 

value as at the date of acquisition.  

Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined 

accurately, the movable capital assets are measured at fair 

value and where fair value cannot be determined the movable 

assets are measured at R1.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as 

approved by the OAG) are recorded at R1. 

Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are 

not subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to 

the cost of the asset at the end of the capital project unless 

the movable asset is recorded by another department/entity 

in which case the completed project costs are transferred to 

that department.  

16.3	Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the 

financial statements at cost.  Intangible assets acquired 

through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair 

value as at the date of acquisition.  

Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes 

to the financial statements when the department commences 

the development phase of the project.  

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined 

accurately, the intangible capital assets are measured at 

fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the 

intangible assets are measured at R1.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as 

approved by the OAG) are recorded at R1. Intangible assets 

are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to 

depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to 

the cost of the asset at the end of the capital project unless the 

intangible asset is recorded by another department/entity in 

which case the completed project costs are transferred to that 

department.  

17.	Capital Reserves / Net 
Assets 

Net assets are determined as the residual interest in the assets 

of the department after deducting its liabilities. Net assets 

comprise of capital reserves, recoverable revenue, retained 

funds and revaluation reserves.

18.	Provisions and 
Contingents

18.1	Provisions

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial 

statements when there is a present legal or constructive 

obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events 

in the past and it is probable that an outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefits or service potential will be 

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the 

obligation can be made. 

The provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds 

required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

18.2	Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial 

statements when there is a possible obligation that arises from 

past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 

events not within the control of the department or when there 

is a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not 

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 

the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be 

measured reliably.
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18.3	Contingent assets

Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial 

statements when a possible asset arises from past events, and 

whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within 

the control of the department.

18.4	Commitments 

Commitments are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial 

statements when there is a contractual arrangement or an approval 

by management in a manner that raises a valid expectation that 

the department will discharge its responsibilities thereby incurring 

future expenditure that will result in the outflow of cash.

19.	U nauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of 

financial position until such time as the expenditure is either:

•	 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with 

funding and the related funds are received; or

•	 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature 

without funding and is written off against the appropriation 

in the statement of financial performance; or

•	 transferred to receivables for recovery.

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the 

confirmed unauthorised expenditure.

20.	Fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes 

to the financial statements when confirmed.  The amount 

recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or 

wasteful expenditure incurred.  

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes 

to the financial statements when it is resolved or transferred to 

receivables for recovery.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the 

amount that is expected to be recoverable and are de-recognised 

when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

21.	I rregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial 

statements when confirmed.  The amount recorded is equal 

to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is 

impracticable to determine, in which case reasons therefore 

are provided in the note.  

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either 

condoned by the relevant authority, transferred to receivables 

for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.Irregular 

expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is 

expected to be recoverable and are de-recognised when 

settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

22.	Related Party
Related party includes all entities that are subject to common 

control, i.e. falling under the Minister of Finance. Related party 

transactions are disclosed in the notes and  include transfer 

of resources, services or obligations between the Department 

and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

23.	Agent-Principal 
arrangements

Government Pensions Administration Agency  render 

administrative services on behalf of the National Treasury with 

respect to Post-Retirement Medical subsidies as provided for 

and regulated by the Public Service Coordinating Bargaining 

Council resolutions; Military Pensions in terms of the Military 

Pensions Act, 1976 (Act No. 84 of 1976); Injury on Duty 

payments in terms of the Compensation for Occupational 

Injuries and Diseases Act, 1993 (Act No. 130 of 1993); Special 

Pensions in terms of the Special Pensions Act 1996 (Act No. 

69 of 1996); other pensions in relation to Judges, former State 

Presidents, Magistrates and Parliamentary Office Bearers in 

terms of relevant legislations; and other administration as 

agreed between the Parties and specified in the Administration 

Agreement. Refer to note 35 to the financial statements.
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24. 	Changes in accounting 
estimates 

Change in estimates is an adjustment of the carrying amount 

of an asset or a liability, or the amount of the periodic 

consumption of an asset, that results from the assessment 

of the present status of, and expected future benefits and 

obligations associated with, assets and liabilities. Changes in 

accounting estimates result from new information or new 

developments and, accordingly, are not corrections of errors. 

The nature and amount of a change in an accounting estimate 

that has an effect in the current period is disclosed in the notes. 

25. 	Prior period errors 
There were no errors corrected in the current period. 

26. 	Non-adjusting events 
after the reporting date 

There were no non-adjusting events after the reporting date.
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Notes to the 
Appropriation Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Per economic classification Final 
appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Variance Variance as 
a % of final 

appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000 %

Current expenditure 1,599,914 1,524,025 75,889 4.7%

Compensation of employees 658,082 631,541 26,541 4.0%

Goods and services 941,832 892,484 49,348 5.2%

Transfers and subsidies 20,694,090 20,655,881 38,209 0.2%

Provinces and municipalities 1,161,339 1,149,233 12,106 1.0%

Universities and technikons 10,000 10,000 - 0.0%

Departmental agencies and accounts 13,977,158 13,976,884 274 0.0%

Public corporations and private enterprises 1,024,603 1,024,603 - 0.0%

Foreign governments and international 
organisations 

1,052,016 1,026,928 25,088 2.4%

Households 3,468,974 3,468,233 741 0.0%

Payments for capital assets 33,262 21,648 11,614 34.9%

Buildings and other fixed structures 5,000 - 5,000 100.0%

Machinery and equipment 28,262 21,648 6,614 23.4%

Software and other intangible assets - - - 0.0%

Payments for financial assets 2,905,000 2,905,503 (503) 0.0%

Total per economic classification 25,232,266 25,107,057 125,209 0.5%

Per conditional grant Final 
appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

Variance Variance as 
a % of final 

appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000 %

Local Gov. Fin Man Grant 424,798 424,798 - 0.0%

Neighborhood Dev. Partners Grant 598,041 585,935 12,106 2.0%

Infr Skills Development Grant 98,500 98,500 - 0.0%

Integrated Cities Develop Grant 40,000 40,000 - 0.0%

Total 1,161,339 1,149,233 12,106 0.0%

2 Neighbourhood Partnership Development grant unspent funds are mainly due to the municipalities that had long delays in securing service provider contracts which delayed construction as planned. Furthermore, 

municipal procurement processes and non-compliance with grant conditions by municipalities led to further delays that required withholding grants to be disbursed.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

For the year ended 31 March 2014

National Treasury Vote 10

STATEMENT OF 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

REVENUE

Annual appropriation 1 25,232,266 21,177,604

Departmental revenue3 2 3,687,531 4,201,708

Aid assistance 3 96,052 27,844

TOTAL REVENUE 29,015,849 25,407,156

EXPENDITURE

Current expenditure

Compensation of employees 4 631,541 589,747

Goods and services 5 892,484 820,488

Aid assistance 3 55,065 26,315

Total current expenditure 1,579,090 1,436,550

Transfers and subsidies 20,655,881 19,263,666

Transfers and subsidies 7 20,655,881 19,263,666

Expenditure for capital assets 21,871 19,982

Tangible capital assets 8 21,871 19,982

Total expenditure for capital assets

Payment for financial assets 6 2,905,503 325,221

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 25,162,345 21,045,419

SURPLUS  FOR THE YEAR 3,853,504 4,361,737

Reconciliation of net surplus for the year

Voted funds 125,209 158,584

Annual appropriation 125,209 158,584

Departmental revenue 2 3,687,531 4,201,708

Aid assistance4 3 40,764 1,445

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 3,853,504 4,361,737

3 The current year revenue amount includes an amount of R18,9 million collected by GPAA at year-end. 
4 The aid assistance balance excludes the amount of R58,000 (rounded off ) which was over-expenditure in the previous years on the ODA donor fund. It was collected as part of revenue during the current financial year and 

paid over to the National Revenue Fund, hence there is a difference of R58,000 between the balance reflected on the Statement of Performance and Note 3.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

as at 31 March 2014

National Treasury Vote 10

STATEMENT OF 
FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Current assets 2,323,151 1,401,333

Cash and cash equivalents 9 748,709 160,902

Prepayments and advances 10 1,694 62,587

Receivables 11 21,711 18,277

Loans5 13 1,551,037 1,159,567

Aid assistance receivable 3 - -

Non-current assets 63,879,657 65,039,224

Investments 12 400,956 400,956

Loans 13 63,478,701 64,638,268

TOTAL ASSETS 66,202,808 66,440,557

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 771,157 241,239

Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund		  14 125,209 158,584

Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund6 15 589,948 11,804

Bank Overdraft 16 - 50,062

Payables 17 15,294 19,344

Aid assistance payable 3 40,706 1,445

Aid assistance unutilised 3 - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 771,157 241,239

NET ASSETS 65,431,651 66,199,318

Represented by:

Capitalisation reserve 400,956 400,956

Recoverable revenue 65,030,695 65,798,362

TOTAL 65,431,651 66,199,318

5 This amount is the current portion of the non-current loan receivable in 2013/14 financial year which is due to be paid in April 2014.
6 This amount includes revenue held at GPAA amounting to R18,9 million (2012/13:R3,9 million) which will be paid over to National Treasury in the new financial year and surrendered to the National Revenue Fund.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

For the year ended 31 March 2014

National Treasury Vote 10

STATEMENT OF 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS

Capitalisation reserves

Opening balance Annex 2A 400,956 400,956

Closing balance 400,956 400,956

Recoverable revenue

Opening balance 65,798,362 65,346,810

Transfers: (767,667) 451,552

Debts revised - -

Debts recovered (included in departmental receipts)7 (1,159,567) 300

Debts raised 391,900 451,252

Closing balance 65,030,695 65,798,362

TOTAL 65,431,651 66,199,318

7 This amount reflect the repayment of the Gautrain loan which includes R840 million capital repayment and R319,5 million interest repayment.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

For the year ended 31 March 2014

National Treasury Vote 10

CASH FLOW 
STATEMENT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts 28,908,451 25,250,256

Annual appropriated funds received 1 25,232,266 21,177,604

Departmental revenue received8 2 1,100,992 955,771

Interest received 2.2 2,479,141 3,089,037

Aid assistance received 3 96,052 27,844

Net decrease/(increase) in working capital 53,409 117,648

Surrendered to Revenue Fund (3,267,971) (6,667,871)

Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor9 3 (1,503) (644)

Current payments (1,579,090) (1,436,550)

Payments for financial assets 6 (2,905,503) (325,221)

Transfers and subsidies paid 7 (20,655,881) (19,263,666)

Net cash flow from operating activities 18 551,912 (2,326,048)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for capital assets 8 (21,871) (19,982)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2 111 -

Increase in loans 13 768,097 (451,252)

Net cash flows from investing activities 746,337 (471,234)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Distribution/dividend received 2.2 107,287 156,900

Increase in net assets (767,667) 451,552

Net cash flows from financing activities (660,380) 608,452

 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 637,869 (2,188,830)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 110,840 2,299,670

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 9 & 19 748,709 110,84010

8 The revenue amount excludes interest, dividends and rent on land as well as sale of capital assets which are disclosed as separate line items in the cash flow statement.
9 The current year amount is made up of R1,4 million surrendered to the RDP and R58 000 donor fund that was surrendered to the NRF in respect of over-expenditure in the previous years on the ODA donor fund. Refer to note 3.
10 Consolidated cash and cash equivalents in prior year includes overdraft of R50 million from GPAA.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

National Treasury Vote 10

Notes to the Annual 
Financial Satements

1.	 Annual Appropriation

 
Final 

Appropriation

 
Actual Funds 

Received

Funds not 
requested/ 

not received

Actual Funds
received 
2012/13

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration 334,769 334,769 -     321,138 

Economic Policy, Tax, Financial Regulation and 
Research

133,924                  133,924 -               122,508 

Public Finance and Budget Management 225,634 225,634 -               247,315 

Asset and Liability Management 2,993,994 2,993,994 -               282,807 

Financial Systems and Accounting 732,923 732,923 -               686,335 

International Financial Relations 1,093,836 1,093,836 -            1,040,498 

Civil and Military Pensions, Contribution to Funds 
and Other benefits

3,523,564 3,523,564 -            3,345,872 

Technical Support and Development Finance 2,484,675 2,484,675 -            1,999,636 

Revenue Administration 9,534,393 9,534,393 -            9,149,374 

Financial Intelligence and State Security 4,174,554 4,174,554 -            3,982,121 

Total 25,232,266 25,232,266 - 21,177,604

Note 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

Conditional Grants11

Total grants received 1,161,339 1,056,345

2.	D epartmental revenue
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1 73,087 53,866

Interest, dividends and rent on land 2.2 2,586,428 3,245,937

Sales of capital assets 2.3 111 -

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 2.4 1,027,905 901,905

Departmental revenue collected 3,687,531 4,201,708

11 The conditional grants are included in the amounts as per the Annual Appropriation
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National Treasury Vote 10

Notes to the Annual 
Financial Satements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

2.1	 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

Sales of goods and services produced by the department 73,058 53,855

Sales by market establishment 96 96

Administrative fees - 7

Other sales 72,962 53,752

Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods 29 11

Total 73,087 53,866

2.2	 Interest, dividends and rent on land	

Interest 2,479,141 3,089,037

Dividends 107,287 156,900

Total 2,586,428 3,245,937

2.3	 Sales of capital assets

Machinery and equipment 111 -

Total 111 -

2.4	 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Loans and advances 840,000 261

Receivables - 232

Other receipts including Recoverable Revenue 187,905 901,412

Total 1,027,905 901,905

3.	 Aid assistance							     

3.1	A id assistance received in cash from RDP

Foreign

Opening balance 1,445 644

Revenue 96,052 27,844

Expenditure (55,288) (26,399)

Current (55,065) (26,315)

Capital (223) (84)

Surrendered to the RDP (1,445) (644)

Surrendered to the NRF (58) -

Closing balance 40,706 1,445
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National Treasury Vote 10

Notes to the Annual 
Financial Satements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

3.2	T otal assistance

Opening balance 1,445 644

Revenue 96,052 27,844

Expenditure (55,288) (26,399)

Current (55,065) (26,315)

Capital (223) (84)

Surrendered / transferred to retained funds (1,503) (644)

Closing balance 40,706 1,445

3.3	A nalysis of balance

Aid assistance repayable 40,706 1,445

Closing balance 40,706 1,445

4.	C ompensation of employees

4.1	 Salaries and Wages

 Basic salary 409,813  370,979

 Performance award 18,258  29,561 

 Service Based 309  193 

 Compensative/circumstantial 2,435  2,069 

 Other non-pensionable allowances 139,098  129,801

 Total 569,913 532,603

4.2	 Social contributions

Employer contributions

 Pension 49,403 44,770

 Medical 12,160 12,315

 Bargaining council 65 59

 Total 61,628 57,144

 Total compensation of employees 631,541 589,747

 Average number of employees 1,180 1,189



National Treasury Annual Report 2013/14 191

National Treasury Vote 10

Notes to the Annual 
Financial Satements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

5.	 Goods and services
Administrative fees 3,921 5,003

Advertising 2,245 2,385

Minor Assets 5.1 334 832

Bursaries (employees) 4,217 3,606

Catering 1,873 1,834

Communication 7,715 8,455

Computer services 5.2 237,858 227,719

Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services 5.3 477,799 419,187

Entertainment 229 230

Audit cost – external 5.4 12,586 11,036

Fleet services12 1,646 565

Inventory13                                                                                                                                          5.5 - 1

Consumables 5.6 14,546 14,854

Operating leases  41,378 41,039

Owned and leasehold property expenditure 5.7  12,025 11,421

Travel and subsistence 5.8  48,672 48,933

Venues and facilities  13,135 8,059

Training and staff development  5,977 10,548

Other operating expenditure 5.9  6,328 4,781

Total 892,484 820,488

5.1 	M inor Assets

Tangible assets

Machinery and equipment 334 832

Total 334 832

5.2 	C omputer services

SITA computer services  33,990 29,835

External computer service providers  203,868 197,884

Total 237,858 227,719

5.3	C onsultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services

Business and advisory services 254,318 243,810

Legal costs 10,679 11,017

Contractors  2,475 1,483

Agency and support/outsourced services  210,327 162,877

Total  477,799 419,187

12 Prior year amount for fuel, oil and gas was reclassified to fleet services in line with the new SCOA version. 
13 Prior year inventory figures reclassified to consumables in line with the new SCOA version. See sub-note 5.5 and 5.6.
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National Treasury Vote 10

Notes to the Annual 
Financial Satements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

5.4	A udit cost – External 

Regularity audits  11,740 10,634

Performance audits  - 402

Forensic investigations  846 -

Total 12,586 11,036

5.5	 Inventory

Medical supplies - 1

Total - 1

5.6	C onsumables

Consumables supplies 3,456 1,893

Clothing material and accessories 72 -

Household supplies 2,004 743

Building material and supplies 513 119

Communication accessories 1 -

IT consumables 776 -

Other consumables 90 1,031

Stationery, printing and office supplies 11,090 12,961

Total 14,546 14,854

5.7	O wned and leasehold property expenditure

Municipal services 11,164 9,938

Property management fees 558 497

Other14 303 986

Total 12,025 11,421

5.8	T ravel and subsistence

Local  26,447 28,598

Foreign  22,225 20,335

Total 48,672 48,933

5.9	O ther operating expenditure

Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees  4,941 4,214

Resettlement costs  301 127

Other15  1,086 440

Total  6,328 4,781

14 The decrease in the current year amount was due to maintenance costs that were included in the prior year as well as changes in Standard Charts of Accounts version.
15 The increase in the current year was due to an increase in the printing and publication expenditure as a result of the Banking Regulations that were published by the South African Reserve Bank.
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National Treasury Vote 10

Notes to the Annual 
Financial Satements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

6.	 Payment for financial assets
Extension of loans for policy purposes16  2,905,000 200,000

Other material losses written off 6.1  45 118

Debts written off17 6.2  458 125,103

Total 2,905,503 325,221

6.1	O ther material losses written off

Nature of losses

Miscellaneous 45 118

Total 45 118

6.2	D ebts written off

Claims recoverable - Western Cape Provincial Government - 124,965

Civil and military pension (bad debts) 14 5

Staff debts written-off  444 9

Forex losses  - 124

Total 458 125,103

7.	T ransfers and subsidies
Municipalities and Provinces 35&36  1,149,233 1,056,345

Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1B  13,976,884 13,396,786

Universities and technikons Annex 1C  10,000 9,000

Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 1D 1,024,603 655,502

Foreign governments and international organisations Annex 1E 1,026,928 974,626

Households Annex 1F  3,468,233 3,171,157

Gifts, donations and sponsorships made Annex 1G  - 250

Total 18  20,655,881 19,263,666

8.	E xpenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets

Building and other fixed structures - 615

Machinery and equipment 21,871 19,367

Total 21,871 19,982

16 The current year amount includes R205 million for recapitalisation of the Postbank, R300 million for Land Bank and R2,4 billion for recapitalisation of the Development Bank of Southern Africa. 
17 The decrease in the amount disclosed is due to an amount of R125 million owed by Western Cape which was written-off in the prior year, refer to sub-note 6.2.
18 Amounts disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements in the prior year are the actual expenditure on transfer and subsidies, amounts disclosed in the related annexures are the amounts appropriated per the 

Appropriation Act (Budget amount).
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National Treasury Vote 10

Notes to the Annual 
Financial Satements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

8.1	A nalysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2013/14

Voted funds Aid assistance Total

R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets

Building and other fixed structures - - -

Machinery and equipment 21,648 223 21,871

Total 21,648 223 21,871

8.2	A nalysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2012/13

Voted funds Aid assistance Total

R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 

Building and other fixed structures 615 - 615

Machinery and equipment 19,283 84 19,367

Total 19,898 84 19,982

Note 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

9.	Ca sh and cash equivalents
Consolidated Paymaster General Account19 727,506 156,893

Cash on hand  23 23

Cash with commercial banks (Local)  21,180 3,986

Total 748,709 160,902

10.	Prepayments and advances
Travel and subsistence  30 9

Prepayments20  171 58,566

Advances paid 10.1  1,493 4,012

Total 1,694 62,587

10.1	Advances paid

National departments Annex 
6A 

1,493 4,012

Total 1,493 4,012

19  This amount includes R18,9 million collected and held by GPAA at year-end,  it will be paid over to the National Treasury bank account in the new financial year.

 20 The decrease in prepayments is due to pensions payouts that were made earlier in the prior year as a result of the holidays that fell on the 01 April to ensure that pensioners were paid on time.
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National Treasury Vote 10

Notes to the Annual 
Financial Satements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

11.	Receivables
2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Note <1 year 1-3 years >3 years Total Total

Claims recoverable 11.1 1,401 - 838 2,239                  1,770

Recoverable 
expenditure

11.2  1,626  591  103  2,320 1,063

Staff debt 11.3  439  653  470  1,562 1,014

Other debtors 11.4 3,316  5,929 6,345 15,590 14,430

Total 6,782  7,173 7,756 21,711 18,277

Note 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

11.1         Claims recoverable

National departments  1,533 1,038

Provincial departments  35 21

Foreign governments  671 711

Households and non-profit institutions - -

Total 2,239 1,770

11.2         Recoverable expenditure

Disallowance damages and losses  601 525

Disallowance miscellaneous  1,675 519

Private telephones  44 19

Total 2,320 1,063

11.3	Staff debt

Departmental Debt 1,562 1,014

Total 1,562 1,014

11.4	Other debtors

Value Added Tax (SARS) 860 454

Amounts owed by other departments – Civil and Military Pensions 1,224 576

Outstanding debt – Civil and Military Pensions 9 8

Disallowance – Civil and Military Pensions 5,320 5,360

Disallowance – Special Pensions 8,177 8,032

Total 15,590 14,430
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Notes to the Annual 
Financial Satements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

12.	I nvestments
Non-Current (non-current shares)

Development Bank of Southern Africa Annex 2A 200,000 200,000

Public Investment Corporation Limited Annex 2A 1 1

SASRIA Annex 2A - -

Land Bank Annex 2A 200,955 200,955

Total 400,956 400,956

Analysis of non-current investments

Opening balance 400,956 400,956

Closing balance 400,956 400,956

13.	Loans
Public corporations21 65,029,738 65,797,835

-	N on-Current 63,478,701 64,638,268

-	 Current 1,551,037 1,159,567

Total 65,029,738 65,797,835

Analysis of balance

Opening balance  65,797,835 65,346,583

New issues  391,470 451,252

Amount paid  (1,159,567) -

Closing balance 65,029,738 65,797,835

14.	Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Opening balance 158,584 2,477,423

Transfer from statement of financial performance 125,209 158,584

Paid during the year (158,584) (2,477,423)

Closing balance 125,209 158,584

21 This amount includes loans to Eskom R60 billion and the loan is disclosed excluding the accrued interest. The interest to be accrued is only determined upon receipt of a compliance certificate from Eskom auditors. 

The compliance certificate is due 90 days after year end (31 March 2014). As at 31 March 2014 it had not yet been received.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

15.	Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Opening balance 11,804 544

Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 3,687,531 4,201,708

Paid during the year (3,109,387) (4,190,448)

Closing balance 589,948 11,804

16.	Bank Overdraft
Consolidated Paymaster General Account - (50,062)

Total - (50,062)

17.	Payables – current
Advances received 17.1 - 143

Clearing accounts 17.2 274 116

Other payables 17.3 15,020 19,085

Total 15,294 19,344

17.1	Advances received

Other institutions Annex 6B - 143

Total - 143

17.2 	Clearing accounts

Income tax (PAYE) 220 116

Persal Reversal Account 36 -

Pension Fund 18

Total 274 116

17.3	Other payables

Civil and military pensions 7,620 7,181

Special pensions 7,400 11,851

Salary reversals - 53

Total other pension 15,020 19,085
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

18.	Net cash flow available from operating activities
Net surplus as per Statement of Financial Performance 3,853,504 4,361,737

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities (3,301,592) (6,687,785)

Decrease/(increase) in receivables – current 11  (3,434) 170,210

Increase in prepayments and advances 10  60,893 (58,680)

Increase/(decrease) in payables – current 17 (4,050) 6,118

Proceeds from sale of capital assets (111) -

Expenditure on capital assets 8  21,871 19,982

Surrenders to Revenue Fund 14&15  (3,267,971) (6,667,871)

Surrenders to RDP Fund/Donor 3  (1,503) (644)

Dividend received 2.2 (107,287) (156,900)

Net cash flow (utilised)/generated by operating activities 551,912 (2,326,048)

19.	Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash 
flow purposes

Consolidated Paymaster General account 727,506 106,831

Cash on hand 23 23

Cash with commercial banks (local) 21,180 3,986

Total 748,709 110,840

20.	Contingent liabilities
Liable to			                                          Nature

Other guarantees22 Annex3A 26, 844,357 26,514,055

Claims against the department Annex3B        2,536,516 1,392,674

Other contingent liabilities Annex3B 630,915 693,202

Total 30,011,788 28,599,931

21.	Commitments
Current expenditure

Approved and contracted 736,777 135,677

Total 23 736,777 135,677

22 Amount per annexure 3A is made up of the closing balance R 26, 7 billion   and interest R62,7 million   (2012/13: R26,4 billion + R65,6 million).
23 Commitments pertaining to contracts at year end that are older than 1 year are equal to R441,6 million. The increase in the amount disclosed in the current year is due to the new transversal systems contracts that were 

finalized in June 2013 for Business Connexion (PERSAL & Vulindlela) R275.6 million and Accenture (BAS & LOGIS) R398.5 million, the contracts will expire in July 2016.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

22.	Accruals
Listed by economic classification

30 Days 30+ Days Total Total

Goods and services 9,962 423 10,385 24,672

Transfers and subsidies 25,072 3,754 28,826 24,423

Capital Assets 24

Other 742

Total 35,002 4,177 39,211 49,861

Listed by programme level

Administration 6,476 6,037

Economic Policy, Tax, Financial Regulation and Research 672 478

Public Finance and Budget Management 915 2,652

Asset and Liability Management 657 862

Financial Systems and Accounting 829 15,786

International Financial Relations 805 301

Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other 28,739 23,442

Benefits 118 303

Total 39,211 49,861

23.	Employee benefits
Leave entitlement 13,064 19,851

Service bonus (thirteenth cheque) 12,443 11,335

Performance awards 24,338 29,612

Capped leave commitments 13,963 15,256

Total24 63,808 76,054

24 Leave entitlements and capped leave commitments include negative balances of R1,8 million and R10 000 respectively.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

24.	Lease commitments

Operating leases expenditure

2013/14
Buildings and 

other fixed 
structures

Machinery and 
equipment

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000

Not later than 1 year 58,007 1,544 59,551

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 113,607 1,272 114,879

Total lease commitments25 171,614 2,816 174,430

2012/13
Buildings and 

other fixed 
structures

Machinery and 
equipment

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000

Not later than 1 year 28,358 1,435 29,793

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - 1,069 1,069

Total 28,358 2,504 30,862

25.	Receivables for departmental revenue
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 33,381 261

Interest, dividends and rent on land 197,328 224,354

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 4,749 18,271

Total 235,458 242,886

25.1	Analysis of receivables for departmental revenue

Opening balance 242,886 318,854

Less: Amount received (242,886) (318,854)

Add: Amount recognised 235,458 242,886

Total 235,458 242,886

25 Lease commitments for buildings and other fixed structures relate to office space and parking, the lease contracts expired in February 2014, the new lease contracts are being finalized in conjunction with the Department of 

Public Works.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

26.	I rregular expenditure
Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Opening balance -

Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to current year 9,068 115

Less: Amounts condoned (9,068) (115)

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation - -

Analysis of awaiting condonation per age classification

Current year - -

Prior years - -

Total - -

26.1	Details of irregular expenditure – current year

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings 2013/14

R’000

Usage of service provider in an established Cautionary warning letters were issued to 2  9,068

panel of forensic firms without following officials

proper supply chain management 

procedures

Total 9,068

26.2	Details of irregular expenditure condoned

Incident Condoned by (condoning authority) 2013/14

R’000

Usage of service provider in an established National Treasury 9,068

panel of forensic firms without following

proper supply chain management 

procedures

Total 9.068
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

27.	Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening balance -

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure –relating to prior year -

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure –relating to current year 1 -

Less: Amounts Condoned (1) -

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting condonation - -

27.1	Analysis of current year’s fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings 2013/14

R’000

Bank charges relating to incorrect payout of an 
investment in the RSA retail bonds

A final warning letter was issued to the responsible 
official.

1

Total 1

28.	Key management personnel
No. of 

Individuals

Political office bearers 2  3,991 3,801

Officials:

Level 14 69  78,430 64,681

Level 15 to 16 14  16,920 13,634

Total 99,341 82,116

29.	Impa irment
Ex-Employee debtors 450 1,014

Other debtors (Material Losses)26 37,083 36,290

Departmental losses 8 -

Total 37,541 37,304

26 Other debtors include R35 million from GPAA relating to pension payouts made to 752 pensioners as a result of misinterpretation of the Special Pensions Act which were approved for write-off annually.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

R’000 R’000

30.	Provisions
Military Pension 6,511 6,160

Injury on duty 63,143 37,801

Military Medical benefits 3,670 684

Post-Retirement Medical benefits 331 240

Admin Expense Claim 4,590 4,401

Special Pension 47,475 105,451

Government Employees Pension Fund27(GEPF) 3,536,500 5,901,790

SARS claim28 3,595 -

Adam Smith International Claim 250 -

Unlawful Blacklisting Claim29 1,395 -

Total 3,667,460 6,056,527

30.1	Reconciliation of movement in provisions – 2013/14

Military 
Pensions

Injury on Duty Military Medical 
Benefits

Post-retirement 
Medical Benefits

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance 6,160 37,801 684 240

Provisions raised 6,047 41,867 6,311 28,028

Amounts used (5,696) (16,525) (3,325) (27,937)

Closing balance 6,511 63,143 3,670 331

Special Pensions GEPF Others Total provisions

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance 105,451 5,901,790 4,401 6,056,527

Provisions raised - - 9,830 90,688

Unused amounts reversed (55,224) - - (55,224)

Amounts used (2,752) (600,000) (4,401 (660,636)

Change in provision due to change in estimation 
inputs

- (1,765,290) - (1,765,290)

Closing balance 47,475 3,536,500 9,830 3,667,460

27 This amount relates to the revised Non Statutory Forces (NSF) pension dispensation that was approved by Cabinet in 2010, In 2013/14 financial year, a final revised funding plan based on repaying a total debt of R4,1 billion for a 

period of nine years  was agreed upon, by GEPF and National Treasury. A payment of R600 million was made to GEPF (refer to annexure G) in March 2014, which was deducted from the total debt, leaving a balance of R3,5 billion.
28 This amount relates to a claim for salaries of SARS personnel seconded to the National Treasury.
29 This amount was initially disclosed as contingent liability until 9 May 2014, when the court found against the Minister and ordered the settlement of the claim with interest and costs.
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31.	Related Parties

31.1	Parties related to the National Treasury

1.	T he Financial and Fiscal Commission (FFC)

2.	 Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC)

3.	 Development Bank of Southern Africa Limited (DBSA)

4.	A ccounting Standards Board (ASB)

5.	 Financial Services Board (FSB)

6.	 Public Investment Corporation (PIC)

7.	S outh African Revenue Service (SARS)

8.	S asria Limited (SASRIA)

9.	 Project Development Facility (PDF)

10.	T he Land and Agricultural Development Bank of South Africa (Land Bank)

11.	 Corporation for Public Deposits

12.	 DBSA Development Fund	

13.	I ndependent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA)

14.	 Financial Advisory Intermediary Services (FAIS) Ombudsman

15.	O ffice of the Pension Fund Adjudicator (OPFA)

16.	T he Co-operative Banks Development Agency (CBDA)

17.	T echnical Assistance Unit (TAU)

18.	G overnment Pensions Administration Agency (GPAA)

19.	S outh African Reserve Bank (SARB)

31.2	Related Party Transactions

Name Nature Space Occupied 2013/14 2012/13

Financial R’000 R’000

TAU Building Occupied 1475 2,150 1,429

CBDA Building Occupied 646 942 753

Project Development Facility Building Occupied 665 969 776

Department of Public Works
Building Occupied 

(40 Church Square)
3,871 3,366

TOTAL30 7,932 6,324

30 The amounts relating to TAU, CBDA, PPP are reflected at fair values as the entities do not pay actual rent.
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32.	Change in accounting estimates
Value from 

original 
estimate

Value from 
amended 
estimate

R-value impact 
of change in 

estimate

Repayment agreement between National  Treasury and GEPF on the 
revised Non Statutory Forces dispensation31

5,301,790 3,536,500 1,765,290

33.	Movable tangible capital assets
Movement in movable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2014

Opening 
balance

Current Year 
adjustments to 

prior year balances
Additions Disposals Closing balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Machinery and equipment

Transport assets 3,800 300 (460) 3,640

Computer equipment 62,999 6,039 (11,561) 57,477

Furniture and office equipment 17,848 (4) 1,067 (225) 18,686

Other machinery and equipment 16,591 4 14,465 (537) 30,523

Total movable tangible 
capital assets

101,238 - 21,871 (12,783) 110,326

33.1	Additions

Additions to movable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2014

Cash Non-cash

(Capital work in 
Progress current 

costs and finance 
lease payments)

Received current, 
not paid (paid 

current year, 
received prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Description

Transport assets 300 - - - 300

Computer equipment 6,039 - - - 6,039

Furniture and office equipment 1,067 - - - 1,067

Other machinery and 

equipment
14,465 - - - 14,465

Total additions of movable 
tangible capital assets

21,871 - - - 21,871

31 The change in accounting estimate resulted from the agreement between National and GEPF on the revised repayment plan which covers a period of nine years based on what will be feasible to both parties.
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33.2	Disposals

Disposals of movable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2014

Assets Sold Transfer out or 
destroyed or 

scrapped

Total Disposals Cash received 
actual

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Description

Transport assets 460 - 460 111

Computer equipment 5,137 6,424 11,561 99

Furniture and office equipment 56 169 225 -

Other machinery and equipment 51 486 537 -

Total Disposals of movable tangible capital assets 5,704 7,079 12,783 210

33.3	Movement for 2012/13

Movement in the movable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2013

	 Opening 
balance

Current Year 
adjustments 
to prior year 

balances

Additions Disposals Closing balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Transport assets 3,841 (1) 1,013 (1,053) 3,800

Computer equipment 57,247 (12) 9,254 (3,490) 62,999

Furniture and office equipment 17,052 3 908 (115) 17,848

Other machinery and equipment 7,952 (1) 8,652 (12) 16,591

Total movable tangible assets 86,092 (11) 19,827 (4,670) 101,238

33.4	Minor assets

Movement in minor assets per the asset register for the year ended 31 March 2014

Intangible 
Assets

Heritage Assets Machinery and 
equipment

Biological assets Closing balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance - - 33,864 - 33,864

Current year adjustment to prior 
year balances

- - - - -

Additions - - 346 - 346

Disposal - (1,409) (1,409)

TOTAL - - 32,801 - 32,801
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Machinery and 
equipment

Total

Number of minor  assets at cost 22 22

Total number of minor assets 22 22

Movement in minor assets per the asset register for the year ended 31 March 2013

Intangible 
Assets

Heritage Assets Machinery and 
equipment

Biological assets Closing balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance - - 33,671 - 33,671

Additions - - 848 - 848

Disposal - - (655) - (655)

TOTAL - - 33,864 - 33,864

Machinery and 
equipment

Total

Number of minor  assets at cost 22 22

Total number of minor assets 22 22

34.	I ntangible Capital Assets
Movement in Intangible Capital Assets per the asset register for the year ended 31 March 2014

Opening 
Balance

Current year 
adjustments 
to prior year 

balances

Additions Disposals Closing balance

R’ R’ R’ R’ R’

Computer Software 4 - - - 4

TOTAL32 4 - - - 4

32 Legacy systems (BAS, Persal, Logis, and Vulindlela) at a fair value of R4 (R1 each).
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34.1	Additions

Additions to Intangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2014

Cash Non-cash (Development  
work-in-

progress current 
costs )

Received 
current, not paid

(paid current 
year, received 

prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Description

Computer Software - - - - -

Total additions of Intangible 
capital assets

- - - - -

34.2	Disposals

Disposals of Intangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2014

Assets Sold Transfer out or 
destroyed or 

scrapped

Total Disposals Cash received 
actual

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Description

Computer Software - - - -

Total Disposal of Intangible capital assets - - - -

35.	Imm ovable Tangible Capital Assets
Movement in Immovable Tangible Capital Assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2014

Opening 
Balance

Current year 
adjustments 
to prior year 

balances

Additions Disposals Closing balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Other fixed Structures 615 - - - 615

TOTAL 615 - - - 615
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35.1	Additions

Additions to Immovable Tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2014

Cash Non-cash (Capital work-in-
progress current 

costs and 
finance lease 

payments)

Received 
current, not paid

(paid current 
year, received 

prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Description

Other Fixed Structures - - - - -

Total additions of Immovable 
Tangible capital assets

- - - - -

35.2	Disposals

Disposals of Immovable Tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2014

Assets Sold Transfer out or 
destroyed or 

scrapped

Total Disposals Cash received 
actual

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Description

Other Fixed Structures - - - -

Total Disposal of Immovable Tangible capital 
assets

- - - -

36.	Agent-principal arrangements

34.1	Department acting as the principal

2013/14

R’000

Government Pension Administration Agency (GPAA) 3,523,098

Total 3,523,098
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REPORT ON THE 	
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction
1.	I  have audited the financial statements of the Project 

Development Facility set out on pages 254 to 272, 

which comprise the statement of financial position as at 

31  March  2014, the statement of financial performance, 

statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and 

the statement of comparison of budget information with 

actual information for the year then ended, as well as the 

notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information.

Accounting officer’s 
responsibility for the 
financial statements
2.	T he accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and 

fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 

with Statements of Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practise (Statements of GRAP) and the requirements of the 

Public Finance Management Act of South Africa,1999 (Act 

No.1 of 1999) and for such internal control as the accounting 

officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation 

of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s 
responsibility
3.	 My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my 

audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South 

Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice 

issued in terms thereof and International Standards on 

Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with 

ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement.

4.	A n audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend 

on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 

financial statements in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the financial statements. 

5.	I  believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
6.	I n my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in 

all material respects, the financial position of the Project 

Development Facility as at 31 March 2014 and its financial 

performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in 

accordance with Statements of GRAP and the requirements 

of the PFMA.
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Additional matter
I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not 

modified in respect of this matter:

Unaudited supplementary 
schedules
7.	T he supplementary information set out on pages 273 to 

283 does not form part of the financial statements and is 

presented as additional information. I have not audited 

these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an 

opinion thereon.

REPORT ON OTHER 
LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS
In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in 

terms thereof, I report the following findings on the reported 

performance information against predetermined objectives 

for selected programme presented in the annual performance 

report, non-compliance with legislation as well as internal 

control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable 

findings as described under each subheading but not to gather 

evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, 

I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters:

Predetermined objectives
8.	I  performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 

usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

information for the following selected programme 

presented in the annual performance report of the trading 

entity for the year ended 31 March 2014:

	 •	 Programme 8: Technical Support and Development 

Finance on pages 124 to 133

9.	I  evaluated the reported performance information against 

the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

10.	I  evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was presented in 

accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting 

principles and whether the reported performance 

was consistent with the planned programme. I further 

performed tests to determine whether indicators 

and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, 

measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the 

National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme 

performance information (FMPPI).

11.	I  assessed the reliability of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was valid, accurate 

and complete.

The material findings in respect of the selected programmes 

are as follows:

Programme 8: Technical 
Support and Development 
Finance

Usefulness of reported performance 
information

12.	N o reasons for variances between planned and actual 

achievements reported in the annual performance report 

were given for 100% of the targets not achieved, as 

required by the National Treasury’s Guide for the preparation 

of the annual report. This was due to a lack of review of 

the presentation of the annual performance report by 

management.

13.	T he FMPPI requires the following: 

	 •	 Performance targets must be specific in clearly 

identifying the nature and required level of 

performance, must be measurable and the period or 

deadline for delivery of targets must be specified.
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	 •	 Performance indicators must be well defined by 

having clear data definitions so that data can be 

collected consistently and is easy to understand 

and use.

14. The measurability of planned targets and indicators 

could not be assessed due to a lack of technical indicator 

descriptions and documented system descriptions.

Reliability of reported performance 
information

15.	T he FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems 

to collect, collate, verify and store performance information 

to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual 

achievements against planned objectives, indicators 

and targets. I was unable to obtain the information and 

explanations I considered necessary to satisfy myself as 

to the reliability of the reported performance information. 

This was due to the fact that the department could not 

provide sufficient, appropriate evidence in support of the 

reported performance information.

Additional matter 
16.	I  draw attention to the following matter:

Achievement of planned 
targets
17.	 Refer to the annual performance report on pages 32 to 133 

for information on the achievement of the planned targets 

for the year.

Compliance with legislation
18.	I  did not identify any instances of material non-compliance 

with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the 

General Notice issued in terms of the PAA.

Internal control
19.	I  considered internal control relevant to my audit of 

the financial statements, performance report and 

compliance with legislation. The matters reported below 

are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies 

that resulted in the findings on the performance report 

included in this report.

Leadership

Oversight responsibility regarding 
performance reporting

20.	T he oversight processes implemented by management in 

respect of the annual performance report were inadequate.

Pretoria

7 August 2014
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Project Development Facility     |     A Trading Entity Managed by the PPP Unit of National Treasury

Statement of 
Financial Performance*
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Revenue From Non-Exchange Transactions 7 41,889,842 91,830,711

Revenue From Exchange Transactions 8 330,304,364 472,883,230

Project Expenses 9 (227,158,178) (231,467,042)

Gross Surplus 145,036,028 333,246,899

Investment Income 10 25,350,119 8,323,822

Administration Expenses 11 (968,418) (890,656)

Surplus for the year 169,417,729 340,680,065

* The accounting framework has changed to Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), refer to Note 3.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

Project Development Facility     |     A Trading Entity Managed by the PPP Unit of National Treasury

Statement of 
Financial Position
As at 31 March 2014

ASSETS

Current Assets 620,874,009 454,576,437

Receivables From Exchange Transactions 12 1,777,037 491,279

Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 619,096,972 454,085,158

Total Assets 620,874,009 454,576,437

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Accumulated Surpluses 574,944,741 405,527,012

Current Liabilities

Payables Under Exchange Transactions 14 3,569,110 4,079,704

Unspent Government Funding 15 42,360,158 44,969,721

Total Equity and Liabilities 620,874,009 620,874,009
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Notes Accumulated 
Surpluses

Balance at 31 March 2012 64,846,947

Net Surplus for the year ended 31 March 2013  340,680,065

Balance at 31 March 2013 405,527,012

Net Surplus for the year ended 31 March 2014 169,417,729

Balance at 31 March 2014 574,944,741

Project Development Facility     |     A Trading Entity Managed by the PPP Unit of National Treasury

Statement of 
Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from government and other sources 363,808,973 563,805,454

Cash paid to suppliers (231,246,754) (262,378,409)

Cash generated from operations 16 132,562,219 301,427,045

Interest Received 17 32,449,595 8,876,513

Net cash inflow from operating activities 165,011,814 310,303,558

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 165,011,814 310,303,558

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 13 454,085,158 143,781,600

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 13 619,096,972 454,085,158

Project Development Facility     |     A Trading Entity Managed by the PPP Unit of National Treasury

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Cashflow 
Statement
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2013/2014  2013/2014 2013/2014 2013/2014

Budget Actual Variance
Over / (Under)

Variance

Revenue From Non-Exchange Transactions 84,000,000 41,889,842 (42,110,158) (50.1)

Revenue From Exchange Transactions 340,000,000 330,304,364 (9,695,636) (2.9)

Project Expenses (235,350,000) (227,158,178) (8,191,822) (3.5)

Gross Surplus 188,650,000 145,036,028 (43,613,972) (23.1)

Investment Income 16,100,000 25,350,119 9,250,119 57.5

Administration Expenses (1,355,000) (968,418) (386,582) (28.5)

Surplus for the year 203,395,000 169,417,729 (33,977,271) (16.7)

For further information on the variances, refer to note 30. 

Project Development Facility     |     A Trading Entity Managed by the PPP Unit of National Treasury

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Statement of Comparison of Budget 
and Actual Amounts
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Project Development Facility     |     A Trading Entity Managed by the PPP Unit of National Treasury

Accounting
Policies
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Project Development Facility     |     A Trading Entity Managed by the PPP Unit of National Treasury

Accounting
Policies
For the year ended 31 March 2014

1.	 General Information
The Project Development Fund (PDF) is a Trading Entity that is 

incorporated in the Republic of South Africa. The PDF is located 

within the Public Private Partnership (PPP) unit of National 

Treasury. Its principal role is to increase the quality and quantity 

of commercially viable projects that are processed through the 

PPP unit’s project pipeline. 

The PDF also supports the:

(1)	 NDPG (Neighbourhood Development Partnership Grant) -–

Its role is to support and facilitate the planning and development 

of neighbourhood development programmes and projects 

that provide catalytic infrastructure to leverage 3rd party public 

and private sector development towards improving the quality 

of life of residents in targeted underserved neighbourhoods 

(townships) via the implementation of long term strategic 

plans and catalytic project plans.

(2)	 US Grant – 

Its role is to facilitate partnership arrangements at municipal 

level, monitor implementation of the growth and development 

summit agreements, and establishes a framework for municipal 

investment.

(3)	 Alternative Energy programme – 

The National Treasury (via the PPP unit) entered into a 

Memorandum of Agreement with the Department of 

Energy and The Development Bank of South Africa to assist 

in the creation of a stable enabling market environment 

for Independent Power Producing (IPP) projects and the 

implementation and support of specific IPP projects. The role 

of the PPP unit is to reimburse approved expenditure incurred 

by the Development Bank of South Africa.

2.	S tandards and 
Interpretations Early 
Adopted

No new standards and interpretations have been early adopted 

in the current financial year.

3.	S ignificant Accounting 
Policies

3.1	C hanges in Accounting Policies and 
Consistency of Preparation

PDF previously prepared their Annual Financial Statements 

(AFS) in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practice (GAAP).  

Trading Entities are to prepare their AFS in accordance with 

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) for periods 

commencing on or after 1 April 2013, per Directive 9 issued by 

the Accounting Standards Board (November 2011).  

This basis of preparation has not fundamentally changed 

the AFS and its presentation is consistent with prior years.  

The notable change is the introduction of the Statement 

of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts (page 8) and 

the classification of revenue from exchange/non-exchange 

transactions (page 11).

3.2	 Statement of Compliance

The annual financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with all the Standards of GRAP, including any 

interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the 

Accounting Standards Board. 

These require the use of certain accounting estimates. They 

also require management to exercise its judgement in the 

process of applying the company’s accounting policies based 

on best available information at the time of preparation.

3.3	C urrency

The financial statements are presented in South African Rand 

since that is the currency in which the majority of the entity’s 

transactions are denominated.

All amounts presented in the Annual Financial Statements and 

disclosed in the notes are rounded to the nearest Rand.
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3.4	 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical 

cost basis, except where indicated otherwise. The financial 

statements incorporate the fundamental assumptions of 

going concern and accrual.

The principal accounting policies are adopted and set out 

below. These have been applied consistently with the previous 

financial year.

3.5	 Revenue Recognition

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either receives value 

from another entity without directly giving approximately 

equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity 

without directly receiving approximately equal value in 

exchange.

Funding Revenue

Funding revenue is recognised when it is probable that future 

economic benefits will flow to the entity and the entity will 

comply with the conditions attaching to it. 

Where the resources transferred to the entity are subject to 

the fulfilment of specific conditions, it recognises an asset 

and a corresponding liability. As and when the conditions are 

fulfilled, the liability is reduced and revenue is recognised.

Funding received by the NDPG is accounted for in the 

financial statements of the entity as a liability until the 

related eligible project expenses are incurred. Investment 

income related to these funds increases the liability unless 

the entity is approved to utilise investment income for 

unrelated expenses, in which case it is recognised on a time 

proportionate basis.

Funding received by the PDF is accounted for in the financial 

statements of the entity on receipt.

Funding received by the US Grant is accounted for in the 

financial statements of the entity as a liability until the related 

eligible project expenses are incurred.

Revenue from exchange transactions 

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives 

assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 

approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, 

services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange.

Alternative Energy Programme

Receipts received from private parties for the Alternative Energy 

Programme are accounted for in the financial statements of 

the entity on receipt.

3.6	 Irregular and Fruitless and Wasteful 
Expenditure

Irregular expenditure relates to expenditure incurred in 

contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of 

any applicable legislation, including the Public Financial and 

Management Act (PFMA), 1999 as amended.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relates to expenditure 

made in vain and could have been avoided had reasonable 

care or controls been exercised.

All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is disclosed 

in the notes to the financial statement in the period in which 

it is incurred.

3.7	 Financial Instruments

Recognition

Financial instruments are initially recognised when the entity 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the relevant 

instrument, and are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent 

to initial recognition, these instruments are measured as set 

out below.

Financial Assets

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets 

with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 

in an active market. Loans and receivables (including 
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receivables, cash and cash equivalents) are measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any 

impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest 

rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of 

interest would be immaterial.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities of PDF are classified as other financial 

liabilities. The classification depends on the nature and 

purpose of the financial liabilities and is determined at the 

time of initial recognition.

Other financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

3.8	 Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entity, 

transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional 

currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of 

exchange prevailing at the date the funds are received and 

are re-valued at the closing rate as at the financial year end 

31 March 2014.

3.9	G oing Concern

The entity is financially dependent on the funding it receives 

from National Treasury. On the basis that the funding 

has been listed in the Estimates of National Expenditure, 

management believe that the entity will continue to 

be a going concern in the year ahead. For this reason, 

management continue to prepare the annual financial 

statements on a going concern basis.

3.10	Related Party

The entity is related to other entities and departments in 

the national sphere of government, it is considered related 

to National Treasury and the Development Bank of South 

Africa.  The transactions are consistent with normal operating 

relationships between the entities, and are undertaken on 

terms and conditions that are normal for such transactions.

Refer to note 27 for the transactions between related parties.

3.11	Events After Reporting Date

Events after the reporting date are those events, both 

favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the 

reporting date and the date when the financial statements are 

authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

(a)	 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at 

the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting 

date); and

(b)	 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the 

reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting 

date).

Refer to note 24 for the events identified after the reporting date.

3.12	Significant judgments, estimates and 
assumptions

The entity has disclosed any key assumptions concerning the 

future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

within the next financial year. 

Refer to note 26 for the significant judgements, estimates and 

assumptions for the financial year.

3.13	Budgets 

The entity has presented a comparison of the budget 

amounts for which it is held publicly accountable and actual 

amounts as a separate additional financial statement in the 

financial statements.  

The comparison of budget and actual amounts shall present 

separately for each level of legislative oversight:

(a)	 the approved and final budget amounts;

(b)	 the actual amounts on a comparable basis; and

(c)	 by way of note disclosure (refer to note 30), an explanation 

of material differences between the budget for which the 

entity is held publicly accountable and actual amounts.  
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3.14	Transfers under Common Control

It is anticipated that the entity will be transferred to another 

entity under the common control of National Treasury.

On the date of transfer the entity will:

•	 Derecognise from its financial statements, all the assets 

transferred and liabilities relinquished in a transfer of 

functions at their carrying amounts.

•	 Recognise the difference between the carrying amounts 

of the assets transferred, the liabilities relinquished and 

the consideration received (if any) from the acquirer in 

accumulated surplus or deficit.

4.	 Public Sector practices 
and policies

4.1	  Inter-relationship with other 
government entities

The entity operates as a trading entity of the National Treasury, 

within the South African Government environment. In line with 

prevailing government practices, the entity is not obliged to 

pay for certain expenditure such as office space and utilisation 

of fixed and moveable assets.

4.2	P ublic Finance Management Act 
reporting requirements

Section 40(3) (b)

No material losses occurred during the current financial year 

due to criminal conduct nor any unauthorised expenditure or 

irregular expenditure.

5.	C ontingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is:

(a)	 a possible obligation that arises from past events, and 

whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence 

or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 

not wholly within the control of the entity; or

(b)	 a present obligation that arises from past events but is not 

recognised because:

	 i.	 it is not probable that an outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefits or service potential 

will be required to settle the obligation; or

	 ii.	 the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 

with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but only disclosed in 

the notes.

The entity’s main operating activities are to facilitate project 

developments for municipalities/institutions. Hence project 

commitments are provided to facilitate such developments. 

These commitments range from 2 – 20 years depending on 

the nature of the project.

The full commitment less cumulative expenditure results in 

the future commitment to the municipality/institution. This is 

the contingent liability.

Refer to note 31 on the list of contingent liabilities for both the 

PDF and NDPG projects.

6.	C ontingent Assets
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past 

events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 

events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Contingent assets are not recognised, but only disclosed in 

the notes.

The entity has a legal right to recover expenditure disbursed 

when a project reaches the final stage of the PPP, from the 

private party.

Funds are paid to transaction advisors in accordance with the 

terms of the contract between the institution or municipality 
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and the transaction advisor. Disbursed funds may be recovered 

from the successful private party bidder when the PPP reaches 

financial close. The PDF is exposed to the full risk of the project 

not reaching financial closure. 

To date, the PDF has not recovered any disbursed funds from 

projects as they have not reached financial closure.

An asset will be recognised once the project has reached 

financial closure. It is only at this closure where the PDF will be 

able to recover the expenditure disbursed.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

Project Development Facility     |     A Trading Entity Managed by the PPP Unit of National Treasury

Notes to the Annual 
Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

7.	R evenue From 										        
Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue From Non-Exchange Transactions include:

-	 Government Funding Income – PDF 3,000,000 3,000,000

-	 Government Funding Income – NDPG 12,639,842 35,030,279

-	 Employment Creation Facilitation Facility (PDF) * 26,250,000 14,000,000

-	 PDF Alternative Energy (IPP) ** - 39,800,000

-	 US Grant - 432

41,889,842 91,830,711

8.	R evenue From Exchange 						    
Transactions

Revenue From Exchange Transactions include:

-	 PDF Alternative Energy (IPP) *** 330,304,364 472,883,230

330,304,364 472,883,230

9.	 Project Expenses
Project expenses include:

-	 PDF 2,474,914 4,158,110

-	 NDPG (government funding) 12,639,842 35,030,279

-	 NDPG (admin) 281,539 1,034,963

-	 PDF Alternative Energy (IPP) 211,761,883 191,211,700

-	 US Grant - 31,990

227,158,178 231,467,042

* Employment Creation Facilitation Facility revenue is specific funding from National Treasury for job creating projects.

** IPP initial funding was received from National Treasury

*** IPP funding is from private parties (a percentage factor of the project value and documentation fees).
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10.	I nvestment Income
Investment income includes:

- Interest received - PDF bank account 1,277,264 1,237,748

- Interest received - PDF call account 13,075,780 3,750,353

- Interest received - PDF Alternative Energy bank account 7,931,238 1,886,513

- Interest received - NDPG bank account 107,202 764,548

- Interest received - NDPG call account 2,958,635 684,660

25,350,119 8,323,822

NDPG obtained approval to retain the NDPG interest and utilise it for NDPG administrative expenses and internal projects.

PDF and NDPG have set up call accounts to maximise the interest income.

11.	Administration Expenses
Administration expenses includes:

- Audit fees 325,682 189,579

- Bank charges 23,503 25,254

- Financial managers’ fees 619,233 675,823

968,418 890,656

Financial managers’ fees represent amounts paid to Deloitte Consulting (Pty) Ltd for accounting services.

12.	Receivables From Exchange 					   
Transactions

Accrued interest – operating accounts 856,025 491,279

Accrued interest – call accounts 921,012 -

1,777,037 491,279

Accrued interest is interest relating to March 2014, but only received in April 2014.

The credit risk exposure of the PDF is disclosed in note 20.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

13.	Cash and Cash Equivalents
PDF bank account 56,407,344 42,386,004

PDF call account * 265,986,630 253,750,353

PDF - Alternative Energy 241,753,125 102,377,406

PDF - PPPIAF - 690

NDPG bank account 31,594,334 4,886,044

NDPG call account * 23,355,539 50,684,661

619,096,972 454,085,158

14.	Payables Under 								      
Exchange Transactions

Payables 3,569,110 4,079,704

The credit period on purchases is 30 days from invoice date. No interest is charged on trade payables. The PDF has financial risk 

management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit time frame.

15.	Unspent Government Funding
NDPG:
Opening balance 44,969,721 24,112,776

Funding received in the current year 10,030,279 55,887,224

Revenue recognised in current year (12,639,842) (35,030,279)

Closing balance 42,360,158 44,969,721

* Both the PDF and NDPG opened call accounts in 2012/2013 and have invested their funds in these accounts to maximise the interest earned.
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16.	Reconciliation of surplus 							     
for the year to cash generated 						    
from operations

Surplus for the year 169,417,729 340,680,065

Interest Received 17 (32,449,595) (8,876,513)

Operating cash flows before working capital changes 136,968,134 331,803,552

Working capital changes: (4,405,915) (30,376,507)

- Decrease in Payables Under Exchange Transactions (510,594) (50,650,973)

- Increase in Receivables From Exchange Transactions (1,285,758) (323,806)

- Decrease in Deferred Revenue - (258,673)

- (Decrease)/Increase in Unspent Government Funding (2,609,563) 20,856,945

Cash generated from operations 132,562,219 301,427,045

17.	I nterest Received
Interest income at beginning of year 8,876,513 1,043,970

Net investment income received per the Statement of Financial Performance 25,350,119 8,323,822

Accrued net interest income at the end of the year (1,777,037) (491,279)

Interest income received 32,449,595 8,876,513

18.	Commitments
Payable within the next 12 months:

-  Financial Managers Fees (incl. GTAC advisory) 668,151 324,177

Payable between 2 and 5 years:

-  Financial Managers Fees - -

The entity appointed Deloitte Consulting (Pty) Ltd for the outsourced financial management of the Project Development Facility.  

Contract ends September 2014.  
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19.	Risk management 
The focus of risk management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity. 

While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, management endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that the appropriate infrastructure, 

controls, systems and ethics are applied throughout the entity and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

As the entity acquires finance from the National Treasury Finance Department and does not have borrowed funds it does not have major 

exposure to credit, liquidity, interest and market risk.

20.	Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to meet an obligation. 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as outstanding receivables 

and committed transactions. For banks and financial institutions, only highly reputable financial institutions are used.

21.	Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk 

management rests with the National Treasury finance department, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework 

for the management of the National Treasury’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.

22.	I nterest rate risk
The entity has limited exposure to interest risk. The entity’s cash and cash equivalents are subject to interest rate risk for the portion of 

interest received. The interest rate risk is limited as funds are invested with one of the four major banks and this is assessed annually.

23.	Taxation
No provision is made for taxation, as the entity is exempt from taxation in terms of Section 10(1) (a) of the Income Tax Act No. 58 of 1962.

24.	Events after the reporting date
The entity will be going through a structural change over the next year, which will change the entity but not its operations.

The structural change took place effective 1 April 2014.

This should not affect going concern.

The financial statements were submitted for audit on 31 May 2014, and were authorised for issue on 31 July 2014.

25.	Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
No fruitless and wasteful expenditure in the current and prior financial year.

26.	Significant Uncertainties and Key Judgements
Any significant uncertainties and key judgements have been considered and disclosed.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

27.	Related party transactions

(1)	T he entity received funding from the following related parties:

National Treasury 84,250,000 136,800,000

84,250,000 136,800,000

(2)	T he entity paid/transferred the following amounts to related parties:

National Treasury (NDPG returned funds) (14,969,721) (24,112,776)

Development Bank of South Africa (30,000,000) -

Development Bank of South Africa (approved expenditure) (211,753,883) (191,211,700)

(256,723,604) (215,324,476)

PDF occupies office space in the National Treasury building.  National Treasury pays the rental on behalf of the PDF.  The fair value of the 

rental is R969,383 (2012/2013 R775,656).

In 2011/2012, the National Treasury (via the PPP unit) entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with the Department of Energy and 

the Development Bank of South Africa to assist in the creation, implementation and support of Independent Power Producing projects.  

The role of the PPP unit is to reimburse approved expenditure incurred by the Development Bank of South Africa.

28.	Comparative Figures
Where necessary, comparatives of the financial statements have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

29.	New or Revised 							     
Accounting Pronouncements

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, there are standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective.  These 

include the following standards and interpretations that are applicable to the entity and may have an impact on future financial 

statements.

Effective date, commencing on or after

GRAP 20 Related Parties Not yet effective

Details of the standard and the resulting impact:

GRAP 20 This standard prescribes the disclosure of information relevant to draw attention to the possibility that the entity’s 
financial position and surplus/ deficit may have been affected by the existence of related parties. 
It is not expected that this standard will significantly impact on future disclosures.
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The following standards and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective are not applicable to the entity and will not 

have an impact on future financial statements:

Effective date, commencing on or after

GRAP 18 Segment Reporting Not yet effective

GRAP 32 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor Not yet effective

GRAP 105 Transfer of Functions Between Entities: Under Common Control Not yet effective

GRAP 106 Transfer of Functions Between Entities: Not Under Common Control Not yet effective

GRAP 107 Mergers Not yet effective

GRAP 108 Statutory Receivables Not yet effective

30.	Notes on the Comparison 							     
of Budget and Actual Amounts

30.1	Revenue From Non-Exchange Transactions

The PDF receives R3million in funding annually.

The NDPG recognises revenue to the value of the project spend, which was lower than anticipated. 

(refer to note 30.3 below)

30.2	Revenue From Exchange Transactions

Funding for the PDF Alternative Energy programme was from private parties, which is a percentage of the project value and 

documentation fees. 

 

In 2013/2014 there was only one window of tender fee submissions, compared to the prior year, where there were two windows of 

tender fee submissions resulting in a decrease in tender fees received.

30.3	Project Expenses 

The NDPG had lower than anticipated spend due to the impact of the roll out of its new strategy and a slower than anticipated 

appointment of service providers by municipalities.

30.4	Investment Income

Investment income is high due to an increase in cash balances and an aggressive cash management strategy that includes call accounts 

and fixed deposits.

30.5	Administration Expenses

Expenditure for financial management was lower than anticipated.

Audit fees increased by 72%.
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31.	Contingent liabilities
The accumulated surpluses of R574,944,741 (2012/2013 R405,527,012) are retained for funding approved projects. The entity obtained 

permission from National Treasury to retain the accumulated surpluses from the 2012/2013 financial year. The entity is in the process of 

requesting permission from National Treasury to retain the 2013/2014 surplus.

Funding is disbursed upon the successful achievement of predefined milestones and Treasury approval of a project. The entity has no 

control over the performance / non-performance of the party they enter into agreement with, and therefore no control over whether 

milestones are met or when they will be met. The project agreement is not an irrevocable contract and a key condition for performance 

of the entity (i.e. payment of agreed funds) is fully dependent upon the external party’s performance.  

The following is a breakdown of all the commitments which range from 2 – 20 years depending on the nature of the project.

31.1	PDF Projects

2013/2014 summary of PDF Contingent Liability:

Future remaining commitments 
for the year ended 

31 March 2013

Positive (+) and negative (-) 
funding adjustments for the year 

ending 31 March 2014

Expenditure for the 
year ending 

31 March 2014

Future remaining commitments 
for the year ended

31 March 2014

             7,612,184               16,009,505             (2,474,914)              21,146,775 

Management has interpreted the PDF projects to be the net commitment balance (funding amount per contract less any disbursements 

made to the project upon reaching the milestones) to be a contingent liability of R21,146,775 for the year ending 31 March 2014.

For a detailed list of all the projects, refer to Table A on pages 273-274.

31.2	NDPG Projects

The NDPG was announced by the Minister of Finance in his budget speech on 15 February 2006. An amount of R10 billion was ring fenced 

for development in townships.  The aim is to support and facilitate the planning and development of neighbourhood development 

programmes and projects that provide catalytic infrastructure to leverage 3rd party public and private sector development towards 

improving the quality of life of residents in targeted underserved neighbourhoods (townships) via the implementation of long term 

strategic plans and catalytic project plans. 

Technical assistance is disbursed via the Project Development Facility (PDF) to service providers assisting municipalities with the planning 

of catalytic programmes and projects.
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31.2	NDPG Projects - continued

2013/2014 summary of NDPG Contingent Liability:

Future remaining 
commitments for the year 

ended 31 March 2013

Positive (+) and negative 
(-) funding adjustments 

for the year ending 
31 March 2014

Expenditure for the year 
ending  31 March 2014

Future remaining 
commitments for the year 

ended 31 March 2014

Contractual 
commitments for the year 

ended 31 March 2014

290,719,043 8,789,053 (13,363,758) 286,144,338 46,907,120

Management has interpreted the NDPG projects to be the net contractual commitment balance (commitments to service providers for 

the next 12 months) to be a contingent liability of R46,907,120 for the year ending 31 March 2014.

The NDPG projects cover a 10 year period of which R286,144,338 has been committed.

For a detailed list of all the projects, refer to Table B on pages 275-279.

For a detailed list of all the contractual commitments, refer to Table C on pages 280-283.

31.3	Alternative Energy Programme

The PDF has entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with the Department of Energy and the Development Bank of South Africa 

(DBSA) for the Alternative Energy Programme over a period of 5 years. The PDF is to transfer funding for the expenditure incurred by 

the DBSA.

2013/2014 summary of the Alternative Energy Programme:

Funding as at 31 March 2013
Funding received for the 
year ending 31 March 2014

Expenditure for the 
year ending 31 March 2014

Available funding for the 
year ended 31 March 2014

362,844,081 330,304,364 (211,753,883) 481,394,562

The available funding of R481,394,562 is to fund projects that is with the Memorandum of Agreement for the Alternative Energy 

Programme.
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Report of the auditor-general on TAU
For the year ended 31 March 2014

REPORT ON THE 	
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction
1.	I  have audited the financial statements of the Technical 

Assistance Unit set out on pages 290 to 306, which comprise 

statement of financial position as at 31  March  2014, the 

statement of financial performance, statement of changes 

in equity, cash flow statement and the statement of 

comparison of budget information with actual information 

for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising 

a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information. 

Accounting officer’s 
responsibility for the 
financial statements
2.	T he accounting officer is responsible for the preparation 

and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with Statements of Generally Recognised 

Accounting Practise (Statements of GRAP) and the 

requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of 

South Africa,1999 (Act No.1 of 1999) and for such internal 

control as the accounting officer determines is necessary 

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error.

Auditor-general’s 
responsibility
3.	 My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my 

audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South 

Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice 

issued in terms thereof and International Standards on 

Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with 

ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement.

4.	A n audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend 

on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 

financial statements in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the financial statements. 

5.	I  believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
6.	I n my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all 

material respects, the financial position of the Technical 

Assistance Unit as at 31 March 2014 and its financial performance 

and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with 

Statements of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

REPORT ON OTHER 
LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS
In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in 

terms thereof, I report the following findings on the reported 

performance information against predetermined objectives 

for selected programme presented in the annual performance 

report, non-compliance with legislation as well as internal 

control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable 

findings as described under each subheading but not to gather 

evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, 
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Report of the auditor-general on TAU

I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters:

Predetermined objectives
7.	I  performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 

usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

information for the following selected programme 

presented in the annual performance report of the Trading 

entity for the year ended 31 March 2014:

	 •	 Programme 8: Technical Support and Development 

Finance on pages 124 to 133.

8.	I  evaluated the reported performance information against 

the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

9.	I  evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was presented in 

accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting 

principles and whether the reported performance 

was consistent with the planned programme. I further 

performed tests to determine whether indicators 

and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, 

measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the 

National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme 

performance information (FMPPI).

10.	I  assessed the reliability of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was valid, accurate 

and complete.

The material findings in respect of the selected programmes 

are as follows:

Programme 8: Technical 
Support and Development 
Finance

Usefulness of reported performance 
information

11.	N o reasons for variances between planned and actual 

achievements reported in the annual performance report 

were given for 100% of the targets not achieved, as required by 

the National Treasury’s Guide for the preparation of the annual 

report. This was due to a lack of review of the presentation of 

the annual performance report by management.

12.	T he FMPPI requires the following: 

	 •	 Performance targets must be specific in clearly 

identifying the nature and required level of 

performance, it must be measurable and the period or 

deadline for delivery of targets must be specified; and

	 •	 Performance indicators must be well defined by having 

clear data definitions so that data can be collected 

consistently and is easy to understand and use.

The measurability of planned targets and indicators could not 

be assessed due to a lack of technical indicator descriptions 

and documented system descriptions.

Reliability of reported 
performance information
13.	T he FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems 

to collect, collate, verify and store performance information 

to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual 

achievements against planned objectives, indicators 

and targets. I was unable to obtain the information and 

explanations I considered necessary to satisfy myself as 

to the reliability of the reported performance information. 

This was due to the fact that the department could not 

provide sufficient, appropriate evidence in support of the 

reported performance information.

Additional matter 
I draw attention to the following matter:

Achievement of planned targets

14.	 Refer to the annual performance report on pages 32 to 133 

for information on the achievement of the planned targets 

for the year.

Compliance with 
legislation
15.	  I did not identify any instances of material non-compliance 

with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the 

General Notice issued in terms of the PAA.
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Internal control
16.	I  considered internal control relevant to my audit of the 

financial statements, performance report and compliance 

with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to 

the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in 

the findings on the performance report included in this 

report.

Leadership

Oversight responsibility regarding 
performance reporting

17.	T he oversight processes implemented by management in 

respect of the annual performance report were inadequate.

Pretoria

7 August 2014
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STATEMENT OF 
FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 March 2014

ASSETS

Current assets

Receivables from exchange transactions 5 2,236,425 3,177,956

Receivables from non- exchange transactions 6 630,551 31,664

Cash and cash equivalents 7 80,398,229 50,395,303

Total assets 83,265,205 53,604,923

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Accumulated surplus 21,225,662 22,724,538

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables under exchange transactions 8 29,441,941 21,805,744

Other payables under non-exchange transactions 9 32,597,602 9,074,641

Total equity and liabilities 83,265,205 53,604,923
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STATEMENT OF 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 2 40,970,932 24,500,598

Revenue from exchange transactions 2 107,588,123 135,860,443

Project expenditure 2 (152,839,496) (163,988,629)

Gross Surplus / (Deficit) (4,280,441) (3,627,588)

Administrative expenses 3 (310,919) (272,803)

Interest income 3,092,484 4,255,632

Net (Deficit) / Surplus for the year (1,498,876) 355,241
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STATEMENT OF 
CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Accumulated 
Surplus

Balance at 31 March 2012 22,369,297

Net surplus for the year 355,241

Balance at 31 March 2013 22,724,538

Net deficit for the year (1,498,876)

Balance at 31 March 2014 21,225,662
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CASH FLOW 
STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from government and other sources 180,108,618 137,552,226

Cash paid to suppliers (153,198,176) (163,957,045)

Cash generated from / (utilised in) operations 10 26,910,442 (26,404,819)

Interest income 3,092,484 4,255,632

Net cash generated from / (utilised in) operating activities 30,002,926 (22,149,187)

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30,002,926 (22,149,187)

Cash at the beginning of the year 50,395,303 72,544,490

TOTAL CASH AT THE END OF THE YEAR 7 80,398,229 50,395,303
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET 
AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Notes 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14

R’000 R’000 R’000

Budget Actual Variance Positive /
(Negative)

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 69,203,000 40,970,932 (28,232,068)

Revenue from exchange transactions 153,507,660 107,588,123 (45,919,537)

Project expenditure (193,546,000) (152,839,496) 40,706,504

Gross Surplus / (Deficit) 20.1 29,164,660 (4,280,441) (33,445,101)

Administrative expenses 20.2 (238,249) (310,919) (72,670)

Interest income 20.3 2,500,000 3,092,484 592,484

Net Surplus for the year 31,426,411 (1,498,876) (32,925,287)



National Treasury Annual Report 2013/14 295

Technical Assistance Unit (TAU)     |     A Trading Entity Managed by the Tau Unit of National Treasury

Accounting 
policies
For the year ended 31 March 2014

1.	S ignificant accounting 
policies			 

1.1	C hanges in Accounting Policies and 
Consistency of Preparation		

TAU previously prepared their Annual Financial Statements 

(AFS) in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practice (GAAP).  As of 1 April 2013, Trading Entities must 

prepare their AFS in accordance with Generally Recognised 

Accounting Practice (GRAP).			 

The basis of preparation has not fundamentally changed 

the AFS and its presentation is consistent with prior years.  

The notable change is the introduction of the statement, 

Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts.		

1.2	 Statement of Compliance		

These annual financial statements are presented in South 

African Rand. They are prepared on the historical cost basis 

unless where indicated otherwise.			 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with all the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (GRAP), including any interpretations, guidelines and 

directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.	

1.3	 Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities have not been offset in 

the Statement of Financial Position.

1.3.1	 Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are classified, on initial recognition as a 

financial asset as a financial liability or an equity instrument in 

accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement 

and are initially measured at fair value.	

		

1.3.2	 Receivables

Trade receivables are subsequently carried at amortised 

cost. Amortised cost refers to the initial carrying amount 

less repayments and impairments. An estimate is made for 

doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding 

amounts at year-end. Significant financial difficulties of the 

debtor, probability that the debtor will enter into financial re-

organisation and default or delinquency in payments (more 

than 120 days overdue) are considered indicators that the 

trade receivable is impaired. Impairments are determined by 

discounting expected future cash flows to their present value. 	

The amount of the loss due to impairment, or the reversal 

of an impairment loss, is recognised in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income within operating expenses. When a 

trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off. Subsequent 

recoveries of amounts previously written off will be recognised 

as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.3.3	 Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other payables which consist of revenue 

received in advance are stated at amortised cost which, due 

to its short term nature, closely approximates their fair value.

1.3.4	 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at amortised cost which, 

due to their short term nature, closely approximates their fair 

value. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and 

deposits held on call with banks.

1.4	 Revenue 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either receives value 

from another entity without directly giving approximately equal 

value in exchange, or gives value to another entity without 

directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 

received or receivable. 

1.4.1	 Appropriated funds 

Appropriated and adjusted appropriated funds are recognised 

when the funds can be measured reliably on the date the 

appropriation becomes effective. Appropriated funds are 

recognised as revenue to the extent that there is no further 

obligation arising from the receipt of the transfer payment. 
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

1.4.2	 Donor funds 	

Donor funds are recognised when the funds can be 

measured reliably on the date the draw-down requisition 

becomes effective and the cost associated with the revenue 

has been incurred. 	

Revenue from exchange transactions 	

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity 

receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 

directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the 

form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another 

entity in exchange.

 

1.4.3	 Cost recovery 	

Revenue for services rendered is recognised when the amount 

of revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that the 

economic benefits associated with the services will flow to 

the entity, the stage of completion of the transaction at the 

end of the reporting period can be measured reliably and the 

cost incurred for the transaction and the cost to complete the 

transaction can be measured reliably.

1.4.4	 Interest income 	

Interest income accrues on a time-proportioned basis, taking 

into account the principal amount outstanding and the 

effective interest rate over the period to maturity.

1.5	 Irregular and fruitless 				  
and wasteful expenditure

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in 

contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of any 

applicable legislation including the PFMA. Fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and 

could have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.  

In accordance with the requirements of the PFMA, the details 

are included in a note to the financial statements. Any irregular, 

fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against the 

respective class of expenses in the period in which it occurred.

1.6	 Related parties

The entity is related to other entities and departments in all spheres 

of government.  The transactions are consistent with normal 

operating relationships between the entities, and are undertaken 

on terms and conditions that are normal for such transactions. 

Refer to note 16 for the transactions between related parties. 

1.7	 Significant judgments, estimates 	
and assumptions			 

The preparation of annual financial statements requires 

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 

that affect the application of policies and the reported 

amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses.		

	

Estimates are made based on the best available information at 

the time of preparation of the Annual Financial Statements. The 

estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-

going basis.  Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 

in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 

affects only that period or in the period of the revision on 

future periods if the revision affects current and future periods.

1.8	G oing concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the 

basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 

basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future 

operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 

liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur 

in the ordinary course of business.

1.9	P ublic Sector practices and policies

1.9.1	 Inter-relationship with other 	
government entities

The entity operates as a trading entity of the National Treasury, 

within the South African Government environment.  In line 

with prevailing government practices, the entity is not obliged 

to pay for certain expenditure such as office space and 

utilisation of fixed and moveable assets.
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1.9.2	 Public Finance Management Act 	
reporting requirements			 

Section 40(3)(b)

No material losses occurred during the current financial year 

due to criminal conduct nor any unauthorised expenditure or 

irregular expenditure.

1.10		E vents after Reporting Date

Events after the reporting date are those events, both 

favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the 

reporting date and the date when the financial statements 

are authorised for issue.  Two types of events can be 

identified: 

(a)	T hose that provide evidence of conditions that existed at 

the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting 

date); and

(b)	 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the 

reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date)

Refer to note 15 for the events identified after the reporting 

date.

1.11		 Budgets

The entity has presented a comparison of the budget amounts 

for which it is held publicly accountable and actual amounts 

as a separate additional financial statement in the financial 

statements.

The comparison of budget and actual amounts present 

separately for each level of legislative oversight:

(a)	T he approved and final budget amounts;

(b)	T he actual amounts on a comparable basis; and

(c)	 By way of note disclosure (refer to note 20), an explanation 

of material differences between the budget for which the 

entity is held publicly accountable and actual amounts.

1.12	Transfers under Common Control

It is anticipated that the entity will be transferred to another 

entity under the common control of National Treasury.  On the 

date of the transfer the entity will:

(a)	 Derecognise from its financial statements all the assets 

transferred and liabilities relinquished in a transfer of 

functions at their carrying amounts.

(b)	 Recognise the difference between the carrying amounts 

of the assets transferred, the liabilities relinquished and 

the consideration received (if any) from the acquirer in 

accumulated surplus or deficit.

1.13	Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is:

(a)	A  possible obligation that arises from past events, and 

whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence 

or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 

not wholly within the control of the entity; or

(b)	A  present obligation that arises from past events but is not 

recognised because:

	 i.	I t is not probable that an outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefits or service potential 

will be required to settle the obligation; or

	 ii.	T he amount of the obligation cannot be measured 

with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but only disclosed in 

the notes.  (Refer to note 12)

1.14		C ommitments

A commitment is:

A future expense that the entity has committed itself to 

contractually but for which a present obligation for the 

payment thereof does not exist at the reporting date.

Commitments are not recognised, but only disclosed in the 

notes.  (Refer to note 13)	
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Notes to the Annual 
Financial Satements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

2.	 Gross Surplus / (Deficit)
Gross surplus / (deficit) is arrived at after taking the following into account:

Revenue from non-exchange transactions:

-	G overnment funding received 28,562,000 19,505,000

-	E CFF* grants received 925,657 4,109,143

-	 Donor grants received 11,483,275 886,455

40,970,932 24,500,598

Revenue from exchange transactions:

-	 Cost recovery 107,588,123 135,860,443

Project Expenditure – consulting fees and disbursements
(152,839,496) (163,988,629)

Gross Deficit (4,280,441) (3,627,588)

*Employment Creation Facilitation Fund

3.	 Administrative Expenses
Administrative expenses are arrived at after taking the following into account:

-	A udit fees 298,404 211,364

-	 Bank charges 14,775 16,321

-	 Legal fees (8,550) 45,118

-	S oftware License Fees 6,290 -

310,919 272,803

The legal fees received relate to unutilised arbitratory fees paid in the prior year now 
refunded.

4.	Ta xation
No provision has been made for taxation as the trading entity is exempt from income 
tax in terms of section 10(1)(cA) of the Income Tax Act (Act No 58 of 1962). As per 
the agreement with the donor, all VAT on services paid with donor funds will be 
refundable by SARS.
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

5.	R eceivables from 								      
exchange transactions

Gross trade receivables 1,793,137 2,857,790

Accrued interest 443,288 320,166

2,236,425 3,177,956

6.	R eceivables from 									       
non-exchange transactions

Gross trade receivables -Donor 581,893 -

SARS: VAT 48,658 31,664

630,551 31,664

Credit quality of trade receivables

The credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired can be 
assessed by reference to counterparty default rates.

Fair value of trade receivables

The net carrying values of receivables are considered to be a close approximation of 
their fair values.

See Note 11 on risk management in relation to the financial assets listed above.

Trade receivables

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates their fair value. There is no 
foreign currency exposure at the reporting date.

7.	Ca sh and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consists of :

Cash at bank 1,500 1,381,253

Call account 80,396,729 49,014,050

Financial assets 80,398,229 50,395,303
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

8.	T rade and other payables under 					  
exchange transactions

-	T rade payables 14,570,156 15,056,228

-	 Revenue received in advance – Cost Recovery 14,871,785 6,746,049

-	I nterest received - 3,467

29,441,941 21,805,744

Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for service providers’ services utilised.

The average credit period taken is less than 30 days. The trading entity considers that 
the carrying amount of trade and other payables at cost closely approximates their fair 
value.

Interest received relates to interest received on Donor funds not spent and will be 
refunded to the Donor as per mutual agreement.

9.	O ther payables under 								      
non-exchange transactions

-	 Revenue received in advance – General Budget Support 10,798,618 -

-	 Revenue received in advance – Employment Creation Facilitation Funds 21,798,984 9,074,641

32,597,602 9,074,641

General Budget Support represents funding from the European Union through 
National Treasury for institutional transformation. Employment Creation Facilitation 
funding represents funding from National Treasury for job creating projects. These 
funding have been ear marked for specific projects which are still in progress.

See note 11 on risk management in relation to the financial liabilities listed above.

10.	Cash generated / (utilised) in operations
(Deficit) / Surplus for the year (1,498,876) 355,241

Interest income (3,092,484) (4,255,632)

Operating cash flows before working capital changes (4,591,360) (3,900,391)

Changes in working capital 31,501,802 (22,504,428)

(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 941,531 (853,729)

Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables from non-exchange transactions (598,887) 540,132

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables from exchange transactions 7,636,197 (23,081,688)

Increase in other payables under non-exchange transactions 23,522,961 890,857

Cash generated from / (utilised ) in operations 26,910,442 (26,404,819)
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Note(s) 2013/14 2012/13

11.	Risk Management
Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error or external 
events. When controls fail to perform, operational risk can cause damage, have legal 
or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The trading entity is constantly 
monitoring and responding to potential risk, thus managing the risk.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

-	T rade receivables 2,375,030 2,857,790

-	SA RS: VAT 48,658 31,664

-	A ccrued interest 443,288 320,166

-	 Cash and cash equivalents 80,398,229 50,395,303

Financial liabilities

-	T rade payables 14,570,156 15,056,228

Price risk

As the trading entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, its income and 
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

Cash flow interest rate risk Current interest 
rate

Due in less 
than a year

Financial instruments

Trade receivables 0.00% 2,375,030

Cash and cash equivalents 4.50% 80,398,229

Trade payables 0.00% (14,570,156)

Interest rate risk

This risk is the potential financial loss as a result of adverse movement in interest rates that 
affects the value of bank balances. Nominal interest rate can be split into real interest rate 
risk and inflation risk. Interest rate risk is managed by investing funds in highly liquid call 
accounts at reputable financial institutions, earning market related interest.

Market risk

No significant fluctuations in the market occurred during the year that affected the 
trading entity.
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Credit Risk

Financial assets, which potentially subject the TAU Trading Entity to the risk of non-
performance by counter parties, consist mainly of cash and trade receivables.

The Trading entity limits its treasury counterpart exposure by dealing only with well-
established financial institutions approved by the National Treasury.

Trade receivables consist of other government departments.

Liquidity Risk

The trading entity manages liquidity risk through proper management of working 
capital and proper cash flow projections.

12.	Contingencies
In terms of the PFMA, all surplus funds as at the reporting date may be forfeited to 
the National Treasury. A request for the retention of accumulated surplus funds to the 
value of R21,225,662 resulting from operations in the financial year ended 31 March 
2014 and prior years will be made to the National Treasury.

13.	Commitments
13.1	 Project commitments

Current commitments will be funded from the accumulated surplus of R21,225,662 as 
well as from future government grants, cost recovery and donor funds.

13.2	 Operating commitments

Payable within the next 12 months

-	 Contractual commitments 83,842,671 62,931,978

Payable after 12 months but before 60 months

-	 Contractual commitments 9,317,824 17,999,185

Payable after 60 months Nil Nil
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14.	Material losses through criminal 				  
conduct or irregular, fruitless 						   
and wasteful expenditure

To the best of our knowledge, no material losses through criminal conduct or 
irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure were incurred during the year ended 
31 March 2014.

15.	Events after the reporting date

The entity will be going through a structural change over the next year, which will 
change the entity but not its operations.  The structure change took place effective 1 
April 2014.  This should not affect going concern.

The financial statements were submitted for audit before 31 May 2014, and were 
authorised for issue on 31 July 2014.

The accounting authority is not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the 
end of the financial year to the date of this report which could require adjustments to, 
or disclosure in, the annual financial statements.

16.	Related parties
Amounts included in trade receivables regarding related parties

Department of Correctional Services - 90,000

Department of International Relations and Co-operations - 480,000

Department of Public Works 322,265 -

Department of Social Development - 753,960

Department of Trade and Industry - 1,448,046

National Department of Health 623,859 -

Office of the Premier – Eastern Cape 342,099 -

Reconstruction and Development Programme 581,893 -

Safety and Security Sector Education and Training 254,693 -

The Presidency - 85,784

Quality Council for Trades and Occupations 250,221
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Related - party transactions

Services provided to related parties

Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries - 50,000

Department of Arts and Culture 1,748,968 -

Department of Communications - 90,000

Department of Economic Development and Tourism WC 1,207,306 1,024,800

Department of Environmental Affairs 400,000 72,000

Department of Environment and Development WC 279,000 -

Department of Higher Education and Training 1,608,708 792,747

Department of Home Affairs 430,533 -

Department of International Relations and Co-operation 709,030 480,000

Department of Labour: Sheltered Employment Factory - 3,100,000

Department of Provincial Planning and Treasury EC 103,870 -

Department of Public Works 2,884,078 1,480,015

Department of Social Development - 993,960

Department of Trade and Industry - 1,448,046

Department of Women, Children and People with Disabilities - 213,153

Financial Intelligence Centre 126,300 1,861,300

National Arts Council 399,750 -

National Department of Health 3,899,669 188,100

National Department of Labour - 73,073

National Economic Development and  Labour Council 92,148 30,000

National Treasury 89,114,912 119,359,658

North West Provincial Treasury - 4,154,920

Office of the Premier, Eastern Cape 342,099 1,303,950

Public Service Commission - 192,096

Quality Council for Trades and Occupations 538,394 -

Safety and Security Sector Education and  Training Authority 254,693 63,673

South African Medical Research Council - 337,787

South African National Biodiversity Institute 431,195 362,178

The Presidency 2,061,620 2,151,798

Transport, Education and Training Authority 955,850 167,960

No services were provided to parties other than the related parties.

Funding provided by related parties

National Treasury 28,562,000 19,505,000

The Technical Assistance Unit Trading Entity occupies office space in the National Treasury building free of rent. The value of this service 
received for free has been valued at R2,150,136 (2012/13: R1 428 840) by the National Treasury.
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17.	S tandards and interpretations 						    
early adopted

No new standards and interpretations have been early adopted in the current financial year.

17.1	New or revised accounting pronouncements

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, there are standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective. These include 
the following standards and interpretations that are applicable to the entity and may have an impact on future financial statements:

Effective date, commencing on or after:

GRAP 20 Related Parties Not yet effective

Details of the standard and the resulting impact:

This standard prescribes the disclosure of information relevant to draw attention to the possibility that the Entity’s financial position and 
surplus /deficit may have been effected by the existence of related parties.  It is not expected that this standard will significantly impact on 
future disclosures. It is not expected that these standards will impact the entity’s financial statements.

The following standards and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective are not applicable to the entity and will not have 
an impact on future financial statements:

Effective date, commencing on or after:

GRAP 18 Segment Reporting Not yet effective

GRAP 32 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor Not yet effective

GRAP 105
Transfer of Functions between Entities: Under Common 
Control

Not yet effective

GRAP 106
Transfer of Functions between Entities: Not Under Common 
Control

Not yet effective

GRAP 107 Mergers Not yet effective

GRAP 108 Statutory Receivables Not yet effective

18.	Significant uncertainties 							     
and key judgements

The Entity will be going through a structural change over the next year, which will change the Entity but not its operations. The structural 
change took place on 1 April 2014. This should not affect the going concern.

19.	Comparative Figures 
Where necessary, comparatives of the financial statements have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
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20.	Notes on the Statement of 						    
Comparison of Budget and 						    
Actual Amounts

20.1	Gross Surplus / (Deficit)

The negative variance on Gross Surplus / (Deficit) of R33,5m was mainly due to R27m budgeted for Donor funded projects.  The costed work 
plan was only signed off in October 2013, resulting in a delay in spending on the donor funded projects.  Thus the actual spend was only 
R0,6m.

Projects earmarked for funding from the Employment Creation Facilitation Fund (ECFF) also went more slowly than anticipated.  R13,65m 
was budgeted and only R1m actually spent.

This resulted in a decrease in Donor and ECFF revenue as well as a decrease in Cost Recovery on these projects budgeted.

20.2	Administrative Expenses

The negative variance on Administrative expenses was mainly due to higher audit fees.

20.3	Interest Income

The positive variance on interest income was due to slower spend on ECFF resulting in higher balances as well as higher interest rates due 
to investing in fixed deposits where cash flow requirements allowed.
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1.	 Service Delivery 

Organisational Environment

The year under review was generally focused on considering 

changes necessary to improve the organisation’s productivity 

and further enhance performance. In this regard various 

systems (not limited to the use of information technology) 

were considered for purposes of further enhancement. The 

knowledge management framework was concluded during 

the year under review, with the Information and Content 

Management component of the framework having been 

piloted. Under the auspices of the ICT Steering Committee, 

an ICT governance framework and the related policies and 

procedures have been formalized.  In light of the change to 

the ICT business process model, the organisational structure 

has been revised and is aligned to the DPSA ICT Governance 

Framework.  The Graduate Development Programme received 

increased support during the year under review, with 48 interns 

being employed by the department. An additional 11 external 

bursaries were also awarded. The Financial Management 

unit developed an internal control framework which will be 

implemented during the year ahead. 

Financial Management 	
Systems and Reforms
The financial management systems (BAS, PERSAL, LOGIS and 

Vulindlela) continued to operate optimally, with an average 

up-time exceeding 99%. In 2012/2013, the Office of the 

Accountant-General initiated and completed the turnaround 

strategy on the Integrated Financial Management System (IFMS) 

solution architecture. This resulted in a Cabinet Resolution in 

November 2013 which supported the procurement of a widely 

used and well-supported commercial software product from a 

single vendor. Measures have also been take to strengthen the 

governance and execution of the project over the next five years.  

Efforts relating to roll out of a Standardised Chart of Accounts 

for local government have also advanced well during the 

year under review.  A draft regulation in this regard was 

published and comments processed. Given the relatively 

large magnitude of the change to recording and capturing of 

financial transactions in local government, the consultation 

processes was extended in order to maximize engagement 

with potentially affected parties. The process was well received, 

as was the focus on capacity development.

Economic Policy
The  economic policy environment produces research, and 

undertakes policy analysis, data assessment and forecasting 

in support of the National Treasury’s needs in the areas of 

budgeting, macroeconomic policy and factors influencing 

economic growth.   During the period under review, the 

National Treasury continued working  on economic policies 

that aim to achieve higher economic sustainable economic 

growth and job creation.  The unit also contributed to the 

budget framework, economic growth scenarios and analysis 

of global trends in capital flows in relation to policy. 

Tax and Financial 			
Sector Policy
Amendments and refinements to the tax deductible 

contributions to defined benefit retirement savings schemes 

were completed, and are expected to be enacted during 2014. 

The tax incentive design with regard to non-retirement savings 

has been finalised.  

During the year under review, the National Treasury tabled 

the Banks Amendment Act 22 of 2013 in Parliament. The Act, 

promulgated on 10 December 2013. amends the Banks Act 

(1990) to strengthen the framework for banking regulation 

and supervision and specifically to give effect to the Basel 3 

requirements for banking regulation. A new Financial Markets 

Act (No. 19 of 2012) was promulgated on 28 May 2013 to update 

South Africa’s regulatory framework for financial markets. A 

draft Financial Sector Regulation Bill was approved by Cabinet 

and released on 11 December 2013 for public comment. 

This Bill aims to implement the “Twin Peaks” approach to 
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financial sector regulation, giving new responsibilities to the 

Reserve Bank and converting the Financial Services Board 

into a dedicated market conduct regulator. Public comments 

have been received on the draft Bill, and a new bill is due for 

publication during the second half of 2014. In the 2014 Budget, 

the Minister of Finance also announced measures to deepen 

trade and investment links between South Africa and the rest 

of Africa.

The Financial Services Laws General Amendment Act, No. 

45 of 2013, assented to by the President in January 2014 

amongst other objectives closes regulatory gaps, enhances 

the supervisory capabilities of the FSB and strengthens 

the governance and management of retirement funds. A 

paper titled “Charges in South African retirement funds” was 

released in 2013, followed by the “2014 Budget update on 

retirement reforms”.

Budget Office
Over the reporting period the office continued to ensure 

that the effects of the recession were addressed in a manner 

that does not disadvantage the poor. Spending continued to 

increase especially in programmes that have a direct impact 

on the lives of the most vulnerable in society. 

A revised version of the country’s long term fiscal report was 

completed during the 2013 / 14 financial year. It has been 

submitted to Cabinet for comment and consideration. In 

addition, the unit began work on the design of a new fiscal 

risks framework which considers risks to government finances 

across the public sector.

The International Development Cooperation (IDC) unit enhanced 

coordination between donors and departments by organizing 

national and provincial ODA forums. The aim is to foster greater 

accountability and transparency on ODA programmes. This 

will also enhance the budget allocation process. During the 

2013 / 14 year, the unit concluded agreements for the €100 

million Infrastructure Investment Programme for South Africa 

(IIPSA) and the €25 million Socio-Economic Justice for All 

(SEJA) between the European Union and South Africa.

Public Finance
The Public Finance division oversees budgetary planning 

and execution in national departments, provides advice and 

analysis on sectoral policies and programmes, monitors public 

expenditure and advises on financial and budgetary aspects 

of public policy and spending proposals. The division provides 

advice to the Director-General, the Deputy Minister and the 

Minister on cabinet memoranda and public finance issues that 

require ministerial concurrence or National Treasury approval. 

It is the primary link between the National Treasury and other 

national departments and government agencies. Numerous 

initiatives were undertaken during the year under review, in 

alignment with government’s priorities.

Intergovernmental Relations
During the reporting period, the division coordinated inputs 

to the Division of Revenue, the annual Division of Revenue 

Bill and the development of the framework for managing 

conditional grants. The 2013 Division of Revenue Act 

(DORA) included new clauses requiring plans for provincial 

infrastructure grants for health and education to be submitted 

to national departments as a condition for future grant 

allocations to fund those plans. A new local government 

equitable share was introduced in 2013/14, following a 

consultative review process undertaken in 2013. The new 

formula allocates funding for free basic services for the 59 per 

cent of South African households that reported having an 

income of less than the value of two old age grants. The new 

formula also allocates larger amounts to rural municipalities 

that have limited ability to raise their own revenues.

With respect to monitoring of municipal budgets, during the 

reporting period IGR continued the roll out of the municipal 

budget and reporting regulations with the aim of improving 

the quality of information received from municipalities. Key 

to this is improving oversight over local government budget 

legislative prescripts by national and provincial treasuries. All 

278 municipalities have compiled their 2014/15 Medium Term 

Review Expenditure Frameworks in line with the MBRR. There 

has been a particular focus on ensuring that all municipalities 
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complete the MBRR supporting schedules and ensure that 

their budgets documents articulate the strategic and service 

delivery objectives of the IDP. This has enabled quarterly 

publication of consolidated municipal financial performance 

reports, in line with Section 71 of the MFMA. Furthermore, 

the National Treasury publishes a consolidated set of budget 

information for all municipalities annually. This practice is 

aligned with the MFMA and has been institutionalised over 

the past six years. The reporting facilitates transparency, and 

better in-year management and oversight of budgets, making 

these reports into management tools and early warning 

mechanisms so that councils can improve their oversight role.

Maintaining Sustainability
Government’s macroeconomic framework has proven 

resilient and adaptable. Prudent and transparent fiscal 

management, inflation targeting and a flexible exchange rate 

in the context of open capital markets enabled the economy 

to continue growing moderately following the 2008 recession. 

Fiscal imbalances remain and economic growth is still below 

potential, but output and employment have returned to pre-

crisis levels.

South Africa’s debt levels are manageable and the long-term 

fiscal outlook supports sustainable public finances. The R25 

billion economic competitiveness and support package that 

government launched in 2011 helped vulnerable firms to 

weather the downturn, and will help to boost productivity in 

the years ahead. Government’s response to the crisis has also 

helped to build a platform for faster, more inclusive economic 

growth. This is reflected in increased public-sector investment 

in electricity, transport, water, roads, schools and hospitals.

International Financial 	
Relations
On the regional front, the National Treasury continued to play 

a prominent role in SADC’s Finance Committee.  Work towards 

effective financial administration of the SADC Secretariat, 

aligning the organisation’s expenditure with its stated priorities 

continued during the year under review. The National Treasury 

leads South Africa’s engagement in the finance track of the 

BRICS. South Africa joined BRICS in 2011. In 2012 BRICS leaders 

announced that their finance ministers were exploring the 

feasibility and viability of establishing a new development 

bank; this has become a cornerstone for consolidating BRICS 

co-operation as well as co-operation among emerging markets 

and developing countries (EMDCs). In 2013, the establishment 

of the bank was identified by Cabinet as the major deliverable 

that South Africa wished to result from the hosting of the BRICS 

Summit. The National Treasury contributed towards this major 

outcome for the country. 
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2.	E XPENDITURE
Departments budget in terms of clearly defined programmes. The following tables summarise final audited expenditure by programme 

(Table 2.1) and by salary band (Table 2.2). In particular, it indicates the amount spent on personnel costs in terms of each of the 

programmes or salary bands within the department.

TABLE 2.1 – Personnel costs by programme, 2013/14

Programme
Total 

expenditure
Personnel 

expenditure

Training 
expenditure

(R’000)

Professional 
and special 

services

Personnel 
cost as a 

percentage 
of total 

expenditure

Average 
personnel 

cost per 
employee*

(R’000) (R’000) (R’000) (R’000) % (R’000)

Programme 1 Administration 319 596 144 304 2 026 42 148 45.2 375

Programme 2  
Economic Policy, Tax, Financial 
Regulation and Research

124 097 66 731 561 16 729 53.8 695

Programme 3 
Public Finance and  Budget 
Management

212 718 143 756 348 7 952 67.6 549

Programme 4
Asset and Liability 
Management

2 990 923 62 791 425 6 030 2.1 561

Programme 5 
Financial Systems and 
Accounting

707 772 149 541 2 408 236 756 21.1 564

Programme 6  
International Financial 
Relations

1 067 740 21 752 45 7 254 2.0 544

Programme 7
Civil and Military Pensions, 
Contributions to Funds

3 523 098 0 0 57 507 0.0 0

Programme 8 
Technical Support and 
Development Finance

2 452 166 42 666 164 103 423 1.7 871

Programme 9
Revenue Administration

9 534 393 0 0 0 0.0 0

Programme 10
Financial Intelligence and 
State Security

4 174 554 0 0 0 0.0 0

Total 25 107 057 631 541 5 977 477 799

* Note: Percentage of average personnel cost per employee calculated based on the number of employees in table 3.1.  Minister and Deputy Minister personnel expenditure included in total.
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TABLE 2.2 – Personnel costs by salary band, 2013/14

Salary bands
Personnel expenditure 

(R’000)
% of total personnel cost

Average personnel cost 
per employee (R’000) ***

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0.00 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 11 505 1.83 172

Highly skilled production  (Levels 6-8) 84 052 13.39 272

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 283 264 45.13 515

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 248 800 39.64 885

Total ** 627 621 100 520

** Note:	 Minister and Deputy Minister personnel expenditure not included in total.

*** Note: 	 Percentage of average personnel cost per employee calculated based on the number of employees in table 3.2.

The following tables provide a summary, per programme (Table 2.3) and salary band (Table 2.4), of expenditure incurred as a result 

of salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowance (HOA) and medical assistance. In each case, the table indicates the percentage of the 

personnel budget used for these items.

TABLE 2.3 – Salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowance and medical assistance by programme, 2013/14

Programme

Salaries Overtime Home owners’ allowance Medical assistance

Amount 
(R’000)

Salaries 
as a % of 

personnel 
cost ****

Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as a % of 

personnel 
cost ****

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as 
a % of 

personnel 
cost ****

Amount 
(R’000)

Medical 
assistance 

as a % of 
personnel 

cost ****

Programme 1 98 729 68.4 745 0.5 2 254 1.6 3 799 2.63

Programme 2 40 182 60.2 0 0.0 932 1.4 989 1.48

Programme 3 91 613 63.7 265 0.2 2 201 1.5 2 304 1.60

Programme 4 42 990 68.5 0 0.0 852 1.4 1 492 2.38

Programme 5 100 685 67.3 0 0.0 1 574 1.1 2 602 1.74

Programme 6 12 828 59.0 0 0.0 114 0.5 387 1.78

Programme 7 0 0 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.00

Programme 8 22 786 53.4 0 0.0 326 0.8 587 1.38

Total 409 813 64.9 1 010 0.2 8 253 1.3 12 160 1.93

**** Note:  Percentages of personnel cost of salaries, overtime, HOA and medical assistance are calculated on the total personnel expenditure per programme in table 2.1
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TABLE 2.4 – Salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowance and medical assistance by salary band, 2013/14

Salary bands

Salaries Overtime
Home owners’ 

allowance
Medical assistance

Amount 
(R’000)

Salaries 
as a % of 

personnel 
cost

Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as a % of 

personnel 
cost

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as 
a % of 

personnel 
cost

Amount 
(R’000)

Medical 
assistance 

as a % of 
personnel 

cost

Lower skilled

(Levels 1-2)
0 0 0 0.00 0 0.0 0 0

Skilled 

(Levels 3-5)
7 458 64.8 291 2.53 464 4.0 800 6.95

Highly skilled production

(Levels 6-8)
62 130 73.9 458 0.54 2 048 2.4 3 591 4.27

Highly skilled supervision

(Levels 9-12)
182 454 64.4 261 0.09 2 676 0.9 5 109 1.80

Senior management 

(Levels 13-16)
155 466 62.5 0 0.00 3 065 1.2 2 638 1.06

Total ***** 407 508 65.3 1 010 0.16 8 253 1.3 12 138 1.94

***** Note: Minister and Deputy Minister personnel expenditure not included in total.
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3.	EMP LOYMENT AND VACANCIES
The following tables summarise the number of posts on the establishment, the number of employees, the vacancy rate and staff that 

are additional to the establishment. This information is presented in terms of key variables: by programme (Table 3.1) and by salary band 

(Table 3.2). Departments have identified critical occupations that need to be monitored. The vacancy rate reflects the percentage of 

posts that are not filled.

TABLE 3.1 – Employment and vacancies by programme, 31 March 2014

Programme
Number 

of funded 
posts

Headcount
Vacancy 

rate %

Number of posts 
filled additional 

to the 
establishment

Programme 1: Administration 408 385 5.64 14

Programme 2: Economic Policy & Financial Sector 128 96 25.00 2

Programme 3: Fiscal & Budget Group 299 262 12.37 22

Programme 4: Asset and Liability Management 117 112 4.27 1

Programme 5: Financial Accounting and Reporting 298 265 11.07 20

Programme 6: Economic Policy and international Financial Relations 41 40 2.44 2

Programme 7 0 0 0 0

Programme 8 54 49 9.26 12

Total 1 345 1 209 10.11 73

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister included in totals. 

TABLE 3.2 – Employment and vacancies by salary band, 31 March 2014

Salary bands
Number of 

posts
Headcount

Vacancy 
rate %

Number of 
posts filled 

additional to the 
establishment

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0.00 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 68 67 1.47 10

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 328 309 5.79 9

Highly skilled  supervision (Levels 9-12) 624 550 11.86 34

Senior  management (Levels 13-16) 325 283 12.92 20

Total 1 345 1 209 10.11 73

NB: Vacancy reduced by additional appointments. Minister and Deputy Minister included in totals
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TABLE 3.3 - Filling of SMS posts

The tables in this section provide information on employment and vacancies about members of the SMS, by salary level. It also provides 

information on advertising and filling of SMS posts, reasons for not complying with prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps taken.

Table 3.3.1 - SMS post information as of 31 March 2014

SMS Level
Total number 

of funded 
SMS posts

Total number 
of  SMS posts 

filled

% of SMS 
posts filled

Total number 
of SMS posts 

vacant

% of SMS 
posts vacant

Director-General/ Head of Department 1 1 100 0 0

Salary Level 16 0 0 100 0 0

Salary Level 15 14 12 86 2 5

Salary Level 14 66 61 92 5 12

Salary Level 13 242 207 86 35 83

Total 323 281 87 42 100

Minister and Deputy Minister excluded from totals.

Table 3.3.2 - SMS post information as of 30 September 2013

SMS Level
Total number 

of funded 
SMS posts

Total number 
of  SMS posts 

filled

% of SMS 
posts filled

Total number 
of SMS posts 

vacant

% of SMS 
posts vacant

Director-General/ Head of Department 1 1 100 0 0

Salary Level 16 0 0 100 0 0

Salary Level 15 16 14 88 2 6

Salary Level 14 67 62 93 5 14

Salary Level 13 240 211 88 29 81

Total 324 288 89 36 100

Minister and Deputy Minister excluded from totals.
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Table 3.3.3 - Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

SMS Level

Advertising Filling of Posts

Number of vacancies 
per level advertised 
within 6 months of 

becoming vacant

Number of vacancies 
per level filled within 

6 months of becoming 
vacant

Number of vacancies 
per level not filled 

within 6 months but 
filled within 12 months 

Director-General/ Head of Department 0 0 0

Salary Level 16 0 0 0

Salary Level 15 1 1 1

Salary Level 14 4 3 2

Salary Level 13 23 17 9

Total 28 21 12

Table 3.3.4 - Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS posts advertised within 6 months and filled within 12 

months of becoming vacant, for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months

The functions in some divisions of the National Treasury were under review. Therefore, advertising of these positions at the time would not have 
been ideal as some of the functions changed in line with the business needs.

Reasons for vacancies not filled within twelve months

Reasons in addition to those given above include the Department choosing to have acting appointments with an emphasis on continuity of work; 
filling some of the positions not being a priority because of functional shifts in some directorates; and the difficulty of finding suitable candidates in 
specific areas.
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4.	 JOB EVALUATION
The Public Service Regulations, 1999, introduced job evaluation as a way of ensuring that work of equal value is remunerated equally. 

Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate any job in their organisations. In terms of 

the Regulations, all vacancies on salary levels 9 and higher must be evaluated before they are filled. 

Table 4.1 below gives the number of jobs evaluated during the year under review. It also provides statistics on the number of posts 

upgraded or downgraded.

TABLE 4.1 – Job evaluation, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Salary band
Number 
of posts

Number 
of jobs 

evaluated

% of posts 
evaluated by 
salary bands

Posts upgraded Posts downgraded

Number
% of  posts 
evaluated

Number
% of  posts 
evaluated

Lower  skilled  

(Levels 1-2)
0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0

Skilled  

(Levels 3-5)
68 0 0.00 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production 

(Levels 6-8)
328 1 0.30 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled supervision 

(Levels 9-12)
624 84 13.46 2 100 0 0

Senior Management 

Service Band A
242 23 9.50 0 0 0 0

 Senior Management 

Service Band B
66 7 10.61 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 

Service Band C
14 5 35.71 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 

Service Band D
3 0 0.00 0 0 0 0

Total 1 345 120 8.92 2 100 0 0

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister included in totals. 

The following table gives the number of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded. The 

number of employees differs from the number of posts upgraded since not all employees are automatically absorbed into the new posts 

and some upgraded posts remained vacant.
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TABLE 4.2 – Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 1 0 0 0 1

Male 0 0 1 0 1

Employees with a disability 0 0 0 0 0

Total 1 0 1 0 2

The following table gives number of cases where remuneration levels exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation. The reasons 

for the deviation are provided in each case.

TABLE 4.3 – Employees whose salary level exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 (in terms of 

PSR 1.V.C.3)

Occupation
Number of 
employees

Job evaluation 
level

Remuneration 
level

Reason for 
deviation

Deputy Director-General 1 14 15 Retention

Chief Director 0 0 0 N/A

Director 2 11 & 12 13 Retention

Deputy Director 2 10 & 11 11 & 12 Retention

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job evaluation in 
2013/14

5

Percentage of total employment 0.49%

Table 4.4 describes the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability.

TABLE 4.4 – Profile of employees whose salary level exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 (in terms 

of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 2 0 1 0 3

Male 0 0 1 1 2

Total 2 0 2 1 5
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5.	EMP LOYMENT CHANGES
This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year.

Turnover rates provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of the department. The following table gives the turnover rates 

by salary band. 

TABLE 5.1 – Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Salary band

Number of 
employees per 

band as on  
31 March 2013

Appointments 
and transfers into 

the department

Terminations and 
transfers out of 

the department

Turnover rate
%

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 66 13 11 16.67

Highly skilled production(Levels 6-8) 306 78 34 11.11

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 535 70 80 14.95

Senior Management Service Band A 202 14 22 10.89

Senior Management Service Band B 55 1 6 10.91

Senior Management Service Band C 21 1 3 14.29

Senior Management Service Band D 4 0 1 25.00

Total 1 189 177 157 13.20

Table 5.2 – Reasons for staff leaving the department

Termination Type Number % of total

Death 2 1.27

Resignation 99 63.06

Expiry of contract 21 13.38

Dismissal – operational changes 0 0.00

Dismissal – misconduct 1 0.64

Dismissal – inefficiency 0 0.00

Discharged due to ill-health 0 0.00

Retirement 7 4.46

Severance package 0 0.00

Transfers to other public service departments 27 17.20

Total 157 100

Number of employees who left as a % of total employment                                  
(1 189 as at 31 March 2014)

13.20
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Table 5.3 – Promotions by salary band

Salary band
Employees 

31 March 2013

Promotions to 
another salary 

level

Salary band 
promotions as a 
% of employees 

by salary level

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0.00

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 66 0 0.00

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 306 5 1.63

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 535 55 10.28

Senior management (Levels13-16) 282 24 8.51

Total 1 189 84 7.06

6.	EMP LOYMENT EQUITY
The tables in this section are based on the formats prescribed by the Employment Equity Act, 55 of 1998.

6.1 – Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational categories as at 31 March 2014

Occupational categories (SASCO)
Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior officials and managers 76 14 15 49 66 11 10 42 283

Professionals 182 15 10 39 231 9 8 34 528

Technicians and associate professionals 47 4 2 5 147 13 7 43 268

Clerks 26 0 2 4 43 0 5 5 85

Service and sales workers 18 1 1 0 8 1 0 0 29

Plant and machine operators and 

assemblers
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations 9 1 0 0 6 0 0 0 16

Total 358 35 30 97 501 34 30 124 1 209

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister included in totals (legislators, senior officials and managers).
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6.2 – Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational bands as at 31 March 2014

Occupational bands
Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top management (15-16) 6 1 5 5 3 3 0 2 25

Senior management (13-14) 72 12 10 47 64 7 10 38 260

Professionally qualified and 

experienced specialists and mid-

management (9-12)

179 15 11 36 236 11 8 44 540

Skilled technical and 

academically qualified 

workers, junior management, 

supervisors, foreman and 

superintendents (6-8)

70 2 4 8 168 13 12 40 317

Semi-skilled and discretionary 

decision making (3-5)
31 5 0 1 30 0 0 0 67

Unskilled and defined decision 

making (1-2)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 358 35 30 97 501 34 30 124 1 209

6.3 – Recruitment for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Occupational bands
Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top management (15-16) 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1

Senior management (13-14) 3 1 0 1 6 2 0 2 15

Professionally qualified and 

experienced specialists and 

mid-management (9-12)

24 1 0 1 38 2 1 3 70

Skilled technical and 

academically qualified 

workers, junior management, 

supervisors, foreman and 

superintendents (6-8)

26 0 2 1 41 1 4 3 78

Semi-skilled and discretionary 

decision making (3-5)
5 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 13

Unskilled and defined decision 

making (1-2)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 58 2 2 3 93 6 5 8 177

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



National Treasury Annual Report 2013/14322

Human resources 
Report

6.4 – Promotions for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Occupational bands
Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top management (15-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior management (13-14) 4 1 0 4 7 2 1 5 24

Professionally qualified and 

experienced specialists and 

mid-management (9-12)

18 1 2 3 28 1 0 2 55

Skilled technical and 

academically qualified 

workers, junior management, 

supervisors, foreman and 

superintendents (6-8)

1 0 0 1 3 0 0 0 5

Semi-skilled and discretionary 

decision making (3-5)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled and defined decision 

making (1-2)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 23 2 2 8 38 3 1 7 84

6.5 – Terminations for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Occupational bands
Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top management (15-16) 1 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 4

Senior management (13-14) 10 1 2 2 5 0 1 7 28

Professionally qualified and 

experienced specialists and 

mid-management (9-12)

31 3 2 4 27 2 3 8 80

Skilled technical and 

academically qualified 

workers, junior management, 

supervisors, foreman and 

superintendents (6-8)

9 0 0 0 21 2 0 2 34

Semi-skilled and discretionary 

decision making (3-5)
3 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 11

Unskilled and defined decision 

making (1-2)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 54 4 5 8 61 4 4 17 157

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals.
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6.6 – Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Disciplinary action 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6.7 – Skills development for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Occupational categories
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior officials and 

managers
25 4 5 11 27 3 4 12 91

Professionals 113 8 3 18 150 5 2 20 319

Technicians and associate 

professionals
25 2 1 1 99 11 3 24 166

Clerks 23 0 2 5 47 0 4 5 86

Service and sales workers 8 0 1 0 5 1 0 1 16

Skilled agriculture and fishery 

workers
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators 

and assemblers
1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Elementary occupations 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Total 195 14 12 35 330 20 13 62 681

Employees with disabilities 2 0 0 2 0 1 0 2 7
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7.	PE RFORMANCE REWARDS
To encourage good performance, the department granted the following performance rewards during the year under review. The 

information is presented in terms of race, gender, and disability (Table 7.1), salary bands (Table 7.2) and critical occupations (Table 7.3).

TABLE 7.1 – Performance rewards by race, gender, and disability, 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013

Beneficiary profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Total number 
of employees in 

group

% of total within 
group

Cost (R’000)
Average cost 

per employee

African 607 825 73.5 10 593 17 452

Male 255 354 72 5 003 19 622

Female 352 471 74.7 5 589 15 879

Asian 47 62 75.8 1 139 24 252

Male 22 32 68.7 627 28 515

Female 25 30 83.3 512 20 501

Coloured 53 67 79.1 1 242 23 446

Male 27 36 75 656 24 304

Female 26 31 83.8 586 22 556

White 210 235 89.3 5 267 25 082

Male 88 101 87.1 2 495 28 363

Female 122 134 91.0 1 175 25 547

Total 917 1 189 77.1 18 243 19 894

TABLE 7.2 – Performance rewards by salary band for personnel below SMS, 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013

Salary band Beneficiary profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within salary 

band

Total cost 
(R’000)

Average 
cost per 

employee
(R’000)

Total cost 
as a % of 
the total 

personnel 
expenditure

Lower skilled  

(Levels 1-2)
0 0 0.0 0 0 0.00

Skilled  

(Levels 3-5)
52 66 78.7 279 5 369 0.87

Highly skilled production 

(Levels 6-8)
200 306 65.3 2 107 10 761 1.75

Highly skilled supervision 

(Levels 9-12)
428 535 80.0 7 947 18 568 3.02

Total 680 907 74.9 10 333 15 196 2.50
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TABLE 7.3 – Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band, for SMS

Salary band Beneficiary profile
Total cost

(R’000)

Average 
cost per 

employee

Total cost 
as a % of 
the total 

personnel 
expenditure

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within band

Band A 175 206 84.9 5 193 29 675 0.84

Band B 53 59 89.8 2 271 42 858 0.37

Band C 9 14 64.2 445 49 427 0.07

Band D 0 3 0.0 0 0 0

Total 237 282 84 7 909 33 373 1.29

8.	 FOREIGN WORKERS 
TABLE 8.1 – Foreign workers by salary band, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 

Salary band
April 2013 March 2014 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % change

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production 

(Levels 6-8)
0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled supervision 

(Levels 9-12)
25 76 24 69 -1 -4

Senior management 

(Levels13-16)
8 24 11 36 3 38

Total 33 100 35 100 2 6

TABLE 8.2 – Foreign workers by major occupation, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Salary band
April 2013 March 2014 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % change

Senior management 8 24 11 31 3 38

Professional qualified 25 76 24 69 -1 -4

Skilled technical 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 33 100 35 100 2 6
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9.	 LEAVE UTILISATION FOR THE PERIOD 			 
	 1 JANUARY 2013 TO 31 DECEMBER 2013
The Public Service Commission has identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public service. The following tables 

indicate the use of sick leave (Table 8.1) and disability leave (Table 8.2). In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided.

TABLE 9.1 – Sick leave, 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

Salary band Total days
% days with 

medical 
certification

Number of 
employees 

using sick 
leave

% of total 
employees 

using sick 
leave

Average 
days per 

employee

Estimated 
cost (R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0.0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 463 83.4 55 5.3 8 196

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8)

2 297 80.5 269 25.9 9 1 809

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12)

3 319 76.3 495 47.7 7 5 759

Senior management  
(Levels 13-16)

1 336 78.1 218 21.1 6 4 268

Total 7 415 78.4 1 037 100 7 12 032

TABLE 9.2 – Disability leave (temporary and permanent), 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

Salary band
Total days 

taken

% days with 
medical 

certification

Number of 
employees 

using 
disability 

leave

% of total 
employees 

using 
disability 

leave

Average days 
per employee

Estimated 
cost (R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 100 100 1 0.125 100 45

Highly skilled production 

(Levels 6-8)
25 100 2 0.25 12.5 22

Highly skilled supervision 

(Levels 9-12)
272 100 3 0.375 90.7 465

Senior management  

(Levels 13-16)
348 100 2 0.25 174 808

Total 745 100 8 100 66 1 340

Table 9.3 summarises utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in the PSCBC in 2000 requires 

management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the time of termination of service.
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TABLE 9.3 – Annual leave, 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

Salary bands
Total days 

taken
Average per 

employee

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1 446 21

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 6 223 20

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 11 872 20

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 6 952 22

Total 26 493 21

TABLE 9.4 – Capped leave, 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013

Salary bands
Total days of 

capped leave 
taken

Average 
number of 

days taken per 
employee

Average capped 
leave per 

employee as at 
31 December 

2013

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 4 4 27

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 10 5 18

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 19 3 34

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 92 46 52

Total 125 10 35

TABLE 9.5 – Leave pay-outs for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

The following table summarises payments made to employees as a result of leave not taken.

Reason
Total Amount 

(R’000)
(a)

Number of 
employees

(b)

Average 
payment per 

employee
(R’000)
(c=a/b)

Leave payout for 2013/14 due to non-utilisation of leave for the previous cycle 0 0 0

Capped leave payouts on termination of service for 2013/14 1 418 7 202

Current leave payout on termination of service for 2013/14 1 994 119 17

Total 3 412 126 27
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10.	 HIV AND AIDS & 									       
	 HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAMMES
TABLE 10.1 – Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk 
of contracting HIV & related diseases (if any) 

Key steps taken to reduce the risk 

None -	 Nurse on site bi-weekly, voluntary counselling and HIV and TB 

testing are conducted.

-	 Quarterly voluntary counselling and testing are offered.  

Employees who test positive are referred and registered with 

their respective Medical Aid for the HIV/AIDS programmes.

-	 Promote prevention by hosting STI/D and condom awareness 

sessions; and

-	 Counselling services are provided through the Employee 

Wellness Programme (EWP) for emotional support.
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TABLE 10.2 – Details of health promotion and HIV and AIDS programmes 

Question Yes No Details, if yes

1.	 Has the department designated a member of the SMS to 

implement the provisions contained in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the 

Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, provide her/his name and 

position.

X

2. 	 Does the department have a dedicated unit or has it designated 

specific staff members to promote the health and well-being of 

your employees? If so, indicate the number of employees who are 

involved in this task and the annual budget that is available for this 

purpose.  

X

The Director: Organisation Development 

(oversight role) supported by one Wellness 

Specialist and one intern. Annual budget 

included in the overall HR budget.

3. 	 Has the department introduced an Employee Assistance or Health 

Promotion Programme for employees? If so, indicate the key 

elements/services of this Programme.

X

Counselling services, wellness management, 

HIV/AIDS management and productivity 

management 

4. 	 Has the department established (a) committee(s) as contemplated 

in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? 

If so, please provide the names of the members of the committee 

and the stakeholder(s) that they represent.  

X

Divisional Representatives:

Sheridan Pillay

Johnny October

Margaret Serumula

Innocentia Machaba

Octavia Maphila

Nomlotha Mazibuko

Betty Malope

Judith Rudolph

HR Representatives:

Rebecca Modiba

Ezre Stokes

Tebogo Legote

Nomthandazo Mdzoyi

5. 	 Has the department reviewed its employment policies and 

practices to ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate against 

employees on the basis of their HIV status? If so, list the employment 

policies/practices so reviewed.  

X Wellness Management policy.

6. 	 Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV-

positive employees or those perceived to be HIV-positive from 

discrimination? If so, list the key elements of these measures. 

X Confidentiality clauses

7.	 Does the department encourage its employees to undergo 

Voluntary Counselling and Testing? If so, list the results that you 

have you achieved. 

X
In the 2013/14 financial year, 349 employees 

voluntarily tested for HIV/AIDS.

8. 	 Has the department developed measures/indicators to monitor 

and evaluate the impact of its health promotion programme? If so, 

list these measures/indicators.
X

Number of officials utilising EWP 

programmes and receiving counselling; 

reduced absenteeism – Monitored through 

monthly EWP reports 
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11.  LABOUR RELATIONS
The following collective agreements were entered into with trade unions within the department. 

TABLE 11.1 – Collective agreements, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Subject Matter Date

NONE NONE

The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the department for the year under review.

TABLE 11.2 – Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total

Correctional counselling 0 0

Verbal warning 0 0

Written warning 0 0

Final written warning 0 0

Suspended without pay 0 0

Fine 0 0

Demotion 0 0

Dismissal 0 0

Not guilty 0 0

Case withdrawn 0 0

Total 0 0

TABLE 11.3 – Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings

Type of misconduct Number % of total

Total 0 0

TABLE 11.4 – Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Number % of Total

Number of grievances resolved 7 64%

Number of grievances not resolved 4 36%

Total number of grievances lodged 11 100%

TABLE 11.5 – Disputes lodged with Councils for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Number % of Total

Number of disputes upheld 2 66.7

Number of disputes dismissed 1 33.3

Total number of disputes lodged 3 100
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TABLE 11.6 – Strike actions for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Total number of person working days lost 0

Total cost (R’000) of working days lost 0

Amount (R’000) recovered as a result of no work no pay 0

TABLE 11.7 – Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Number of people suspended 1

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 1

Average number of days suspended 25

Cost of suspensions R47 388.90

12.	  SKILLS DEVELOPMENT
This section summarises the department’s work with regard to skills development.

12.1 – Training needs identified, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Occupational categories Gender

Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 
2013

Training needs identified at start of reporting period

Learnerships
Skills programmes & 

other short courses
Other forms 

of training
Total

Legislators, senior officials and 

managers

Female 96 0 122 0 122

Male 142 0 166 0 166

Professionals
Female 252 0 168 0 168

Male 235 0 161 0 161

Technicians and associated 

professionals

Female 70 0 314 0 314

Male 39 0 127 0 127

Clerks 
Female 232 0 41 0 41

Male 68 0 34 0 34

Service and sales workers
Female 6 0 5 0 5

Male 19 0 16 0 16

Skilled agriculture and fishery 

workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades workers
Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators and 

assemblers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 6 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations
Female 10 0 24 0 24

Male 12 0 28 0 28

Subtotal
Female 666 0 674 0 674

Male 521 0 532 0 532

Total 1 187 0 1 206 0 1 206

** Note:	 Minister and Deputy Minister not included in total.
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12.2 – Training provided, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Occupational categories Gender

Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 
2013

Training provided within the reporting period

Learnerships
Skills programmes 

& other short 
courses

Other forms 
of training

Total

Legislators, senior officials and 
managers

Female 96 0 46 0 46

Male 142 0 45 0 45

Professionals
Female 252 0 177 0 177

Male 235 0 142 0 142

Technicians and associated 
professionals

Female 70 0 137 0 137

Male 39 0 29 0 29

Clerks 
Female 232 0 56 0 56

Male 68 0 30 0 30

Service and sales workers
Female 6 0 7 0 7

Male 19 0 9 0 9

Skilled agriculture and fishery 
workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades workers
Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators & 
assemblers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 6 0 1 0 1

Elementary occupations
Female 10 0 2 0 2

Male 12 0 0 0 0

Subtotal
Female 666 0 425 0 425

Male 521 0 256 0 256

Total 1 187 0 681 0 681

** Note:	 Minister and Deputy Minister not included in total.

13.	 INJURIES ON DUTY
The following table provides basic information about injuries on duty.

TABLE 13.1 – Injuries on duty, 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total

Required basic medical attention only 4 100

Temporary total disablement 0 0

Permanent disablement 0 0

Fatal 0 0

Total 4 100
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AC	A udit Committee

ACCC	A nti-Corruption Coordinating Committee

ACSA	A irports Company of South Africa

ADB 	A frican Development Bank

ADF	A frican Development Fund

AEI	A frican Economic Integration

AFIS	A utomated Fingerprint Identification System

AIPF	A ssociated Institutions Pension Fund

APRM	A frican Peer Review Mechanism

ASB	A ccounting Standards Board

ATM1	A verage Term to Maturity

AU 	A frican Union

BAS	 Basic Accounting System

BBBEE	 Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment

BI	 Business Intelligence

BIS	 Bank for International Settlements

BRICS	 Brazil, Russia, India, China, and South Africa

BSA	 Brand South Africa

CAA	 Chartered Accountants Academy

CABRI	 Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative

CASP	 Comprehensive Agriculture Support Programme

CCSA	 Certification in Control Self-Assessment

CDS	 Capacity Development Strategy

CFTC	 Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation

CGE	 Computable General Equilibrium

CIA	 Certified Internal Auditor

CIDB	 Construction Industry Development Board	

CISA	 Certified Information Systems Auditor

CISNA	S ecurities and Non-banking Financial Authorities

CMU	 Contract Management Unit

CMA	 Common Monetary Area

COIDA	 Compensation for Occupational Injury and Diseases Act

COGTA	 Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs

CPD	 Corporation for Public Deposits

CPO	 Chief Procurement Officer

CREFSA	 Centre of Research into Economic and 			 

	 Finance in Southern Africa

CRDP	 Comprehensive Rural Development Programme

CRL	 Cultural, Religious and Linguistic Communities

CSP	 City Support Programme

DBSA 	 Development Bank of Southern Africa

DCIS	 Development Corporation Information System

DFI	 Development Finance Institution

DIRCO	 Department of International Relations 

			  and Cooperation

DOC	 Department of Communications

DORA	 Division of Revenue Act

DME	 Department of Minerals and Energy

DPE	 Department of Public Enterprises

DPME	 Department of Monitoring and Evaluation

DPSA 	 Department of Public Service and Administration

DSGE	 Dynamic Stochastic General Equilibrium 

ECFF	E mployment Creation Facilitation Fund

ED	E xposure Draft

ERSA	E conomic Research Southern Africa

ENE	 Estimates of National Expenditure

EPR	E xpenditure Reviews

EPWP	E xpanded Public Works Programme

EU	E uropean Union

FATF	 Financial Action Task Force

ECD	E arly Child Development

ETD	 Ducation, Training and Development

FET	 Further Education and Training

FFC	 Financial and Fiscal Commission

FIC	 Financial Intelligence Centre

FMS	 Financial Management System

FMCMM	 Financial Management Capability Maturity Model

FOSAD	 Forum of SA Directors-General

FRBs	 Fixed Rate Bonds

FSB	 Financial Services Board

G20 	G roup of Twenty Countries

G24 	G roup of Twenty-Four Countries

GAMAP 	G enerally Accepted Municipal Accounting Practices

GCC	G uarantee Certification Committee

GCIS 	G overnment Communications and 			 

	I nformation System

Abbreviations
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GDS	G rowth and Development Summit

GEMS	G overnment Employee Medical Scheme

GEPF 	G overnment Employee Pensions Fund

GFECRA	G old and Foreign Exchange Contingency 			 

	 Reserve Account

GFS	G overnment Finance Statistics

GPAA	G overnment Pensions Administration Agency

GRAP 	G enerally Recognised Accounting Practices

GTAC	T echnical Advisory Centre

HDI 	 Historically Disadvantaged Individual

HEDCOM	 Heads of Education Departments Committee

HIPC 	 Highly Indebted Poor Countries

HPV	 Human Papilloma Virus

HSRC	 Human Sciences Research Council

IA	I nternal Audit

IAS	I nternational Accounting Standards

ICASA	I ndependent Communications Authority 

	 of South Africa

ICDG	I ntegrated City Development Grant

ICT	I nformation and Communication Technology

IDC	I nternational Development Cooperation

IDIP	I nfrastructure Development Improvement Programme

IDM	I nfrastructure Delivery Management

IDMS	I nfrastructure Delivery Management System

IDTT	I nter Departmental Task Team

IFAC	I nternational Federation of Accountants

IFMS	I ntegrated Financial Management System

IGR	I ntergovernmental Relations

IIA	I nstitute of Internal Auditors

IJS	I ntegrated Justice Sector

ILBs	I nflation Linked Bonds

IMF 	I nternational Monetary Fund

IMFC	I nternational Monetary and Financial Committee

IMM	I nventory Management Module

INSET	I n-Service Training

IOSCO	I nternational Organisation of Securities Commissions

IPFA 	I nstitute for Public Finance and Auditing

IPID			I ndependent Police Investigative Directorate

IPSAS	I nternational Public-sector Accounting Standards

IREP	I nternational and Regional Economic Policy

ISDA	I nternational Swaps and Derivatives Association

ISDG	I nfrastructure Skills Development Grant

ISSP	I ntegrated Strategic Support Plan

IYM	I n-Year Monitoring

LGBER	 Local Government Budgets and Expenditure Review

LRAD	 Land Reform for Agricultural Development

MBBE	 Municipal Budget and Benchmark Engagement

MAFISA	 Micro-Agricultural Financial Institutions of South Africa

MFI	 Micro-Finance Intermediaries

MFMA	 Municipal Financial Management Act

MFMTAP	 Municipal Finance Management Technical 		

	A ssistance Project

MIG	 Municipal Infrastructure Grant

MLE	 Maximum Likelihood Estimate

MMC	 Members of the Mayoral Committee

MOU	 Memorandum of Understanding

MPAT	 Management Performance Assessment Tool

MSP	 Master Systems Plan

MTBPS	 Medium-Term Budget Policy Statement

MTEC	 Medium-Term Expenditure Committee

MTEF	 Medium-Term Expenditure Framework

MTREF	 Medium-Term Review Expenditure Frameworks

MTSF	 Medium-Term Strategic Framework

MYPD	 Multi-Year Price Determination

NCOP	N ational Council of Provinces

NDP	N eighbourhood Development Programme

NEDLAC 	N ational Economic Development and Labour Council

NEPAD	N ew Partnership for Africa’s Development

NERSA	N ational Energy Regulator of South Africa

NERT	N ational Energy Response Team

NHFC	 National Housing Finance Corporation

NIA	N ational Intelligence Agency

NOFP	N et Open Forward Position

NPA	N ational Ports Authority

NRF	N ational Revenue Fund

NSG	N ational School of Government
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NURCHA	 National Urban Reconstruction and Housing Agency

OAG	O ffice of the Accountant-General

ODA	O fficial Development Assistance

OECD	O rganisation for Economic Cooperation and 		

	 Development

PALAMA	 Public Administration Leadership and 			 

	 Management Academy

PEFA	 Public Expenditure and Financial Accountability

PEOU	 Public Entity Oversight Unit

PE	 Public Entity

PIC	 Public Investment Corporation

PFAI 	 Provident Fund for Associated Institutions

PFM	 Public Finance Management

PFMA 	 Public Finance Management Act

PFS	 Public Finance Statistics

PMM	 Procurement Management Module

PMU	 Project Management Unit for Social Security 		

	 and Retirement Reform

POBPF	 Political Office Bearers Pension Fund

POLMED	 Police Services Medical Scheme

PPP 	 Public Private Partnership

PPPFA	 Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act

PRASA	 Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa 

PSCBC	 Public Service Coordinating Bargaining Council

PSEPC	 Public-sector Expert Practice Committee

PSETA	 Public Service Education and Training Authority

RFB	 Requests for Bids

RDP 	 Reconstruction and Development Programme

RED	 Regional Electricity Distributor

REFIT	 Renewable Energy Feed-In Tariff

RISDP	 Regional Indicative Strategic Development Plan

RMF	 Risk Management Framework

SABOR	S outh African Benchmark Overnight Rate

SACU 	S outhern African Customs Union

SADC 	S outhern African Development Community

SAFCOL	SA  Forestry Company Limited

SAG	S outh African Government

SANReN	S outh African Research Network

SAPS	S outh African Police Services

SAPO	S outh African Post Office

SARB	S outh African Reserve Bank

SARS 	S outh African Revenue Service

SASRIA	S outh African Special Risks Insurance Association

SASSA	S outh Africa Social Security Agency

SAQA	 South African Qualifications Authority

SCM	S upply Chain Management

SCOA	S tandard Chart of Accounts

SEC	S ecurities and Exchange Commission

SETA	S ector Education and Training Authority

SISP	S trategic Information Systems Plan

SITA 	S tate Information Technology Agency

SCOPA	S tanding Committee on Public Accounts 

SMME 	S mall, Medium and Micro-Enterprise

SOC	S tate-Owned Company

SOEs 	S tate-Owned Enterprise

SOERG	S tate-Owned Enterprises Remuneration Guide

SOPs	S tandard Operating Procedures

STC	S econdary Tax on Companies

STRIPS 	S eparate Trading of Registered Interest and 		

	 Principal Securities

TA	T echnical Assistance

TAU			T echnical Assistance Unit

TBs	T reasury Bills

TBPS	T reasury Best Practice Standards

TCTA	T rans-Caledon Tunnel Authority

TEPF	T emporary Employees Pension Fund

TLAB	T ax Laws Amendment Bill	

UAT	 Complete User Acceptance

UNFCCC	 United Nations Framework Convention 			 

	 on Climate Change

WTO 	 World Trade Organisation
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Accounting Standards Board
Section 87 of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999)

Coin Liabilities
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary

Corporation for Public Deposits
Corporation for Public Deposits Act (46 of 1984)

Development Bank of Southern Africa
Development Bank of Southern Africa Act (13 of 1997)

Financial and Fiscal Commission
Financial and Fiscal Commission Act (99 of 1997)

Financial Services Board
Financial Services Board Act (97 of 1990)

The following organisations report to it:

Pension Fund Adjudication

Financial Markets Advisory Board

Pension Funds Advisory Board

Financial Intelligence Centre 
Financial Intelligence Centre Act (38 of 2001)

Independent Development Trust

Policy Board for Financial Services Regulation
Policy Board for Financial Services and Regulation Act (141 of 1993)

Public Accounts and Auditors Board

Public Investment Corporation
Public Investment Corporation Act, 2004 (23 of 2004)

Registrar of Banks

Reports to SA Reserve Bank

SA Banknote Company
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary

SA Mint Company
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary

South African Reserve Bank
SA Reserve Bank Act (90 of 1989)

South African Revenue Service
SA Revenue Service Act (34 of 1997)

South African Special Risk Insurance Association (SASRIA)

Special Pensions Board

Special Pensions Advisory Board

State Tender Board

Statistical Council
Statistics Act (66 of 1976)
Tax Advisory Committee

The National Treasury works closely with a number of public 
institutions. It has operational and institutional independence 
and, in some instances, constitutionally guaranteed autonomy. It 
produces its own annual reports.

 Institutions associated with the National Treasury
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